
Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

1 
 

 AGENDA 
CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SESSION 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 21, 2016 

8:30 A.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL   
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVE AGENDA   
 
1. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Minutes 
B. Tax Releases and Refunds 
C. Resolution Recognizing the Service of Marlene Copeland 
D. Subdivision for Approval 

 
2. CRAVEN COMMUNITY COLLEGE UPDATE ON FIRST STREET PROJECT:  

Dr. Ray Staats, President 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS 
 

3. EMERGENCY SERVICES – REFINANCE ENGINE, PURCHASE NEW TRUCK 
AND STORAGE BUILDING:  Roger Wetherington, No. 9 Township VFD 
Treasurer 

 
4. SOLID WASTE – RENEWAL OF SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT:  

Rusty Cotton, Solid Waste Director and Gene Hodges, Assistant County 
Manager 
 

5. HEALTH – NEW FEE RECOMMENDATIONS:  Greg Hodges, Environmental 
Health Supervisor 
 

6. PLANNING – SOLAR ENERGY FACILITIES ORDINANCE:  Don Baumgardner, 
Planning Director 
 

7. ADMINISTRATION – FARMLAND LEASE PROPOSAL:  Gene Hodges, 
Assistant County Manager 
 

 
 
 



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

2 
 

8. FINANCE – RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AGENTS FOR DISASTER 
ASSISTANCE APPLICATION:  Craig Warren, Finance Director 

 
9. APPOINTMENTS 

 
10. COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  Aaron Arnette 

 
11. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  Jack Veit 

 
12. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 

 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

3 
 

Presenter:       
Agenda Item No. 1     
Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   

 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 7, 2016 REGULAR SESSION 
 
The Board will be requested to approve the minutes of November 7, 2016 regular 
session. 
 
B. TAX RELEASES AND REFUNDS 
 
The Board will be requested to approve the routine requests for tax releases and 
refunds contained in Attachment #1.B. 
 
C. RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE SERVICE OF MARLENE COPELAND 
 
At the last meeting Commissioner Mark requested that the Board draft a resolution 
recognizing the service of Marlene Copeland.  (See Attachment #1.C.) 
 
D. SUBDIVISION FOR APPROVAL 
 
The Board will be requested to approve the following subdivision for approval as 
recommended by the Planning Board at their October 27 meeting. 

Tyson Subdivision – Final 
-Property is owned by Christopher & Kathrine Doyle, and surveyed Robert  
  Davis, PLS 
 -Property is located within Twp. 2, on Antioch Road  
 -Parcel ID 2-038-17000 
 -Subdivision contains 4 lots on 2.371 acres 
 -Lots proposed are to be served by community water and individual septic  
  systems (lot #4 has existing septic) 
 -New private road name: Tyson Court 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve consent agenda items. 
 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

4 
 

      Presenter: Dr. Ray Staats     
      Agenda Item No. 2     
      Board Action Required or Considered: No   
 
 
 
 
 

CRAVEN COMMUNITY COLLEGE UPDATE ON FIRST STREET PROJECT 
 

Dr. Ray Staats, President, Craven Community College, will make a Power Point 
presentation to update the Board on the First Street project. 

 
 

Board Action:  Receive Information 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

5 
 

      Presenter: Roger Wetherington    
      Agenda Item No. 3     
      Board Action Required or Considered: No   
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  EMERGENCY SERVICES – REFINANCE ENGINE, 
PURCHASE NEW TRUCK AND STORAGE BUILDING 

 
Roger Wetherington, No. 9 Township VFD Treasurer, will present a request for building 
a new storage building to house the rescue equipment and fire equipment and to 
refinance Engine One and purchase a new 3000 gallon fire apparatus (Tanker).  The 
loans will be financed by Select Bank & Trust Co.  Details are shown as Attachment #3. 

 
 

Board Action:  No action required.  Presented for information only as required by 
the department’s contract with the County.  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

6 
 

      Presenters:  Rusty Cotton and Gene Hodges   
      Agenda Item No. 4     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   

 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  SOLID WASTE – RENEWAL OF SOLID WASTE 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 

In June 2012, Craven County signed a 5 year agreement with Republic Services of 
North Carolina, LLC to be the exclusive provider of household solid waste services to 
the areas in Craven County that are not serviced by municipalities.  This contract 
expires on June 30, 2017 and in discussions with Republic, it has been stated that they 
will require an increase (from $1.89 currently to a proposed amount of $2.97) in the 
reimbursement they receive for each trash sticker they turn in to the Solid Waste 
Department.  Attachment #4 contains a memo describing in detail, how the current 
contract pricing works as well as information regarding the impact of the proposed rate 
on the purchase price of a Craven County trash sticker if the new rate is accepted.  The 
current Solid Waste Franchise Agreement is also attached for reference.  
 

Board Action:  Provide direction to staff regarding the desire of the Board on how 
to proceed with this process. 

 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

7 
 

      Presenter: Greg Hodges     
      Agenda Item No. 5     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  HEALTH – NEW FEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
Greg Hodges, Environmental Health Supervisor, will present a proposed new fee 
request for an Engineered Option Permit (EOP).  This permit developed from a bill that 
became a Temporary Rule on July 1, 2016 and becomes a permanent Rule January 1, 
2017.  Further explanation is contained in Attachment #5. 
 
 
Board Action:  Approve new fee recommendation. 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

8 
 

      Presenter: Don Baumgardner    
      Agenda Item No. 6     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 

 
DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  PLANNING – SOLAR ENERGY FACILITIES 

ORDINANCE 
 

On November 7, 2016, the Board of Commissioners conducted a public hearing to hear 
public comments regarding the proposed Solar Energy Facilities Ordinance.  After the 
public hearing, the Commissioners decided to table the vote and requested for staff to 
bring the ordinance back before the Board for a potential vote at their next regularly 
scheduled meeting.  A copy of the ordinance is contained in Attachment #6. 
 
 
Board Action:  A vote to approve the Solar Energy Facilities Ordinance will need 
to be unanimous in order for it to be adopted at this meeting.  It may be adopted 
by majority on a second vote. 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

9 
 

      Presenter: Gene Hodges     
      Agenda Item No. 7     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   

 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  FARMLAND LEASE PROPOSAL 
 

Craven County owns approximately 55 acres of land (down from 150 acres three years 
ago) that is leased as farmland for crop production.  This acreage is comprised of 
undeveloped land in the Industrial Park next to the Cooperative Extension Building and 
acreage to the right of the entrance at the Judicial Center.  In 2013, this lease was put 
out for bids and a 3-year lease was awarded to Mitchell Farms from Cove City at a rate 
of $85/acre.  This year we solicited proposals via an ad in the Sun Journal, posting the 
request on the County’s website, and posting the request at Ag Extension.  When the 
proposal deadline closed on October 21 there were no submitted proposals.  Working 
with Mike Carroll with Cooperative Extension, contact was made with 3 individuals that 
had separately expressed an interest in leasing the farmland.  After talking with all 3 
individuals, we received an offer from Timmy Cox with TRC Farms from Cove City, NC 
to lease the County’s farmland for $50/acre.  Attachment #7 contains maps of the 
leased farmland.       
 
 
Board Action:  Direct staff to move forward with advertising the public notice of 
intent to enter into a farmland lease agreement and place on the December 5, 
2016 agenda for Board approval.  

 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

10 
 

      Presenter: Craig Warren     
      Agenda Item No. 8     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   

 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENTAL MATTERS:  FINANCE – RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AGENTS 
FOR DISASTER ASSISTANCE APPLICATION 

 
As a result of Hurricane Matthew that came through our area on October 8th and 9th of 
2016, Craven County received a Public Assistance Disaster Declaration on October 
10th, 2016.  This declaration triggers the availability of federal funds in order to assist 
communities in their recovery efforts.  As part of the application, the North Carolina 
Department of Emergency Management requires that the resolution shown in 
Attachment #8 be adopted by the governing board designating the applicant’s primary 
and secondary agents.   It is recommended that the Board authorize the Finance 
Director and County Manager to act on its behalf by adopting this resolution. 
 
 
 
Board Action:  Approve resolution 
 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

11 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 9     
      Board Action Required or Considered: Yes   
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

A. PENDING 
B. CURRENT 
C. UPCOMING 
 
 
Board Action:  Appointments will be effective immediately, unless otherwise 
specified. 

 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

12 
 

A. PENDING APPOINTMENT(S): 
 
RECREATION AND PARKS ADVISORY BOARD       
AUTHORIZATION: Bylaws 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Serves as the recreation advisory body for the Craven County   
Department of Recreation and Parks; suggests policies; consults with and advises    
Recreation Director, County Manager and Commissioners in  matters related to recreation  
programs, finances, acquisition and disposal of property consistent with overall, long range  
recreation planning.            
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
12      1 from each township (8)  
           4 at-large    
       
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
LENGTH OF TERMS:    3 Years  
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: 3rd Monday at 6:00 p.m.; Administration conference room           
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
Terms expiring:  Dickie Fairburn (2 terms)  

Cathy Frazier  
Abel Sandoval (resigned)  
Bill Taylor (2 terms) 
 

 
 

Application(s) on file:   Paul Whittaker 
Stacey Lewis  
Ryan Purtle  
Todd Frankson 
Talina Massey 
 
(See Attachment # 9.A. The attachment also includes a list of 
current members, their corresponding commissioner districts and 
attendance records.) 

 
  
 

  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

13 
 

NEW BERN BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT        
AUTHORIZATION: City Ordinance        
MISSION/FUNCTION: To hear and decide appeals from and review of orders, requirements,  
      decisions or determinations made administratively relative to zoning. 
            
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
5            
                 
                 
                 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
Resident of New Bern Extraterritorial Jurisdiction       
 
             
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: The last Monday of each month at 6:30 p.m.         
 
COMPENSATION: No  ;   Yes X Specify: $15 per meeting  
 
 
Term(s) ending:  Dorothea White* 
 
No applications on file. 
 
*Mrs. White is a resident of New Bern. If the County fails to make an appointment within 90 
days, the City, in accordance with its ordinance, will make the appointment, as in the case of Ms. 
White.  
 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

14 
 

PLANNING BOARD           
AUTHORIZATION: N.C.G.S. 153A-321        
MISSION/FUNCTION:      
         
         
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
8      Representatives from around the County (from each 
      township to the extent possible) 
                 
                 
                 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 4 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: Fourth Thursday of each month, 5:00 p.m.  
 
COMPENSATION: No  Yes X Specify: $25 per meeting-members; $30 per meeting- 
        Chairman      
 
 
Term(s) ending: Two vacancies created by resignations (Michael Scoggins and Robert 

Carnes).  
   Attachment # 9.A.1.   shows current members, their townships and   
   corresponding commissioner districts. 
 
Application(s) on file: Daniel Hill (See Attachment) 
 



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

15 
 

B.  CURRENT APPOINTMENTS 
 
FIREMEN’S RELIEF FUND BOARD OF TRUSTEES       
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 58-84-30 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To safeguard firefighters in active service and dependent members of  
        their families from financial loss resulting from sickness, injury or loss  
        of life  suffered while in performance of his or her duties as a   
        firefighter. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
5 per department    2 appointed by Board of Commissioners; 2   
      appointed by the department; 1 appointed by  
      Commissioner of Insurance 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: As necessary        
 
COMPENSATION: No X Yes   Specify:       
 
 
Term(s) ending:   Bill Joiner (resigned) 
     (See Attachment # 9.B.) 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

16 
 

C.  UPCOMING APPOINTMENTS 
 
DECEMBER 
 
Commissioners:  Required Boards (currently serving):  
     
    Tourism Development Authority (Mark)   
    Craven County Health Board (Jones)  
    East Carolina Workforce Development Board (Sampson)  
    New Bern Craven County Library Board (Dacey)  
    Military Civilian Community Council (Liner)  
    Aging Planning Board (Liner)  
    Kellenberger Foundation (Liner)  
    Tryon Palace Commission (Liner)  
    Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (Sampson)  
    Smart Start (McCabe)  
    ECCOG (Dacey)  
    Down East RPO (Sampson) 
    Swiss Bear (Tyson)  
    MPO (Tyson) 
    EDO (Tyson) 
    Joint Land Use Study Committee (Liner) 
     
    Other Boards (currently serving): 
    CRSWMA -Voting Member (Mark)  
    Local Emergency Planning Committee (McCabe)  
    Cove City Library Board (Jones)  
    Havelock City Library Board (McCabe)  
    Vanceboro Library Board (Mark)  
    Highway 70 Corridor Committee (Mark)  
    Partners in Education (PIE) (Jones)  
    Craven-Pamlico-Carteret Regional Library (Liner)  
    Highway 17 Association (Mark)  
    ACT (Dacey) 
 
EMS Advisory Committee: Todd Wade (MCAS Cherry point; appointed 2013; will 
continue) 
 
Health Board:  David Baxter (optometrist; appointed 2011) 
    Kenneth Holton (Dentist; appointed 2013) 
    Si Seymour (Appointed 2011) 
    David Stevick (Engineer; appointed 2007) 
 
New Bern Library:  Tere Otero (Appointed 2012; wishes to continue serving) 
 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

17 
 

      Presenter: Jim Hicks     
      Agenda Item No. 10     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 

 
A. INITIAL OFFER TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY – 1103 ELM STREET, 

NEW BERN (Parcel Number 8- 012-262). 
 
Jim Hicks, County Attorney, will present an offer received by Craven County and the 
City of New Bern in the amount of $1,000.00 for the property located at 1103 Elm 
Street, New Bern, which was acquired through a tax foreclosure.  The total taxes and 
costs that were foreclosed on were $8,857.28.  The current tax value is $4,000.00.  
Attachment #10.A. contains copies of the Offer to Purchase, deed, GIS information, and 
proposed resolution.   
 
The City has previously accepted this Offer.  Should the County accept this offer, then 
the property will be advertised for upset bids in accordance with the General Statutes.  
Once no further upset bids are timely received, the County and City may accept or 
reject the final offer. 
 
 
B. FINAL ACCEPTANCE – OFFER TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY –  

1801 MCKINLEY AVENUE, NEW BERN (Parcel Number 8-038-237). 
 
Mr. Hicks will present an offer previously received and tentatively approved by Craven 
County and the City of New Bern for the property located at 1801 McKinley Avenue, 
New Bern, which after the upset bid process, was in the final amount of $1,250.00.  The 
total taxes and costs that were foreclosed on were $2,255.55.  The current tax value is 
$5,000.00.  The offer was advertised, and there were no upset bids.   
 
Attachment #10.B. contains copies of the proposed resolution, deed and lien waiver.  It 
is recommended that the Board give final approval of the sale and adopt the resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

18 
 

 
 
 
 
C. FINAL ACCEPTANCE – OFFER TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY – 2302 

MCKINLEY AVENUE, NEW BERN (Parcel Number 8-038-064). 
 
Mr. Hicks will present an offer previously received and tentatively approved by Craven 
County and the City of New Bern for the property located at 2302 McKinley Avenue, 
which after the upset bid process, was in the final amount of $2,000.00.  The total taxes 
and costs that were foreclosed on were $3,136.20.  The current tax value is $6,080.00.  
The offer was advertised, and there were no upset bids.   
 
Attachment #10.C. contains copies of the proposed resolution, deed and lien waiver.  It 
is recommended that the Board give final approval of the sale and adopt the resolution. 
 
 
D. FINAL ACCEPTANCE – OFFER TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY –  

1707 DILLAHUNT STREET, NEW BERN (Parcel Number 8-020-102). 
 
Mr. Hicks will present an offer previously received and tentatively approved by Craven 
County and the City of New Bern for the property located at 1707 Dillahunt Street, New 
Bern, which after the upset bid process, was in the final amount of $1,350.00.  The total 
taxes and costs that were foreclosed on were $4,205.43.  The current tax value is 
$5,400.00.  The offer was advertised, and there were no upset bids.   
 
Attachment #10.D. contains copies of the proposed resolution, deed and lien waiver.  It 
is recommended that the Board give final approval of the sale and adopt the resolution. 
 
 
 

 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

19 
 

      Presenter: Jack Veit     
      Agenda Item No. 11     
       

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT 
  



Agenda Date:      November 21, 2016  
 

20 
 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 12     

 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 11/21/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# 

BARNETT, MICHAEL ALLEN 0112588 2016-0091373 
DOUBLE BILLED SAME ACCOUNT 

BARWICK, PATSY DAUGHERTY 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2011 

0029167 2016-0003312 

BOYD, DENNIS N 0722750 2016-0005913 
DWELLING VACANT SINCE 2014 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2007-0006478 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2008-0006617 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2009-0006693 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2010-0006201 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2011-0006834 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2012-0006859 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2013-0006768 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2014-0006928 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2015-0006871 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

BROOKS, EDWARD HRS 0864200 2016-0006939 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2007-0009340 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

PAGE 1 

AMOUNT 

20.49 

36.00 

36.00 

50.35 

47.90 

45.38 

154.73 

145.73 

136.16 

126.64 

117.64 

108.92 

109.95 

71.28 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 2 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 11/21/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2008-0009698 68.32 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2009-0009704 65.07 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2010-0008933 128.69 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2011-0009863 121.59 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2012-0009787 114.25 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2013-0009584 100.31 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2014-0009757 93.23 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2015-0009683 86.15 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CATON, G A HRS 1243350 2016-0009840 49.97 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CEVALLOS, HORACIO ERNESTO 0082301 2011-0010061 122.05 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2011 

CLARK, JULUIS 1335150 2007-0010600 59.19 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK, JULUIS 1335150 2008-0010902 56.80 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK, JULUIS 1335150 2009-0010834 54.18 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK, JULUIS 1335150 2010-0009907 41.93 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 3 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 11/21/2016 

TAXPAYERNAAE ACCT#/TICKET# AAOUNT 

CLARK 1 JULUIS 1335150 2011-0010957 39.83 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK 1 JULUIS 1335150 2012-0010845 37.65 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK 1 JULUIS 1335150 2013-0010585 29.23 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK 1 JULUIS 1335150 2014-0010819 27.07 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK 1 JULUIS 1335150 2015-0010726 24.91 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CLARK 1 JULUIS 1335150 2016-0010860 39.98 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2007-0011421 71.28 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2008-0011721 68.32 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2009-0011607 65.07 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2010-0010633 128.69 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2011-0011732 121.59 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2012-0011606 114.25 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2013-0011319 100.31 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2014-0011557 93.23 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 4 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 11/21/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2015-0011433 339.44 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

COMMERCIAL ACCEPT CORP 1428401 2016-0011586 49.97 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

CONWAY, JOHN TAYLOR & MAUREEN 0087536 2016-0091388 255.30 
CORRECTED DISCOVERED PROPERTY 

COPELAND, NICHOLAS ALLEN & KIM 0082868 2016-0011974 33.94 
1/2 MILITARY EXEMPT 

COSBY, JAZZMEAN ANNETTE 0069219 2014-0090238 173.46 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2014 

COSBY, JAZZMEAN ANNETTE 0069219 2016-0012132 160.99 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2016 

COSBY, JAZZMEAN ANNETTE 0069219 2015-0011974 160.16 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2015 

COTTEN, JACK M & LILA D 1491900 2016-0012183 30.08 
MAPPING ERROR CORRECTION 

CRISTOBAL, MARIA ELIDE HERNAND 0098177 2016-0012957 46.99 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 107992 

DAVENPORT, DAWN MORRIS & DECKE 0109020 2016-0090076 5.94 
VALUE CORRECTION PER BILL OF SALE 

DAVENPORT, DAWN MORRIS & DECKE 0109020 2016-0013922 206.15 
VALUE CORRECTION PER BILL OF SALE 

DAVIS, DONALD R 0054553 2016-0091390 164.90 
NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

DAVIS, RICHARD B & ANNE M 1758155 2016-0014228 778.03 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

FARRELLE, EDITHA 0029004 2011-0018314 121.59 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 5 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 11/21/2016 

TAXPAYERN~E ACCT#/TICKET# 

FARRELLE, EDITHA 0029004 2012-0018140 114.25 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FARRELLE, EDITHA 0029004 2013-0017613 100.31 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FARRELLE, EDITHA 0029004 2014-0018073 93.23 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FARRELLE, EDITHA 0029004 2015-0018016 86.15 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FARRELLE, EDITHA 0029004 2016-0018243 49.97 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2007-0017907 562.12 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2008-0018319 536.61 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2009-0018363 680.98 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2010-0016802 440.83 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2011-0018546 246.45 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2012-0018354 230.40 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2013-0017830 357.09 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2014-0018299 331.89 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2015-0018226 626.99 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 11/21/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# 

FENNER, LILLIE MAE 2272880 2016-0018431 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

HARDISON, TONY ANDREW & ESTHER 
APPRAISAL ERROR CORRECTION 

0012661 2016-0024638 

MORENO, MELISSA JO 0111333 2016-0041169 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2016 

RAHLAN, BYUN 0111905 2016-0090893 
CORRECTED DISCOVERED PROPERTY VALUE 

REYNOLDS, CHARLES RUSSELL 0112281 2016-0091434 
CORRECTED DISCOVERED PROPERTY VALUE 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2007-0053644 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2008-0054378 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2009-0055217 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2010-0050495 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2011-0056170 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2012-0056152 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2013-0053849 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2014-0055025 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2015-0056360 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

AMOUNT 

251.57 

626.94 

35.79 

59.98 

621.13 

1,156.76 

1,103.90 

1,046.67 

975.97 

919.50 

860.66 

795.98 

739.70 

1,714.52 

6 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 7 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 11/21/2016 

TAXPAYERN~E ACCT#/TICKET# ~OUNT 

TAYLOR, MILTON 0015108 2016-0056728 463.24 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

THORSBY, MICHAEL DAVID JR & SA 0085997 2016-0091184 5.89 
PROPERTY NOT LOCATED IN HAVELOCK 

TOON, CATHERINE 7282835 2007-0054904 413.80 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE 7282835 2008-0055622 395.07 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE 7282835 2009-0056505 374.76 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE HRS 0081050 2010-0051668 388.42 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE HRS 0081050 2011-0057467 366.20 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE HRS 0081050 2012-0057438 343.30 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE HRS 0081050 2013-0055050 313.51 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE HRS 0081050 2014-0056315 291.43 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE HRS 0081050 2015-0057659 269.35 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

TOON, CATHERINE HRS 0081050 2016-0058018 248.37 
FORECLOSURE-LIEN EXTINGUISHED 

YANCEY, FREDRICK WILSON II AND 0112390 2016-0091470 114.51 
VALUE CORRECTION PER BILL OF SALE 

97 -CREDIT MEMO(S) 25,211.44 



TAX805P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 
REFUNDS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 11/21/2016 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

COSBY, JAZZMEAN ANNETTE 0069219 2012-0012151 171.59 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2012 

COSBY I JAZZMEAN ANNETTE 0069219 2013-0090400 154.88 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2013 

YOUNG, GARRET P & MAUREEN V 0027351 2016-0065085 98.18 
NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

YOUNG, GARRET P & MAUREEN V 0027351 2015-0064767 82.86 
NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

YOUNG I GARRET p & MAUREEN v 0027351 2014-0063386 88.73 
NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

YOUNG, GARRET P & MAUREEN V 0027351 2013-0061745 83.25 
NOT TAXABLE TO CRAVEN COUNTY 

6 -REFUND{S) 679.49 



RESOLUTION 
RECOGNIZING THE SERVICE OF 

MARLENE COPELAND 

WHEREAS, Marlene Copeland has recently retired as Librarian at the 
Vanceboro-Craven County Library, after 33 years of service; and 

WHEREAS, access to literature and other reading material is a hallmark 
of a vital and forward moving society; and 

WHEREAS, Ms. Copeland has witnessed the growth of the library from 
a room at the fire department to a newly renovated and expanded facility, and 
has led it into the 21st century as it traded in the old card catalog system for 
technology; and 

WHEREAS, over the years, Ms. Copeland was always present, 
exemplifying the utmost dedication to the library and commitment to its 
patrons. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Craven County Board of Commissioners 
expresses its gratitude to Ms. Marlene Copeland for her years of providing this 
vital service, and wishes her well in her retirement. 

Adopted this 21 81 day ofNovember, 2016 

Chairman George S. Liner 
Craven County Board of Commissioners 

Gwendolyn M. Bryan 
Clerk to the Board 



I 

No. 9 Township Fire & Rescue 
rhone&Fax (252) 636-0055 3783 NC Highway 55 West New Bern NC 

To: Craven County Board of Commissioners 

From: Number 9 Township Fire & Rescue Company 

Date: October 3, 2016 

Purpose: Refinance Engine 1, purchase new 3, 000 gallon tanker and build an additional 
building. 

Loan I. 

Number 9 Township Fire & Rescue Company would like to request the pern1ission of the 
Craven County Board of Commissioners to make the following: build new storage 
building and refinancing of an Engine with Select Bank & Trust (see attached) for the 
sum of$428,200.00. Interest rate of3 .50% for 84 months with balloon at the end of84 
months. Loan is based on 20 year amortizing. Payment of$2,483.00 per month. 

1. Refinance Engine One 
Manufacture: M&W Fire 
Bank Loan: First Citizens Bank 
Loan Number: 000001986363 
Interest Rate: 4.450o/o 
Payment: $2,531.41 
Pay Off as of 10-01-16$301,499.40 
Finance through 11-23-2019 
Est. Balloon Payment: $265,499.00 

2. Build new building (see attach plans) to house rescue equipment and~orage for 
fire equipment. (boat, land search equipment, traffic truck and brush tn1ck) 
Contract Amount: $121,060. 00 

By doing this Number 9 Township Fire & Rescue will reduce their tnonthly paytnent by 
$48.41. This would allow the department to better serve the community without 
increasing the fire tax. 

Loan II 



... · 
.J 

No.9 Township Fire & Rescue 
r twne&Fax (252) 636-0055 3783 NC Highway 55 West New Bern NC 

Number 9 Township Fire & Rescue Company would like to request the permission of 
the Craven County Board of Commissioners to make the following loan: Purchase new 
Fire Apparatus a 3000 gallon tanker manufactured by Midwest Fire. The new Fire 
Apparatus would be financed with Select Bank & Trust (see attached) for the sum of 
$251 ,800.00. Interest rate of3.50 for 7 years with a monthly payment of$3,390.00 (see 
loan and apparatus specs attached) . 

The money to make the payments for this apparatus would come from paying off a loan 
on the departments brush truck and support truck which will be paid off in December 
2016. The monthly payment on these two trucks is $1 ,633.88 . The departments had also 
paid off an apparatus in 2015 and have been saving the money with the county. The 
amount of that payment was $2,300.00. If you add the two amounts together 
($3 ,933 .880) the department would have enough money to make the payment on the new 
tanker. This way again not increasing the burden on the taxpayers and being able to 
serve the taxpayers with better fire protection. 

1. New Tanker 
Manufacture: Midwest Fire 
Interest Rate: 3.50% 
Payment: $3,390.00 

We are replacing a 1985 1, 000 gallon tanker with this new tanker. The old tanker is 
costing the fire company more in maintenance each year that we keep it. The new tanker 
will also let the fire company apply to lower the insurance fire rating which will save our 
tax payers money on their fire insurance. 

Thank you for your time in considering this request from Number 9 Township Fire & 
Rescue Company. The Fire Company as do the County Commissioner strives to serve 
the citizens of Craven County vvith the best that there is to offer at the lowest cost to the 
citizens. 

President: Terri Gaskins 
Chief: Bruce Smith 
Treasurer: Roger Wetherington 

Prepared by: Roger Wetherington 



No.9 Township Fire & Rescue 
Phone&Fax (252) 636-0055 3783 NC Highway 55 West New Bern NC 28562 

Teri Davis Gaskins, President 
Bruce Smith II, Chief 

Board of Directors Meeting 
June 13, 2016 

A called meeting of the No. 9 Township Fire & Rescue Board of Directors was called to order by 
President Teri Gaskins on June 13, 2016 at 6:13 p.m. Those present were: 

Old Business: 
None 

New Business: 

Bruce Smith 
Roger Wetherington 
Teri Gaskins 

Payne Smith 
Jason Arthur 

Roger advised we need to approve the officers elected by the Department at last month's regular 
business tneeting. Roger moved to accept the 2016-17 slate of officers. Motion passed. 

The Department moved to borrow $680,000 for a new building, a new tntck, and to refinance 
Engine 1. Jason moved to borrow the money and to have the loan go through Select Ban1c 
Motion carried. 

A motion to adjourn was made by Roger. Roger amended his 1notion to instead of adjourning the 
board meeting to recess the board 1neeting until later this evening. Motion passed. 

The Board of Director's meeting was called back into session at 8:40p.m. The Department voted 
during tonight's regular business meeting to accept the bid ofE&S Steel Contractors' of up to 
$121,000. Motion by Jason Arthur for the Board to approve E&S Steel Contractor's bid. Motion 
passed. 

The Fire Department also approved during the regular called meeting the purchase of a tanker 
from Midwest Fire at a cost of $249,800. A motion was made by Jason Arthur for the Board to 
approve the purchase. Motion passed. 

Roger made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Motion passed. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Marsha 0. Daugherty 
Acting Secretary 

Proud(v Dedicated to the Citizens We Sen>e Since 1968 



_ : r71·.· ~p·ft· • . · __ N_o_._9_T_o_w_n_s_h___,i p~F_ir_e_&_R_e_s_c_u_e 
• """'"'~ (252) 636-0055 3783 NC Highway 55 West New Bern NC 28562 

Teri Davis Gaskins, President 

Bruce Smith II, Chief 

Business Meeting: Monday, June 13, 2016 

Call to Order, Invocation: 
The regular meeting of No.9 Township Fire & Rescue was called to order on Monday, June 13, 

2016 by President Teri Gaskins at 7:15p.m. The Pledge of Allegiance was then given by all 
present. Roger Wetherington gave the opening prayer. 

Secretary's Report: 
The minutes of the previous meeting were approved as written. 

Treasurer's Report: Presented by Roger Wetherington. 
Roger noted that all bills are currently paid. A copy of the report is on file. 

Benevolent Brotherhood: Presented by Roger Wetherington 
There have been four assessments, plus paperwork for another, Craig Arthur with Station No.6, 

is coming. A Brotherhood meeting will be held in July. 

Building and Grounds: Presented by Glenn Sovinsky 

• An estimate has been received for the construction of the proposed new building at the 

main station. After some discussion Bruce Smith, II made a motion to accept the $121,000 
bid from E&S Steel Contractors. Motion passed. We will take sealed bids for the sale of the 

old building in back of the main station. Bids will be reviewed at the next business meeting. 
The individual(s) purchasing the building will have 30 days for removal. 

• We are currently looking into installing a new security locking system. 

No cleaning bids have been received. 

• The Duke Energy Progress Wi-Fi thermostat control program is still being researched. 

Constitution: 
No report. 

Craven County Firemen's Association: 

• A favorable presentation was given by Gery Boucher, Vice President Craven Community 

College, on the plans for the new training grounds for the Clarks training site. 

• There will not be a July Association meeting. The August meeting will be held at the City of 
New Bern Fire Station on August 3, 2016. 

Finance: 
No report. 

Proud~v Dedicated to the Citizens We Se1ve Since 1968 



Fire Equipment: Presented by Bruce Smith, II 

• Missing piece of equipment, steel K-12 saw. It was originally Station 21's. 

• The light towers for the trucks are still a work in progress. 

• A new piece of equipment has been placed on the boat. 

• Our name is on the list for new air packs. The Department should have them soon. 

• Truck Committee member Patrick Wetherington reported that a bid of $249,800 for a 3,000 
gallon tanker, 1,000 gallon/minute has been received from Midwest Fire. A motion was 
presented by the committee to purchase a new tanker from Midwest Fire and to have it 
replace Tanker 1. Motion passed. 

Publicity: Presented by Tony Gatlin 
Pictures of the sonar training session were taken and will be placed on the City of New 
Bern's social media Web site. Chief Robert Boyd is also posting the pictures on the New 
Bern Fire Department's Web site. You will also be able to view them on our Department's 
Web site soon. 
Blood drive coming up one Sunday in July. Exact date is unknown at this time. 

S.O.G.s: 
No report 

Traffic: 
No report 

Water Supply: 
No report 

Applications for membership: 
None 

Training: Presented by Brian Mullins 
The following is proposed training schedule: 
June 17th: SAR Tech II (NCSARAC, NC Search and Rescue) training being held at Bellarthur 
Volunteer Fire Dept., Greenville, NC. Cost: $50/person Motion made by Bruce Smith, II for 
department to cover cost of training for those wishing to attend. Motion passed. 
June 20th: Extrication 

June 21st: Natural gas training, Piedmont Gas office in Clarks, 6 p.m. meal provided 
June 2ih: CPR training, 6:30 p.m. being conducted by CCC EMS Coordinator Jon Stevens. 
July 18th: Truck-to-Truck training. 

Fire Chiefs Report: Presented by Bruce Smith, II 
No report 
Note: Jason Arthur advised Active 911 software is now available to be place on your Smart 
phone. The new software will monitor/pickup active 911 calls, plus give GPS locations. 

Dedicated to the Citizens We Serve 



Old Business: 

• Switch to Select Bank: Some discussion held, no decision reached. 

• Research is still on-going on trying to purchase the new BINGO balls. 

• The new 40' X 80' shell building: some discussion, no decision reached. 

• Some discussion held on the proposed $690,000 loan to refinance Engine 1, do the new 

building project, and Tanker 3. Some discussion, no decision reached. 

• Report: Ten rooms have been reserved for the State Fire Conference in Charlotte, August 8-

13, 2016. The rooms have been reserved for Thursday and Friday nights. 

New Business: 

• Roger Wetherington: Last year eight new dress uniforms were purchased (4- fire 
department, 4- rescue squad). Motion made by Roger to purchase six additional uniforms 
for the fire department. Motion passed. 

• The new church across the street needs access rights for septic system. They are asking for 

permission to run two lines along the department's property line back to the woods. Roger 
made motion to allow the church to put a 4 inch supply line on the left side, facing building, 

of the department's property line. Motion passed. 

Announcements/Good of the Company: 

• No comments 

A motion to adjourn was made by Bruce Smith, II. Meeting closed at 8:30p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Marsha 0. Daugherty 
Acting Secretary 

Dedicated to the Citizens TVe Serve 



September 9, 2016 

No. 9 Township Fire & Rescue 
3783 Hwy 55 W 
New Bern, N.C. 28562 

Members: 

2300 Center Avenue, Sufte 3 
New Bern, NC 28562 
252.633.0920 

Select Bank & Trust (the "Bank") is pleased to extend a loan in the amount of Four Hundred Twenty
Eight Thousand Two Hundred Dollars ($428,200) (the "Loan") to No. 9 Township Fire & Rescue, (the 
"Borrower") subject to the following terms and conditions. 

Purpose: Loan proceeds shall be used to refinance existing debt with First Citizens Bank and build an 
additional building on existing property owned. 

Interest Rate: Interest rate shall be fixed @3.50% and is based on the loan being tax exempt to Select 
Bank. Any change in the tax exempt status of the fire department could result in the interest rate being 
changed to a taxable equivalent rate for the remainder of the tenn of the loan. 

Fees and Costs: A committnent fee in the amount of$100 is due and payable at closing. In addition, 
Borrower is responsible for payment, at closing, of all legal fees, recording fees, appraisal fees, and other 
costs incurred by the Bank in connection with the Loan. 

Repayment Terms: The Loan shall be repaid in 6 monthly interest payments; followed by 77 monthly 
principal & interest payments of $2483 with a balloon in the 84th month. The loan shall be amortized 
based on a 20 year amortization for the life of the loan. After initial advance at closing, future advances to 
borrower will be based on contractor's draw schedule for the new building being completed. 

Prepayment: None 

Security: The Loan will be secured by a first deed of trust on buildings and land located @3783 NC 
Highway SSW New Bern, N.C. 28562 

Financial Information: During the term of the Loan the following shall be submitted annually in form 
and content acceptable to the Banlc 

a) Borrower's fiscal year end financial statements & tax returns, within 120 days of Borrower's 
fiscal year end. 

b) Borrower agrees to provide documentation prior to closing that they have met the requirements to 
obtain tax exempt financing per guidelines in HR 433 as passed by Congress. 

The Borrower shall also submit such additional financial information as may be reasonably requested by 
the Bank, including but not limited to legal documents (operating agreement), tax ID numbers & proper 
identifications to fully comply with current regulations. 



Additional Requirements: 

Appraisal: Prior to closing, the Bank will require an outside appraisal. The appraisal will be engaged by 
the Bank at the Borrowers' expense. Upon receipt of the appraisal, the appraisal will be reviewed by the 
Bank for satisfactory form and content. Loan amount limited to an 80% loan advance rate or committed 
amount, which ever is less. 

Flood Certification: Prior to closing, the Lender shall receive a flood hazard zone certification from an 
·independent provider. Should the Lender determine that flood insurance is required, the Borrower will 
provide the Bank a fully paid flood insurance policy prior to closing. The flood policy shall be 
satisfactory in all respects to the Lender. The Borrower agrees to keep the loan collateral fully insured for 
flood related perils, subject to Federal maximum policy limits. 

Title Insurance: At closing, the Lender shall be provided with a mortgage commitment or binder of title 
insurance, which shall identify the Lender's Deed of Trust to be a first lien on the real property securing 
the loan. After closing, the Lender shall be provided with a policy of title insurance, which confinns the 
agreed-upon lien position. Both the policy and company issuing the policy shall be satisfactory in all 
respects to the Lender and/or the Lender's counsel. All expenses associated with the title insurance shall 
be the responsibility of the Borrower. 

Hazard Insurance: The Bank will require property and casualty insurance during the term of this loan. 
At closing, a binder will be required listing Select Bank & Trust as "mortgagee,_ 

Banking Relationship: N/A. 

Expiration: This Commitment Letter shall expire, and the Bank shall be under no further obligation to 
make the Loan, unless a copy signed by the Borrower and each Guarantor is returned to the Bank, at or 
before the close of banking hours on September 30, 2016. 

Closing: The Loan must close on or before November 30, 2016. Absent a writtet) extension by the 
Bank, the Banlc shall have no further obligation to make the Loan after that date. The obligations of the 
Bank to close are subject to the satisfaction of all of the terms and conditions of this Commitment Letter 
in a manner satisfactory to Bank. 

Survival: The terms and conditions of the loan set forth herein are not intended to be exhaustive as to the 
provisions that will actually appear in the loan documents. Rather, the terms and conditions set forth 
herein are the key terms relating to the amount, tenn, interest rate, repayment, and collateralization of the 
Loan and the use ofLoan proceeds. Additional provisions will be of the type typically contained in 
Bank's commercial loan documents and will be designed to insure the maximum protection of the Bank 
both in the making of the Loan, the management of the Loan through its term, and repayment of the Loan. 
The Borrower and Guarantors shall satisfy all such other terms and conditions as Bank deems necessary 
to ensure the proper documentation of the Loan, the perfection of the lien and security interests in the 
collateral and compliance with all laws and regulations applicable to Bank, Borrower and/or Guarantor. 

This Commitment Letter and the terms and conditions set forth herein shall survive the closing of the 
Loan. A default under any of the provisions contained in this Commitment Letter shall constitute a 
default under the terms of any other loan document executed in connection with the Loan. Should the 
provisions of any other loan document conflict with this Commitment Letter, the loan documents shall 
prevail. 

We at Select Bank & Trust value your business and appreciate the opportunity to serve you. If you have 
any questions regarding this Commitment Letter, please give me a call. 



Sincerely, 

Select Bank & Trust 

j]_ L1-C?-~~ 
Dennis A. Nichols 
Senior Vice President 

Accepted and agreed this~ day of~ 20 llo. 
No.9 Township Fire & Rescue 



.September 9, 2016 

No. 9 Township Fire & Rescue 
3783 Hwy 55 W 
New Bern, N.C. 28562 

RE: $251,800 commitment letter 

Members: 

2300 Center A venue, Suite 3 
New Bern, NC 28562 
252.633.0920 

Select Bank & Trust Company ("Bank") is pleased to offer to the fire department the following 
loan commitment. The terms of this commitment are as follows and will accompany other 
documentation necessary to execute our commitment. 

Borrower(s): No. 9 Township Fire & Rescue 

Loan Type: Equipment Secured Term Loan 

Loan Amount: $251,800 

Purpose: To finance the purchase of a 2017 Freightliner M2 106 Chassis with 3000 
gallon tank pumper fire truck 

Collateral: A first lien security interest in 2017 Freightliner with 3000 gallon tank
serial number to be provided prior to dosing and a frrst security interest in 
2009 Spartan Pumper fire truck VIN # 4S7AU2D939C070678 

Repayment: 83 consecutive monthly payments of principal and interest in the amount 
of $3390 with 1 final of all unpaid principal plus accrued interest due in 
full at maturity. (Repayment based on a 7 year amortization with at 3.50% 
tax exempt rate.) 

Pricing: A fixed rate of 3.50°/o.Interest rate is based on the loan being tax exempt 
to Select Bank. Any change in the tax exempt status of the fire 
department could result in the interest rate being changed to a taxable 
equivalent rate. 

Commitment Fee: A $1 00 origination fee due at closing. 



Affirmative 
Covenants: 

Insurance: 

Conflicting 
Provisions: 

Customary for a facility of this nature, including, but not limited to: 

(1) On an annual basis, the borrower agrees to provide to tax returns and 
reviewed financial statements to the bank in a timely manner. 

(2) Bonower agrees to provide documentation prior to closing that they 
have tnet the requirements to obtain tax exempt financing per the 
tax exetnpt financing guidelines in HR 4333 as passed by Congress. 

Borrower agrees to keep hazard insurance on the equipment serving as 
collateral for this loan as long as there is an outstanding balance on this 
loan. A binder wil1 be required at closing listing Select Bank and Trust as 
"loss payee." 

If any of the provisions of this commitment letter shall be construed to 
conflict with any terms or provisions contained in the Loan Documents, 
then the Loan Documents shall take priority. 

Thank you again for allowing Select Bank & Trust Cotnpany the opportunity to provide this 
financing commitment. This commitment will expire on September 30, 2016, if not accepted 
prior to that date. Furthermore, if accepted, the loan must close on or before November 30, 
2016. Please do not hesitate to contact me at 252-633-0920 if you have any questions regarding 
this cotnmitment letter. If acceptable, please indicate your acceptance by signing below. 

Sincerely, 

[L 
Dennis A. Nichols 
Senior Vice President 

Accepted this _ _;:_...:;...l!_ __ day of September 2016. 

No.9 Township Fire & Rescue 

Attest-Secretary .) 



Friday, July 08, 2016 

E & S STEEL CONTRACTORS, lNCQ 

PO Number: 1550 Revision #4-July(Eiectric added) 
Submitted: BRUCE SMITH 

Project: #9 TOWNSHIP 
Location: Bridgeton NC 

E & S Steel Contractors, Inc. agrees to provide all tools, labor & equipment for the following project: 

SUPPLY & ERECT A 40' X 80' X 16/12'8" PREFAB METAL BLDG- ENGINERRING & PERMITS 
6" INSULATION IN ROOF 
4" INSULATION IN WALLS 
(4) 14' X 14' OHD 
(1} 8' X 8' OHD 
(2) 3070 WALKDOORS 
GUTTERS TRIM & DOWNSPOUTS 
LOFT-WOOD FRAMED 20'X20' LOFT W/STAIRS 
6" MONOLITHIC SLAB UNDER BUILDING W/ 4DRAINS 
APPROXIMATELY 140' FRENCH DRAIN 
FURNISH LABOR AND MATERIAL TO INSTALL:- ONE (1} 200A PANEL (WILL BE FED BY EXISTING 100A FEEDER)
FLUORESCENT LIGHTS IN BAY AREAS, OVER AND UNDER LOFT- THREE (3) FLOOD LIGHTS- TWO (2) EXTERIOR WALL 
LIGHTS BY MAN DOORS- POWER TO FOUR (4) GARAGE DOOR OPERATORS- FOUR (4} CORD DROPS FROM CEILING 
FOR TRUCKS- DUPLEX RECEPTACLES AROUND INTERIOR OF BUILDING ON COLUMN 
*ACCURATE OIL SEPARATOR PRICE CAN NOT BE BID UNTIL ENGINEER DRAWS DRAWINGS & ASSESSES NEEDS 
EXCLUSIONS- HVAC, PLUMBING AND ANYTHING NOT MENTIONED ABOVE 
Payment Terms: 
$14,000.00 due upon acceptance and ordering of building 
$31,600.00 due upon delivery of building 
Remainder billed on % of completion and due within 15days of Invoice 

NOTE: We will have to reprice Bldg at the time of actual order-

Please Sign and Return upon Acceptance 

Date: 

Print Name & Title: 

X 

Corporate 
P.O. Box767 

Castle Hayne, NC 28429 
(910) 602-7749 [Direct] 
(910} 602-7751 [Fax] 

P.O. Box 1551 

New Bern, NC 28560 
(252) 633-5160 [Direct] 

(252} 635-6674 [Fax] 

Date: 7-8-16 

Print Name & Title: Mellissa Ellis VP 

X 

I Total Price 
I 121, o6o.oo 

I 



f ~ ., I 1 1~
-

iO
 

I 
-::

 

-· 
4 

'*
~ 

)>
ii!

( 

1. ~ fit
 

.....
. 
~
 .... y..

 - .c.. 
I j l ~
-

f l H
-

' ! 

' 
~
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
~
.
,
~
-
-
-
-
-
-
·
-
-
-
-
-
-
;
~
-
-
-
-

\"?
 

1 I 
H

 

--·
--~

·-~
;;:

---
---

-· 
----

----
--,.

. 
~-
-~
--
--
--
--
--
~-
:-
--
··
-·
-·
··
--
--
-·
--
-

·-
--

.. -
-·

-·
-·

 ..
 

"> 

f~;
 

l.f
l, 

(!
'>

 

i 
N

 
1

-
0 

1 
Ol 

-
I 

.... 
0 

0 
~ 

~+
 

i ! j ' l I I IN
 lo ! o:
 

I ~ 
g~ 

. 
-

i 

-





MIDWEST FIREfM 

ALL-p-o-4} Su-~ 3000 

FD/G 20J-~ 

T vLA-VIv :f:l= 2 7 57 



All Poly Series 
POL YPROPYLENE-"T" Style Tanker 

Specifications 

Section 01: 

Section 02: 

Section 03: 

Section 04: 

Section 05: 

Section 06: 

Section 07: 

Section 08: 

Section 09: 

Section 10: 

Section 11: 

Section 12: 

Section 13: 

Section 14: 

Section 15: 

Section 17: 

Section 18: 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Booster Tank 

Hydrant Fills and Tank Level 

Dump Valves and Chutes 

Portable Tank Carrier 

Body and Components 

Body Compartments 

Running Boards] Catwalks] and Rear Step 

Grab Rails and Foot Steps 

Electrical Equipment 

Emergency Siren and Lighting Equipment 

Painting] Lettering] Striping] and Signs 

Corrosion Protection and Mud Flaps 

Pump and Plumbing 

Hose Trays] Cross Lays] and Pre-connects 

Equipment Storage and Mounting 

Chassis Accessories 

Loose Equipment 



Section 19: Chassis 



SECTION 1: BOOSTER TANK 
1.00 .,T, Tank with a lifetime Warranty from Its Manufacturer 
The All-Poly Series models feature a polypropylene "T" style tank. The top of this tank may be 

used as a hose bed, with optional dividers (see section 14). Hose beds stretch the full width and 

full length of the tank. 

"T"-style tank fabricated from non-corrosive, stress-relieved virgin copolymer polypropylene 

thermoplastic material. All exterior tank joints and seams are extrusion welded. All welds 

conform to DVS and AWS standards. All joints, seams, and welds tested for integrity and leaks 

and are certified to be free from defects. The top of the tank is white with a textured finish and 

is fitted with removable lifting eyes designed with a 3-to-1 safety factor to facilitate easy 

removal 

The upper rear of the tank has a transverse internal bulkhead isolated from the water carrying 

portion of the tank. This area may be used for wiring connections and for installing lights and 

grab handles. The use of external blocks for mounting equipment will be kept to a minimum 

providing a pleasant appearance. Wire tubes will be installed inside the tank, originating in the 

transverse bulkhead and terminating at the bottom of the tank. Wires for lights and equipment 

will not be visible from the outside of the tank. 

The material thickness will be dependent upon its function. The sides, top and ends will be 3/4" 

(. 75) thick. The baffles and fill tower will be 3/8 to 1/2" (.50) thick. 

The transverse swash partitions extend approximately 4" off the floor to just under the cover. 

The longitude swash partitions extend from the floor to the tank through the cover to allow for 

positive welding and maximum integrity. All partitions are equipped with vent and air holes to 

permit movement of air and water between compartments. The partitions are designed to 

provide maximum water flow. All swash partitions interlock with one another and are welded 

to each other as well to the walls of the tank. This baffling system will be fully compliant with 

NFPA and the DOT regulations. 

3" minimum removable clean out plug at bottom rear and bottom front of the tank. 

Tank fill couplings backed with flow deflectors to disperse the stream of water entering the 

tank, and capable of withstanding sustained fill rates of up to 1.000 G.P.M. at 100 PSI 

maximum. 

All auxiliary outlets and inlets must meet NFPA 1900 guidelines in effect at the time of 

manufacture. 



1.01 Tank Size 
1.01.05 All-POLY 3000 gallon 

1 .. 02 Rear Fill Tower 
Tank has an overhead fill tower with lid, located at the rear center of tank. Fill tower is 

constructed of 1/211 polypropylene with minimum dimensions of 1611 square. The tower has a 

1/411 removable Poly screen and a polypropylene hinged-type cover. The vent overflow is a 

minimum of schedule 40 Poly pipe with a minima II.D. of 611 that is designed to run through the 

tank. 

SECTION 2: HYDRANT FILLS AND TANK LEVEL 

2.00 Street Side Hydrant Fills 
Hydrant fills provided at the rear of the apparatus are all equipped with an integral 30-degree 

elbow and a %" bleeder valve. All direct fills will be equipped with a valve (butterfly for valves 

greater than 4"), cap, and chain. (Cap holder for 3" and below) 

2.00.01 Street Side 2 ¥2" NST 

2 .. 02 Tank Level Gauge 
• Pressure transducer mounted on the outside of the tank in an easily accessible area. 

Sealed foam tanks {if so equipped) will require zero pressure vacuum vents. 

• Super bright LED display viewable from 180 degrees with a visual indication at multiple 
accurate levels. 

• Weather resistant connectors to connect to the digital display, the pressure transducer, 
and the apparatus power. Additional displays are easily integrated and will receive data 
from the same source as the Master Display; no additional transducers required. 

• Tank level gauge indicates the liquid level on easy to read LED display. 

2.02.01.99 One (1) Innovative Controls Sl Plus Series 14 Tank Level Gauge 
2.02.01.01.99 Installed on the street side pump panel. -Tanker/Pumper 

Master 
2.02.01.03.99 

2.02.01.05.99 

2.02.01.06.99 

Monster installed at the upper front street side of tank. -
Additional 
Monster installed at the upper front curb side of tank. -
Additional 
Monster installed at the upper rear curb side. -Additional 

2.03 Spanner Wrenches 
One adjustable hydrant wrench and two (2) spanner wrenches with holder. 



2.03.99 Custom Location <> 

SECTION 3: DUMP VALVES AND CHUTES 
All dump valves will be Newton 1011 square stainless steel Kwick-Dump Gate style (full flow). Flip 

chutes and telescopic chutes to be Stainless steel. For improved water flow, the dump valve is 

attached directly to the tank and not by use of a rear manifold system. 

3.00 Manual Dump Valves 
Manual dump valves will have a locking control handle. 

3.00.01 
3.00.03 
3.00.04 

12" flip chute installed on the rear dump valve. 
36" telescoping chute installed on street side dump valve. 
36" telescoping chute installed on curb side dump valve. 

SECTION 4: PORTABLE TANK CARRIER 
4.02 Electric Tip-down Portable Tank Carrier 
One (1) Electric Zico Model 3098 portable tank carrier for loading/unloading of a folding water 

tank located above the catwalk and designed to fold down over the body side. The carrier is 

equipped with amber flashing lights located on the front and rear which will illuminate when 

not in the stowed position. A red "Carrier down 11 flashing LED warning light visible to the driver 

will illuminate when the portable tank carrier is not in the stowed position. 

4.02.08 3000 gallons, curb side 

4.05 Electric Carrier Enclosure Options 
4.05.01.99 Electric Tip-Down portable tank carrier enclosed in graphic 

covered smooth aluminum. 

4.06 Portable Tank 
Foi-Da-Tank® portable tank with frame. The tank liner is constructed of nylon -coated material/ 

23 oz. side walls and a 30 oz. floor with handles installed in the floor for ease of folding. All 

portable tanks will have two outlets. The portable tank will be red in color and furnished with a 

capacity of: 



4.06.08 3000 Gallons, Aluminum Frame (159x29) 

SECTION 5: BODY AND COMPONENTS 
Sub-frame 
Construction includes a dedicated body sub-frame which is: 

• Integral to the tank cradle and constructed using extruded .25" thick aluminum tubing. 

• Designed to support the body structure and to provide maximum support for the weight 

of the body and all stored equipment. 

Body 
• The body will be attached to the sub-frame using rigid fasteners isolated by fitted 

rubber bushings. 

• The mounting system provides secure attachment of the body to the sub-frame while 

allowing sufficient range of movement between the two assemblies. 

• The body will be enclosed on all sides and incorporate closed wheel wells and finished 

storage compartments. 

• Stainless steel corner guards to protect from damage on road and fire scene. 

• Front lower vertical surface of body protected with aluminum Tread-brite. 

Tank 
• The tank is held front and rear as well as side-to-side by additional cradle structures to 

prevent the tank from shifting during vehicle operation. 

• The tank is affixed to the cradle utilizing hat channel mounting brackets constructed of 

%" thick stainless steel. The channels are mounted beneath the center of the tank 

before and after the cross members of the cradle. The channel is surrounding these 

members and is bolted directly to the bottom of the tank thereby securing the tank to 

the cradle. 

• This mounting system provides a free-floating connection of the tank to the cradle 

which allows the chassis frame's normal movement and twist to introduce no stress 

upon the tank or body. 

Fenders 
• Fenders will be integral with the side of the body. 

• Fender wells are constructed with full circular copolymer polypropylene thermoplastic 

inner liners for ease of cleaning and maintenance. 



Materials 
• The entire body is fabricated from non-corrosive, stress-relieved virgin copolymer 

polypropylene thermoplastic material. 

• All exterior body joints and seams are extrusion welded. 

• All welds will conform to DVS and AWS standards. 

• All joints, seams, and welds will be tested for integrity and are certified to be free from 

defects. 

• All joints and are 100 percent welded inside and out; no skip welding is permitted. 

THE BODY WILL CARRY A LIFETIME WARRANTY FROM ITS MANUFACTURER 

5.00 Fenderettes 
Bright polished aluminum fenderettes are installed on the wheel wells to prevent splash and 

enhance appearance. The fenderettes extend approximately 111 beyond the body side and are 

designed to be replaced. All fasteners will not be exposed to the exterior of the fenderettes or 

body. 

5.01 Rub Rail 
The bottom edge of the entire apparatus will have an aluminum rub-rail installed to give the 

body, pump house, and rear step a pleasing appearance. The rub-rail is replaceable, made from 

solid extruded aluminum and features a reflective stripe at the rail center. 

5.02 Tow Eye 
The tow eye will have a 3 Yz" thru hole, made from 1" thick A36 cadmium plated steel and 

bolted directly to the frame with 8 cadmium plated bolts. 

5.02.01 

5.03 Cradle 

Tow eye located ahead and below the rear step on curb 
side. 

An all-aluminum cradle is engineered and constructed to connect the chassis frame with the 

copolymer tank and body, and is constructed using extruded aluminum tubing .25" thick and 

extruded aluminum flats .375" thick. Cradle cross members are spaced to restrict unsupported 

portions of the tank between cross members to a maximum of 550/} squared. There are 

cushioned rubber extrusions placed over all tank support areas to isolate the tank from the 

aluminum cradle. 



SECTION 6: BODY COMPARTMENTS 
6.00 Street Side Compartments 
• A sweep-out style compartment provided on the street or curb side, integral to the 

body, constructed using white copolymer material. 

• Each compartment will have a R-0-M anodized aluminum roll-up door, door activated 

LED compartment lights, corrosion resistant vents, black Turtle Tile plastic dry decking, 

and floor drains. 

• Compartments at wheel height or below (located ahead or behind rear wheels) are 26" 

deep. 

• Full height compartments have stepped depth: 13" above the wheel wells and 26" at 

wheel height or below. 

• Compartments located above the wheel wells are 13" deep. 

6.00.03 Street Side Front Full Height Compartment 
Full height compartment is located on the street side, ahead of the rear wheels. Approximate 

inside dimensions are 61" wide by 58" tall by 26" by 13" deep. 

6.00.06 Street Side Over Wheel Double Compartment 
Over wheel compartments are located on the street side, above the rear wheels. Approximate 

inside dimensions each are 60" wide by 34" tall by 13" deep. 

6.01 Curb Side Compartments 
• A sweep-out style compartment provided on the street or curb side, integral to the 

body, constructed using white copolymer material. 

• Each compartment will have a R-0-M anodized aluminum roll-up door, door activated 

LED compartment lights, corrosion resistant vents, black Turtle Tile plastic dry decking, 

and floor drains. 

• Compartments at wheel height or below (located ahead or behind rear wheels) are 26" 

deep. 

6.01.01 Curb Side Front low Side Compartment 
Standard Compartment is located on the curb side, ahead of the rear wheels. Approximate 

inside dimensions are 61" wide by 3411 tall by 26"deep. 



6.02 Compartment Options 

6.02.11 SCBA Spare Bottle Holders 
SCBA bottle holders located in the rear wheel well area. Cylinders held in place with 8" 

diameter holders with a stainless steel hinged door with a positive latch. Door includes a seal 

for increased protection against weather elements. 

6.02.11.02 
6.02.11.03 

Between Tandem Wheels Front Side, Street Side 
Between Tandem Wheels Rear Side, Street Side 

SECTION 7: RUNNING BOARDS, CATWALKS, AND 
REAR STEP 
7.00 Running Boards 
A 12" wide running board is located at the base of the pump house and is made from 

Diamondback® deck plate and includes a replaceable extruded aluminum rub rail. 

7.01 Catwalk 
Catwalks are located above the street and curb side compartments, made of polished 

aluminum Tread-Brite and bent at a 30-degree angle to provide a drip rail. 

7.02 Rear Step 
The 12" deep rear step is NFPA compliant and made of top of the line Diamondback® extruded 

aluminum deck plate with a 7" tall kick plate. Rounded polished aluminum castings installed on 

the corners of the step. 

SECTION 8: GRAB RAILS AND FOOT STEPS 
8.00 Grabs Rails 
The grab rails are made of 1% '' diameter extruded aluminum tubing with knurled finish and 

chrome plated stanchion brackets. 

8.00.01.99 Tank Grab Rails 
There are one {1) vertical grab rails provided at the rear curb side, and one (1) horizontal grab 

rail located at the rear, on the curb side. The grab rail is designed to correlate with the rear 

tank grab rail, providing a secure holding place when access the rear catwalk. 

8.00.03 Control Panel Grab Rails 
There are two (2) horizontal grab rails provided, one on each side, above the pump control 

panels, and below the cross lays for ease of loading and unloading the hose cross lay. 



8.00.04.99 Tank Grab Rail - Street side 
There is one {1) grab rail located on street side of lockers on the catwalk in the upper front 

corner for ease of loading and unloading hose cross lays. 

8.00.05 Tank Grab Rail -Curb side 
There is one (1) grab rail located on curb side of tank in the upper front corner of tank for ease 

of loading and unloading hose cross lays. 

8.01.99 Folding Access Steps 
Per NFPA 1901 standards, there is one (1) large chrome-plated illuminated folding steps 

provided at the rear, curb side for access to the catwalk area. The steps are a minimum of 35" 
square with polished stainless steel kick-plates. Other locations available below. 

8.01.02 Front Folding Steps - Street side 
Large chrome plated illuminated folding steps are provided at the front on the street side, for 

access to the catwalk area. The steps are a minimum of 35 11 square with polished stainless steel 

kick-plate. 

8.01.02.03 Quantity three {3} 

8.01.03 Front Folding Steps - Curb side 
Large chrome plated illuminated folding steps provided at the front on the curb side, for access 

to the catwalk area. The steps are a minimum of 35" square with polished stainless steel kick

plate. 

8.01.03.01 Quantity one (1) 

8.02 Access ladders 

8.02.01 Folding Hose Bed Access ladder - Street side 
A folding hose bed ladder installed on the street side rear of the apparatus for access to the 

hose bed area. The ladder folds down below the rear step and be accessible from the ground. 

The heavy duty constructed all aluminum ladder will have gas assisting struts with cast 

aluminum steps approximately 14" apart. 

SECTION 9: ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT 
9.00 Electrica I System 
• The electrical system will utilize Classl Inc. ES-Key™ technology/ UltraView™ displays 

and 1Touch switch modules, where applicable. 

• The apparatus is equipped with a Class 1 ES-Key Management System for controlling 

electrical system devices. This management system is capable of performing load 

management functions, system switching/ monitoring and reporting/ and be fully 



programmable for a standardized electrical system utilizing the ES-Key Professional 

software p rog ram. 

• The ES-Key system utilizes a Controller Area Network (J1939) protocol to provide 

multiplexed control signals for "real time" operation. The system consists of a main 

control module (Universal System Manager or Supernode II) and the appropriate 

combination of Power Distribution Module(s) (PDM), Switch Input Module(s) {SIMt and 

other 1/0 modules as required for the application. 

• Optional system enhancements may include the UltraView™ 700 display, the UltraView 

450 display and 1 Touch switch modules for increased graphic user interface. 

• Supernode II™ 

The apparatus is equipped with a Class1 ES-Key™ system with a Supernode II™ high 

density input output node. The Supernode II™ has (24} inputs, (24) outputs, a Universal 

System Manager, a data logger/ programmable special utilities, and select J1939 engine 

and drive train message reception with ES-Key™ 1/0 association. It must be sealed to IP-

67 and have integrated power connections. 

The Supernode™ has (18) positive and (6) negative outputs. Each positive output is 

capable of 13 amps continuous duty. The negative outputs are capable of 2 amps 

continuous duty. Supernode II™ outputs contain features such as digital circuit breaker/ 

flash capability, PWM capability and open load detection. 

The Supernode II™ special utility functions include timers (delay on/off and one shot), 

counters, bi-stable switches, and select J1939 broadcast messages. The Supernode II™ 

has an integrated USB port to allow for direct connection to the ES-Key system without 

additional interface devices. 

The Supernode II™ has an integrated Load Manager. The Load Manager sequencer 

assures that loads are applied and removed gradually, thus eliminating the possibility of 

inducing failures in the vehicle's equipment. 

The load manager is a precision/ solid state controller which sequentially switches "ON" 

multiple circuits at 1/2 second intervals. Individual switches enable the user (Driver) to 

select output "ON or "OFF" status, at any time. The sequencer is initiated by the 

"Emergency Master11 switch. The sequencer priority is programmed based on option 

content. 

The aforementioned Load Manager monitors the vehicles battery voltage. Loads may be 

shed at any voltage at one tenth of volt increments. A low voltage warning may be set at 

any set point (usually 11.5 volts). The load manager can shed any output that is 

controlled by the system (there is no limit to the number of loads that may be managed 

by the network}. The load shed priority is set by the circuit significance, followed closely 

by circuit draw. The Load Manager sheds loads until the voltage level begins to rise. 



• Voltage Monitor: A voltage monitor is built into the ES-Key electrical system. It activates 

a warning when the alternator output voltage falls below any desired voltage (usually 

11.5 volts). 

• Ultra View™ 700 Display 

The apparatus is equipped with the UltraView™ 700 display (UV700). The UV700 is a 7 

inch, full color LCD display, with (14) buttons and touch screen capability with (2) J1939 

CAN Bus connections and {3) NTSC/PAL video inputs. It is bonded for direct sunlight 

viewing, sealed to IP67 and mounted in either the flush, pedestal or rear-mount 

position. 

The UV700's switches is configured to allow for the control of emergency master and 

non-emergency master functions and are completely configurable via the ES-Key™ 

Professional software. Switches are set to act as momentary/ maintained or three-way 

switches without any physical hardware change. All switches and or indicators may be 

configured as touch screen inputs into the ES-Key™ system. The (14) buttons are blue 

LED backlit. 

• 1Touch Switch Modules 

The apparatus is equipped with the appropriate quantity of 1Touch switch modules for 

enhanced device activation. The 1Touch switch module has a 4-button, configuration to 

accommodate specific apparatus requirements. Individual switches are backlit with 

multiple colored and textured switch caps and printable labels. Switch panels are sealed 

to IP67 and have dual LED indicators. Each switch position1
S back light may be 

individually controlled allowing for the specific switch position to be used as an 

indicator. Each switch pair can be configured to momentary, maintained, toggle or a 

dimmer. Panels can be included in network dimming. 

9.01 lighting Details 
• A total of nine (9) LED clearance lights and seven (7) red LED lights installed at the rear. 

• Two (2) amber LED lights are installed on the front street and curb sides. 

• Reflectors are installed per DOT specifications. 

• A red warning light visible to the driver in the chassis cab that illuminates when a 

compartment door is ajar/open. 

• An illuminated license plate bracket installed at rear. 



9.02 DOT Lighting 

9.02.01 Quad-cluster Tail Light Package 
Two (2} LED Quad-Cluster combination red LED stop/tai11 LED backup light/ amber LED arrow 

type turn signal/ and red LED warning light, installed at the rear. Light assemblies provided in 

chrome plated housing. 

9.02.01.01.99 Whelen M6 Series Quad-Cluster 

9 .. 02.03 Side Mount Turn Signals 
LED side-mounted DOT approved turn signal repeaters, mounted between the rear wheels on 

the body side to provide visible lateral turn warning. 

9.04 Camera System 

9.04.01 Rear view camera 
One (1} rear view camera system installed. Camera system includes a wide-angle rear mounted 

camera and 7" monitor. 

9.04.01.02.99 Rear View Safety® wireless camera system 

SECTION lO:EMERGENCY 
EQUIPMENT 

SIREN 

10.00 Emergency Lighting Control Center 

AND LIGHTING 

All accessory and emergency lighting is controlled at a master control center in the cab. 

The master control center: 

Controls all warning lights and scene lights 

Includes the 11 M aster On" and "Open Door" indicator lights 

Contains lighted rocker switches 

Rated "heavy duty" to service the maximum imposed electrica !load. 

Features lighted identification plates on a non-glare panel face that clearly identify each 

switch and its function. 

There is a backup alarm installed that is energized automatically when vehicle is placed in 

reverse. 

All warning packages are fully NFPA compliant and certified by the lighting component 

manufacturer to meet all requirements. 



10.01 light Bars: 
The light bar is mounted on the cab roof. 

10.01.01.99 Whelen Model Freedom IV Series light bar 
Whelen model Freedom IV, Super-LED, 55" long. Covers front and front side zones. The light 

bar has four {4) red linear corner modules, eight {8) red forward facing modules and one (1) 

alley light on the street and curb side. 

10.02 

10.02.01 

Sirens: 

Whelen Siren 
Whelen model 295SLSA1 Siren 200 watt, six (6) function Class A electronic siren, mounted in 

the chassis cab in a location convenient to the driver. The electronic siren includes full function, 

17 Scan-Lock siren tones, and hard wired microphone. The siren control is lighted for easy night 

operation. Available with three {3) siren mounting locations. 

10.02.01.02 Cast Products siren speaker flush mounted street side 

10.04.99 lower Level lights 

10.04.03.99 Front/Rear Whelen M6 Series 
Two (2) Whelen M6 series lights mounted to the grill of the chassis and two {2) mounted on the 

rear of the body in the quad-cluster with a chrome trim ring. 

10.04.03.01.99 Front/Rear Flashers, Red, M6 Series 

10.05 Intersection lights 
All lights mounted above 18" from the ground, and no higher than 60", (preferably centered in 

the reflective striping if present). One (1) positioned as far forward on the hood as possible, 

one {1) positioned behind the cab but in front of the rear wheels if three (3) lights per side are 

requested, and one (1) positioned as close to the rear of the truck as practical. Lights will 

include a chrome bezel. 

10.05.02.99 Intersection, Red, M6 Series, Three (3) each side 

10.06.99 Upper level Warning lights 

10.06.04.99 Whelen M9V2R 
Six (6) Whelen model M9V2R combination scene/flashers with red lenses covers the 

upper rear and upper side zones. Two {2) lights will be mounted on the street side, two 

(2) lights will be mounted on the curb side, and two (2) lights will be mounted on the 

rear. Each light head has an integrated scene light certified to AMD 024 Perimeter 

Illumination Spec. 

Lights are controlled from individual switches on the control center located in the 

chassis cab. 



10.07.05 Automatic Reverse Scene Wiring 
Rear scene lights will be wired to illuminate when chassis is placed in reverse. 

10.07.06 Two (2) Front Corner Flood lights 
There are two (2) Whelen PFPl flood lights mounted on the front street and curb hose bed. 

10.09 Ground lights 

10.09.01 Four (4) ground lights 
There are four {4} LED ground lights installed to illuminate the area below the apparatus. Two 

(2) lights are installed below the front body, and two (2) lights are installed below the rear step 

area. Grounds lights will be activated when parking brake is applied. 

SECTION ll:PAINTING, LETTERING, STRIPING, AND 
SIGNS 

11.00 Painting process 
The entire tank, body, and components will be washed, sanded, prepped for primer, cleaned 

and primed with PPG urethane primer filler. The body will be hand sanded and color match 

painted using a PPG Deltron base coat/clear coat paint. After paint is applied and properly 

cured the apparatus will be color sanded and buffed to a high gloss. The paint process is 

approved by PPG. 

A two (2) ounce container of matching touch-up paint, with applicator brush, will be supplied 

for each color of the finished apparatus. 

11.00.01 Color Matched Red 
11.00.01.04 Color Matched Red, 3000 gallon 

10-YEAR WARRANTY ON PAINTED BODY PARTS 

11.01 ID plate 
There is a permanent plate located in the center top chassis cab with the following information: 

• Quantity and type of fluids used in the vehicle. This plate includes: 

o Engine oil, quantity. 
o Engine coolant, quantity. 
o Chassis transmission fluid, quantity. 

o Pump transmission fluid, quantity. 
o Drive axle lubrication fluid, quantity. 
o Air conditioning refrigerant, quantity. 
o Air conditioning lubrication oil, quantity. 
o Power steering fluid, quantity. 
o Front and rear cold tire pressure 



o Number of personnel the vehicle is designed to carry located in an area visible to the 
driver. 

o Height and length of the vehicle in feet and inches 
o Gross vehicle weight rating {GVWR) in pounds 

11.03 Gold leaf vinyl lettering with a black shadow 
11.03.01 Provided on the chassis doors. 
11.03.03 Provided for the customer unit number on the street and 

curb side chassis fenders. 

11.05 Reflective striping 
The apparatus body and chassis will have a reflective stripe on each side and the front per NFPA 

1901 standards. 

11.05.01 4 n wide white reflective stripe with a 1 n wide white 
reflective stripe spaced approximately 1/2" above. 

11.05.01.02 Tandem Axle 
11.05.03 White reflective tape inside chassis doors- Per NFPA 1901 

standards any door designed to allow persons to enter or 
exit has a minimum of 96 square inches of retro-reflective 
material affixed to the inside of the door. 

11.06 

11.06.04 

Rear Chevron 

Diamond Grade Chevron 100% 
Per NFPA 1901 standards, 100 percent of the rear will include red and fluorescent yellow/green 

diamond grade chevron retro-reflective striping installed, with each stripe a minimum of 6" 
wide. 

SECTION 12:CORROSION PROTECTION AND MUD 
FLAPS 

12.00 Corrosion Protection 
The PT2 Series All-Poly body has a number of features which prevent corrosion. 

• All fasteners are stainless steel. 

• All fasteners which are used in aluminum are plated with Magnaguard 560 to prevent 

galvanic corrosion resulting from dissimilar metals. 

• All contacts of dissimilar metals are insulated with 3M products to prevent galvanic 

corrosion. 

• Rub rails are Type II bright dip anodized. 



• Tow rings are cadmium plated steel. 

• The Poly body material eliminates the need for undercoating and sprayed on coating 

inside storage lockers. 

• The Poly body material is non corrosive and is frequently used for storing acids. 

• The Poly body material eliminates many possibilities of dissimilar metal contact caused 

by galvanic reaction. 

• The pump house frame is made from 304 series Stainless steel which resists corrosion 

better than aluminum. 

• All seams are 100% welded inside and outside, eliminating rust between panel flanges. 

12.01 Mud Flaps 
There are two mud flaps installed behind the rear wheels. 

• The mud flaps are% inch thick black rubber. 

• The bottom of the mud flap is fitted with chrome weights. 

SECTION 13:PUMP AND PLUMBING 
13.00 Pump House 

13.00.01 Side Control Pump House 
The pump compartment features: 

• The superstructure frame is made from .125" wall X 2.00" square type 304 brushed 4B 

finish stainless steel tubing. 

• The front and a portion of the rear of the pump compartment is made from type 304 

brushed 4B finish stainless steel sheets to enclose the perimeter of the water pump. 

• The street and curb sides of the pump compartment are equipped with side running 

boards. The running boards extend along the width of the pump compartment from the 

rear of the chassis cab to the forward end of the body module. The running boards are 

constructed of Diamondback® deck plate. 

• Running boards include extruded aluminum rub rail extending the length of the running 

boards. 

• The step surfaces are in compliance to applicable sections of NFPA 1901 requirements. 

13.00.01.03 Pump House 3611 wide 

13.03 PTO Driven Pumps 
PTO Pumps have the following standard features: 



• All PTO driven pumps have pump-and-roll capability. 
• Helical design and precision-cut gears to reduce noise and minimize wear 

• Double seal ring design solid bronze impeller 
• Stainless steel pump shaft 

• Maintenance free mechanical seal 
• The street and curb side pump panels and access doors are constructed entirely of 

aluminum and be covered with black protective material. 
• The pump compartment has full width vertically hinged access doors located on the 

upper portion of the street and curb side pump compartment. 

• A latch is furnished to hold the doors closed and have a retainer attached to prevent 

over extension of the opened door. 
• The pump operator panels are to be completely "bolted" or hinged in place for ease of 

removal. 

• A full panel width LED light hood is provided to illuminate the street and curb side pump 
panels. A service light is provided to illuminate the interior of the pump compartment. 

Lights are controlled by the operator's panel light switch. 
• The operator's panel include the following gauges: 

o Fire Research "Pump Boss 400 Series Auto Governor" 

• Features: 
o Stainless steel plumbing 

Discharge pressure in PSI. 

o Pump adjustment back idle. 
o Engine monitoring of oil pressure, water temperature, battery voltage, and 

engine RPM. 

o Preset function for instant and reliable operation. 
o Overheat pump protection system. 
o ({Innovative Controls" 2 1/2" 400# liquid filled stainless steel individual discharge 

pressure gauges and control handles. 
o One (1) 3 1/2" Master Discharge Gauge and one {1) 3 1/2" Master Pump intake 

gauge. 

o Color-coded pump panel identification labels are provided for all gauges, 

controls, connections, switches, inlets, and outlets. 
o The intakes have a removable strainer provided and chrome plated caps. 
o Pump shift is electric operated and incorporates standard automotive shifting 

mechanism for ease of maintenance. 
o The pump shift switch is mounted in the cab and identified as 11 PTO 

Engagement". The pump shift assembly includes an indicating light to show 

when the PTO has been engaged. 
o A master manifold type drain valve is provided with all pump drains connected 

to it and operate from the pump operators panel so the entire pump system may 

be drained by a single control. 
o Per NFPA 1901 standards there shall be pump system test ports mounted on the 

pump panel. 



o All discharges and pre-connects with an 1 %"or larger valve, per NFPA 1901 

standards, shall have drains or bleeder valves, having a minimum %11 pipe thread 
connection, for bleeding off pressure from the hose connection to the outlet. 

o Per NFPA 1901 standards there shall be a suction relief valve installed on the 

intake sides of the pump, terminated with a NST male threads. 

o A 411 tank to pump line provided from the water tank to the pump. The line has a 
3" Elkhart Unibody swing out valve with PVC. The flex connections installed 

between the pump and water tank give the plumbing system flex, thus 
minimizing stress on the line. The valve is controlled by a 11tee 11 handle control 

provided on the pump panel. 

13.03.09 Hale MBP 1000 PTO Pump 
• Pump Ratings: 1000 GPM @ 150 PSI 

13.05 

13.05.01 

700 GPM @ 200 PSI 

500 GPM @ 250 PSI 

Primer Pump Options 

Rotary Vane Primer Pump 
The rotary vane primer is a 12-volt electric, positive displacement, rotary vane type, oil-less 

primer for 20' to 30' suction lifts. Priming system includes a bronze push-pull valve with electric 

switch. 

13.06 Suction Intakes 
On all pumps, an intake suction relief shall be provided per NFPA 1901 standards. It will be 

terminated with a 2 %" NST male adapter. 

13.06.01 2 1/2" Gated Intakes 
Each intake consists of a 2 % 11 NST female chrome plated swivel intake located on the pump 

panel. The intake has a 2% "valve, swivel adapter with screen, chrome plated plug and chain. 

13. 06.0 1. 01 One {1) intake, street side 

13.06.02 Non-Gated Master Intakes 
Master intakes are plumbed out both sides of the pump house and capped with a chrome long 

handled cap. 

13.06.02.03 Two (2) 611 intakes 

13.07 Discharges 
Discharges include: 

• Tee Handle Control 
• "Innovative Controls" 2 %" 400 PSI Liquid Filled Stainless Pressure Gauge 
• 30 Degree Elbow, cap and chain 



13.07.01 Side Control Pump Panel Discharges 
13.07.01.02 Two (2) 2 lf2~~ Discharges, Street Side 
13.07.01.04 Two (2) 2 ¥2 11 Discharge, Curb Side 

13.09 

13.09.01 

Tank Fill 

Tank Fill Valve 2" 
A 211 tank fill/pump re-circulating line provided from the pump to the water tank, with a 2" 

valve and a 2" high-pressure flexible hose. 

13.09.03 Tank to Pump 3" 
A 3" tank to pump line provided from the water tank to the pump, with a 3'' valve and tee 

handle controls, and 4" plumbing with flexible connection. 

SECTION 14: HOSE TRAYS, PRE-CONNECTS AND 
CROSS LAYS 

14.08 Hose cross lay 
• The hose cross-lay provides an area for pre-connected hose cross-lays and/or hose storage. 

• The cross-lay is constructed of a 1" thick polypropylene/polyethylene floor designed to 

provide drainage and ventilation to the cross lay area. 
• Front and rear are constructed of 3/1611 aluminum. 

14.08.01 Hose cross lay above Side Control Pump 

14.09 Pre-connected cross lays 
• Cross lay is pre-connected via NST swivel male gated with a ba II valve. 
• Pre-connect has a /{Innovative Controls" 2% 11 400psi liquid filled stainless steel individual 

pressure gauge and control handle. 

14.09.02 Two (2) 1 1/2 " NST male pre-connects, 2" valve 

14.10 

14.10.02 

Cross-Lay Options 

Two Cross Lay Dividers 
Hose cross-lay is equipped with two adjustable dividers constructed of 3/16" aluminum. 

14.10.04 Cross Lay Vinyl Cover 
Heavy-duty flame retardant black vinyl cover with mesh ends is supplied and custom fitted to 

the apparatus cross lay. The cover is attached with shock cord to retain the cover during travel 

as required by NFPA. 

14.10.04.01 Black Crosslay Cover 



14.11 Hose bed 
Hose bed runs the full length and width of the tank, and is approximately 10" tall to 

accommodate NFPA hose loads. The floor of the hose bed is grooved to allow the loaded hose 

to drain and provide ventilation. The floor is fabricated from UV stable white polypropylene. 

Inverted T slot are machined into the floor at three points to accommodate adjustable hose 

dividers. 

14.11.01 Hose Bed Divider 
The hose bed has adjustable divider made out of copolymer. The rear of the divider will have 

slot cut in that can be used for a hand grip 

14.11.01.02 Two (2) dividers 

14.11.02 Hose Bed cover 
Heavy-duty black vinyl hose bed cover is supplied and custom fitted to the apparatus hose bed. 

The cover is attached across the front of the hose bed with a rail and bead system to prevent 

wind from getting under the cover, with a flap to cover the back of the hose bed, and has a 

quick release elastic rope to retain the hose in the bed during travel as required by NFPA. 

Cover is fabricated from100% polyester. Operating temperature is -40F to 180F. 

14.11.02.02 Black Hose Bed Cover for 3000 

SECTION lS:EQUIPMENT STORAGE AND MOUNTING 

15.00 Suction Hose Trays and Ladder Carriers 
15.00.01 Two (2) trays located in the hose bed on the street side. 

15.00.01.03 Fits 5., -6" Suction Hose. 

SECTION 17: CHASSIS ACCESSORIES 

17.01 Hub and Lug nut covers 
Stainless steel hub and lug nut covers are installed on front and rear aluminum wheels 

17.01.03 Tandem rear axle chassis. 

17.03 Shoreline Connection, Kussmaul HO Series 
One 115 Volt Kussmaul HO, air and battery conditioner system installed. 



17.03.03 Shoreline electrical auto eject plug-in, front sill of front 
street side locker. 

17.10 Accessories 

17.10.01 Tire Pressure Indicators 
Tire pressure indicators installed to allow for inspection of pressure at the tire. 

17.10.01.02 Tire Pressure Indicator for Tandem Axle Chassis 

17.10.04 Heat Exchanger 
A Heat exchanger permits the use of water from the pump to cool the engine. Cooling is done 

without mixing the engine antifreeze and the pump water. 

17.10.04.01 OEM Installed 

17.10.05 Center Console 
Center console provided in the chassis cab to make available additional space for mounting of 

accessories and control switches. Console fabricated from vinyl laminated aluminum and 

custom fitted to the chassis. Top plate to be bolted on for maintenance and for adding 

additional items. 

17.10.05.01 Center Console for M2 Chassis 

17.11 

17.11.01 

Chassis Exhaust 

Standard Chassis Exhaust Modifications 
Chassis exhaust is modified to exit passenger side ahead of the rear wheels and to the edge of 

the body. A heat shield will be fabricated from aluminum and installed between the body and 

the exhaust pipe. 

SECTION 18: LOOSE EQUIPMENT 

18.08 Wheel Chocks 

18.08.01 Two (2) Wheel Chocks, with Holders, Placed into Spare 
Compartment. 

18.10 PVC flexible hard suction hoses 
18.10.06 Two (2) 6" x 10' 

SECTION 19: CHASSIS 

19.00 Midwest Fire Equipment furnished per specification attached: 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

A proposal for 
Midwest Fire 

Prepared by 
/-/STATE TRUCK CENTER 

Chris Schrum 

Mar 19, 2015 

Freightliner M2 106 

Components shown may not reflect all spec'd options and are not to scale 

Application Version 8.7.111 
Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

@;@l&UIIJ?l#ij 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

l-IST ATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 1 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

p CIF CATION R 0 P 0 

I hiriP r.nnfim r tin 

rvice 

Application Version 8.7.111 

Description 

M2 PRL-09M (EFF:08/05/2014) 

SPECPR021 DATA RELEASE VER 005 

INTERIOR CONVENIENCE PACKAGE 

M2 106 CONVENTIONAL CHASSIS 

2016 MODEL YEAR SPECIFIED 

SET BACK AXLE -TRUCK 

STRAIGHT TRUCK PROVISION 

LH PRIMARY STEERING LOCATION 

TRUCK CONFIGURATION 

DOMICILED, USA (EXCLUDING CALIFORNIA AND 
CARS OPT-IN STATES) 

FIRE SERVICE 

EMERGENCY VEHICLES BUSINESS SEGMENT 

LIQUID BULK COMMODITY 

TERRAIN/DUTY: 100% (ALL) OF THE TIME, IN 
TRANSIT, IS SPENT ON PAVED ROADS 

MAXIMUM 8% EXPECTED GRADE 

SMOOTH CONCRETE OR ASPHALT PAVEMENT
MOST SEVERE IN-TRANSIT (BETWEEN SITES) 
ROAD SURFACE 

MEDIUM TRUCK WARRANTY 

EXPECTED FRONT AXLE(S) LOAD: 14600.0 lbs 

EXPECTED REAR DRIVE AXLE(S) LOAD : 
44000.0 lbs 

EXPECTED TAG AXLE(S) LOAD: 0.0 lbs 

EXPECTED GROSS VEHICLE WEIGHT CAPACITY 
: 58600.0 lbs 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Weight 
Front 

5,759 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

L 

Weight 
Rear 

3,503 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 2 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

E g e 

c ec r ni Parame 

Application Version 8. 7.111 

Description 

FIRE TANK- NO MAIN DRIVELINE DRIVEN SPLIT
SHAFT PTO/PUMP 

EXPECTED BODY/PAYLOAD CG HEIGHT ABOVE 
FRAME "XX" INCHES : 32.0 in 

CUM ISL 350 HP@ 2000 RPM. 2200 GOV RPM, 
1000 LB/FT@ 1400 RPM 

72 MPH ROAD SPEED LIMIT 

CRUISE CONTROL SPEED LIMIT SAME AS ROAD 
SPEED LIMIT 

PTO MODE ENGINE RPM LIMIT - 1100 RPM 

PTO RPM WITH CRUISE SET SWITCH - 700 RPM 

PTO RPM WITH CRUISE RESUME SWITCH - 800 
RPM 

PTO MODE CANCEL VEHICLE SPEED- 5 MPH 

PTO GOVERNOR RAMP RATE- 250 RPM PER 
SECOND 

PTO MINIMUM RPM- 700 

REGEN INHIBIT SPEED THRESHOLD - 5 MPH 

2015 ONBOARD DIAGNOSTICS/2010 
EPAICARB/GHG14 

NO 2008 CARB EMISSION CERTIFICATION 

STANDARD OIL PAN 

ENGINE MOUNTED OIL CHECK AND FILL 

ONE PIECE VALVE COVER 

SIDE OF HOOD AIR INTAKE WITH NFPA 
COMPLIANT EMBER SCREEN AND FIRE 
RETARDANT DONALDSON AIR CLEANER 

DR 12V 275 AMP 40-SI BRUSHLESS PAD 
ALTERNATOR WITH REMOTE BATTERY 
VOLTAGE SENSE 

(2) ALLIANCE MODEL 1231, GROUP 31, 12 VOLT 
MAINTENANCE FREE 2250 CCA THREADED 
STUD BATIERIES 

BATIERY BOX FRAME MOUNTED 

STANDARD BATTERY JUMPERS 

SINGLE BATIERY BOX FRAME MOUNTED LH 
SIDE UNDER CAB 

® 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

(liNi/illllll.tt#i) 

Weight 
Front 

640 

10 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

30 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 3 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507 -283~9141 

Application Version 8. 7.111 

Description 

WIRE GROUND RETURN FOR BATIERY CABLES 
WITH ADDITIONAL FRAME GROUND RETURN 

NON~POLISH ED BATTERY BOX COVER 

POSITIVE LOAD DISCONNECT WITH CAB 
MOUNTED CONTROL SWITCH MOUNTED 
OUTBOARD DRIVER SEAT 

CUMMINS TURBOCHARGED 18.7 CFM AIR 
COMPRESSOR WITH INTERNAL SAFETY VALVE 

STANDARD MECHANICAL AIR COMPRESSOR 
GOVERNOR 

AIR COMPRESSOR DISCHARGE LINE 

GVG, FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICE 
VEHICLES ENGINE WARNING 

CUMMINS EXHAUST BRAKE INTEGRAL WITH 
VARIABLE GEOMETRY TURBO WITH ON/OFF 
DASH SWITCH 

RH OUTBOARD UNDER STEP MOUNTED 
HORIZONTAL AFTERTREATMENT SYSTEM 
ASSEMBLY WITH RH HORIZONTAL TAILPIPE 
EXITING FORWARD OF REAR TIRES 

ENGINE AFTERTREATMENT DEVICE, 
AUTOMATIC OVER THE ROAD ACTIVE 
REGENERATION AND DASH MOUNTED SINGLE 
REGENERATION REQUEST/INHIBIT SWITCH 

STANDARD EXHAUST SYSTEM LENGTH 

RH HORIZONTAL TAILPIPE, EXIT FORWARD OF 
REAR TIRES AT 90 DEGREES 

6 GALLON DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID TANK 

100 PERCENT DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID FILL 

LH MEDIUM DUTY STANDARD DIESEL EXHAUST 
FLUID TANK LOCATION 

STANDARD DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID PUMP 
MOUNTING 

STANDARD DIESEL EXHAUST FLUID TANK CAP 

HORTON DRIVEMASTER ON/OFF FAN DRIVE 

AUTOMATIC FAN CONTROL WITH DASH 
SWITCH AND INDICATOR LIGHT, NON ENGINE 
MOUNTED 

CUMMINS SPIN ON FUEL FILTER 

COMBINATION FULL FLOW/BYPASS OIL FILTER 

1100 SQUARE INCH ALUMINUM RADIATOR 

ANTIFREEZE TO ~34F, ETHYLENE GLYCOL PRE
CHARGED SCA HEAVY DUTY COOLANT 

GATES BLUE STRIPE COOLANT HOSES OR 
EQUIVALENT 

® 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Cii'N#JtUIII!.?#!) 

Weight 
Front 

8 

20 

10 

20 

20 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

I~ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

5 

20 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 4 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

10 

m1 ion us 

Application Version 8.7.111 

Description 

CONSTANT TENSION HOSE CLAMPS FOR 
COOLANT HOSES 

AUXILIARY ENGINE COOLING USING WATER 
FROM FIRE PUMP 

LOWER RADIATOR GUARD 

ALUMINUM FLYWHEEL HOUSING 

ELECTRIC GRID AIR INTAKE WARMER 

DELCO 12V 38MT HD STARTER WITH 
INTEGRATED MAGNETIC SWITCH 

ALLISON 3000 EVS AUTOMATIC TRANSMISSION 
WITH PTO PROVISION 

ALLISON VOCATIONAL PACKAGE 198-
AVAILABLE ON 3000/4000 PRODUCT FAMILIES 
WITH VOCATIONAL MODEL EVS 

ALLISON VOCATIONAL RATING FOR FIRE 
TRUCK/EMERGENCY VEHICLE APPLICATIONS 
AVAILABLE WITH ALL PRODUCT FAMILIES 

PRIMARY MODE GEARS, LOWEST GEAR 1, 
START GEAR 1, HIGHEST GEAR 5, AVAILABLE 
FOR 3000/4000 PRODUCT FAMILIES ONLY 

SECONDARY MODE GEARS, LOWEST GEAR 1, 
START GEAR 1, HIGHEST GEAR 5, AVAILABLE 
FOR 3000/4000 PRODUCT FAMILIES ONLY 

NEUTRAL AT STOP- DISABLED, FUELSENSE
DISABLED 

VEHICLE INTERFACE WIRING WITH BODY 
BUILDER CONNECTOR MOUNTED END OF 
FRAME, NO BLUNT CUTS 

ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION CUSTOMER 
ACCESS CONNECTOR MOUNTED BACK OF CAB 

(2) CUSTOMER INSTALLED MUNCIE CS1 0 
SERIES PTO'S 

PTO MOUNTING, LH AND RH SIDES OF MAIN 
TRANSMISSION 

MAGNETIC PLUGS, ENGINE DRAIN, 
TRANSMISSION DRAIN, AXLE(S) FILL AND 
DRAIN 

PUSH BUTTON ELECTRONIC SHIFT CONTROL 
DASH MOUNTED IN RG PANEL WITH NO 
SWITCHES OR GAUGES MOUNTED ABOVE 
SHIFTER 

TRANSMISSION PROGNOSTICS- ENABLED 2013 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Weight 
Front 

10 

200 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

60 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 5 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

Font 

R r 

q 

n 

Application Version 8.7.111 

Description 

WATER TO OIL TRANSMISSION COOLER, IN 
RADIATOR END TANK 

TRANSMISSION OIL CHECK AND FILL WITH 
ELECTRONIC OIL LEVEL CHECK 

SYNTHETIC TRANSMISSION FLUID (TES-295 
COMPLIANT) 

DETROIT DA-F-1 4.7-3 14,700# FF1 71 .5 KPI/3.74 
DROP SINGLE FRONT AXLE 

MERITOR 16.5X5 Q+ CAST SPIDER CAM FRONT 
BRAKES, DOUBLE ANCHOR, FABRICATED 
SHOES 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SEVERE SERVICE, 
NON-ASBESTOS FRONT LINING 

CONMET CAST IRON FRONT BRAKE DRUMS 

SKF SCOTSEAL PLUS XL FRONT OIL SEALS 

VENTED FRONT HUB CAPS WITH WINDOW, 
CENTER AND SIDE PLUGS- OIL 

STANDARD SPINDLE NUTS FOR ALL AXLES 

MERITOR AUTOMATIC FRONT SLACK 
ADJUSTERS 

TRW TAS-85 POWER STEERING 

POWER STEERING PUMP 

2 QUART SEE THROUGH POWER STEERING 
RESERVOIR 

ORGANIC SAE 80/90 FRONT AXLE LUBE 

14,600# TAPERLEAF FRONT SUSPENSION 

MAINTENANCE FREE RUBBER BUSHINGS-
FRONT SUSPENSION 

FRONT SHOCK ABSORBERS 

MT -44-14X 44,000# R-SERIES TANDEM REAR 
AXLE 

4.88 REAR AXLE RATIO 

IRON REAR AXLE CARRIER WITH STANDARD 
AXLE HOUSING 

MXL 17T MERITOR EXTENDED LUBE MAIN 
DRIVELINE WITH HALF ROUND YOKES 

MXL 17T MERITOR EXTENDED LUBE INTERAXLE 
DRIVELINE WITH HALF ROUND YOKES 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Weight 
Front 

40 

170 

20 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SD 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

2,580 

20 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 6 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

Application Version 8.7.111 

Description 

(1) INTERAXLE LOCK VALVE FOR TANDEM OR 
TRIDEM DRIVE AXLES 

BLINKING LAMP WITH EACH MODE SWITCH, 
INTERAXLE UNLOCK DEFAULT WITH IGNITION 
OFF 

MERITOR 16.5X7 Q+ CAST SPIDER HEAVY DUTY 
CAM REAR BRAKES, DOUBLE ANCHOR, 
FABRICATED SHOES 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY SEVERE SERVICE NON
ASBESTOS REAR BRAKE LINING 

BRAKE CAMS AND CHAMBERS ON FORWARD 
SIDE OF DRIVE AXLE(S) 

CONMET CAST IRON REAR BRAKE DRUMS 

SKF SCOTSEAL PLUS XL REAR OIL SEALS 

HALDEX GOLDSEAL LONGSTROKE 2-DRIVE 
AXLES SPRING PARKING CHAMBERS 

HALDEX AUTOMATIC REAR SLACK ADJUSTERS 

ORGANIC SAE 80/90 REAR AXLE LUBE 

TUFTRAC 46,000# 2-STAGE REAR SPRING 
SUSPENSION 

TUFTRAC STANDARD RIDE HEIGHT 

AXLE CLAMPING GROUP 

56 INCH AXLE SPACING 

FORE/AFT AND TRANSVERSE CONTROL RODS 

REAR SHOCK ABSORBERS- TWO AXLES 
(TANDEM) 

AIR BRAKE PACKAGE 

WASCO 4S/4M ASS WITH TRACTION CONTROL 

REINFORCED NYLON, FABRIC BRAID AND WIRE 
BRAID CHASSIS AIR LINES 

FIBER BRAID PARKING BRAKE HOSE 

STANDARD BRAKE SYSTEM VALVES 

STANDARD AIR SYSTEM PRESSURE 
PROTECTION AND 85 PSI PRESSURE 
PROTECTION FOR AIR HORN(S) 

STD U.S. FRONT BRAKE VALVE 

RELAY VALVE WITH 5-8 PSI CRACK PRESSURE, 
NO REAR PROPORTIONING VALVE 

BW AD-9 BRAKE LINE AIR DRYER WITH HEATER 

AIR DRYER MOUNTED INBOARD ON LH RAIL 

Data Version PR L-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Weight 
Front 

20 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

20 

570 

40 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 7 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

Description 

STEEL AIR BRAKE RESERVOIRS 

CLEAR FRAME RAILS FROM BACK OF CAB TO 
FRONT REAR SUSPENSION BRACKET, BOTH 
RAILS OUTBOARD 

BW DV-2 AUTO DRAIN VALVE WITHOUT HEATER 
ON ALL TANK(S) 

UPGRADED CHASSIS MULTIPLEXING UNIT 

UPGRADED BULKHEAD MULTIPLEXING UNIT 

5750MM (226 INCH) WHEELBASE 

7/16X3-9/16X11-1/81NCH STEEL FRAME 
(11.11MMX282.6MM/0.437X11 .131NCH) 120KSI 

2675MM (1051NCH) REAR FRAME OVERHANG 

FRAME OVERHANG RANGE: 101 INCH TO 110 
INCH 

CALC'D BACK OF CAB TO REAR SUSP C/L (CA): 
160.45 in 

CALCULATED EFFECTIVE BACK OF CAB TO 
REAR SUSPENSION C/L (CA) : 157.45 in 

CALC'D FRAME LENGTH - OVERALL : 360.39 

CALC'D SPACE AVAILABLE FOR DECKPLATE : 
160.45 in 

CALCULATED FRAME SPACE LH SIDE : 155.6 in 

CALCULATED FRAME SPACE RH SIDE : 129.45 
in 

SQUARE END OF FRAME 

FRONT CLOSING CROSSMEMBER 

Weight 
Front 

370 

-70 

LIGHTWEIGHT HEAVY DUTY ALUMINUM ENGINE -12 

Application Version 8. 7.111 

CROSSMEMBER 

STANDARD MIDSHIP #1 CROSSMEMBER(S) 

STANDARDREARMOSTCROSSMEMBER 

HEAVY DUTY SUSPENSION CROSSMEMBER 

THREE-PIECE 141NCH CHROMED STEEL 
BUMPER WITH COLLAPSIBLE ENDS 

FRONT TOW HOOKS- FRAME MOUNTED 

BUMPER MOUNTING FOR SINGLE LICENSE 
PLATE 

FENDER AND FRONT OF HOOD MOUNTED 
FRONT MUDFLAPS 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

30 

15 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

l-IST ATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

290 

310 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 8 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

F e Ta ks 

1r 

I ub 

h el 

c Ex ior 

Application Version 8. 7.111 

Description 

GRADE 8 THREADED HEX HEADED FRAME 
FASTENERS 

TANK BODY 1501 TO 3000 GALLONS 

50 GALLON/189 LITER SHORT RECTANGULAR 
ALUMINUM FUEL TANK- LH 

RECTANGULAR FUEL TANK(S) 

POLISHING OF FUEL/HYDRAULIC TANK(S) WITH 
PAINTED BANDS 

FUEL TANK(S) FORWARD 

POLISHED STAINLESS STEEL STEP FINISH 

FUEL TANK CAP(S) 

ALLIANCE FUEL FILTER/WATER SEPARATOR 

EQUIFLO INBOARD FUEL SYSTEM 

HIGH TEMPERATURE REINFORCED NYLON 
FUEL LINE 

MICHELIN XZE 12R22.5 16 PLY RADIAL FRONT 
TIRES 

MICHELIN XDE M/S 11 R22.5 14 PLY RADIAL 
REAR TIRES 

CONMET PRESET PLUS IRON FRONT HUBS 

CONMET PRESET PLUS IRON REAR HUBS 

ALCOA LVL ONE 88367X 22.5X8.25 10-HUB 
PILOT 5.79 INSET ALUMINUM DISC FRONT 
WHEELS 

ALCOA LVL ONE 88367X ALUMINUM OUTSIDE, 
ACCURIDE 29637 STEEL INSIDE; 22.5X8.251 0-
HUB PILOT DISC REAR WHEELS 

POLISHED FRONT WHEELS; OUTSIDE ONLY 

POLISHED REAR WHEELS; OUTSIDE OF OUTER 
WHEELS ONLY 

FRONT WHEEL MOUNTING NUTS 

REAR WHEEL MOUNTING NUTS 

1061NCH BBC FLAT ROOF ALUMINUM 
CONVENTIONAL CAB 

AIR CAB MOUNTS 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Weight 
Front 

20 

50 

-50 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

l-IST ATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

56 

-56 

03/19/2015 9:4 7 AM 

Page 9 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

Ca I en 

Application Version 8.7. 111 

Description 

LH AND RH EXTERIOR GRAB HANDLES WITH 
SINGLE RUBBER INSERT 

HOOD MOUNTED CHROMED PLASTIC GRILLE 

CHROME HOOD MOUNTED AIR INTAKE GRILLE 

FIBERGLASS HOOD 

DUAL 25 INCH ROUND STUTTER TONE HOOD 
MOUNTED AIR HORNS 

DUAL ELECTRIC HORNS 

DOOR LOCKS AND IGNITION SWITCH KEYED 
THE SAME 

REAR LICENSE PLATE MOUNT END OF FRAME 

INTEGRAL HEADLIGHT/MARKER ASSEMBLY 
WITH CHROME BEZEL 

LED AERODYNAMIC MARKER LIGHTS 

HEADLIGHTS ON WITH WIPERS, WITH DAYTIME 
RUNNING LIGHTS 

INTEGRAL STOP/TAIL/BACKUP LIGHTS 

STANDARD FRONT TURN SIGNAL LAMPS 

DUAL WEST COAST BRIGHT FINISH HEATED 
MIRRORS WITH LH AND RH REMOTE 

DOOR MOUNTED MIRRORS 

102 INCH EQUIPMENT WIDTH 

LH AND RH 8" BRIGHT FINISH CONVEX 
MIRRORS MOUNTED UNDER PRIMARY 
MIRRORS 

STANDARD SIDE/REAR REFLECTORS 

RH AFTERTREATMENT SYSTEM CAB ACCESS 
WITH POLISHED DIAMOND PLATE COVER AND 
STEPS 

63X141NCH TINTED REAR WINDOW 

TINTED DOOR GLASS LH AND RH WITH TINTED 
NON-OPERATING WING WINDOWS 

MANUAL DOOR WINDOW REGULATORS 

TINTED WINDSHIELD 

2 GALLON WINDSHIELD WASHER RESERVOIR 
WITHOUT FLUID LEVEL INDICATOR, FRAME 
MOUNTED 

OPAL GRAY VINYL INTERIOR 

MOLDED PLASTIC DOOR PANEL WITHOUT 
VINYL INSERT WITH ALUMINUM KICKPLATE 
LOWER DOOR 

® 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Gik&i!dllllliliJJ 

Weight 
Front 

8 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

03/19/2015 9:47 AM 

Page 10 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

Application Version 8.7.111 

Description 

MOLDED PLASTIC DOOR PANEL WITHOUT 
VINYL INSERT WITH ALUMINUM KICKPLA TE 
LOWER DOOR 

BLACK MATS WITH SINGLE INSULATION 

FORWARD ROOF MOUNTED CONSOLE WITH 
UPPER STORAGE COMPARTMENTS AND 
ADDITIONAL CENTER COMPARTMENT 
WITHOUT NETTING 

IN DASH STORAGE BIN 

(2) CUP HOLDERS LH AND RH DASH 

GRAY/CHARCOAL FLAT DASH 

SMART SWITCH EXPANSION MODULE 

HEATER, DEFROSTER AND AIR CONDITIONER 

STANDARD HVAC DUCTING 

MAIN HVAC CONTROLS WITH RECIRCULATION 
SWITCH 

STANDARD HEATER PLUMBING WITH BALL 
SHUTOFF VALVES 

DENSO HEAVY DUTY AIR CONDITIONER 
COMPRESSOR 

BINARY CONTROL, R-134A 

PREMIUM INSULATION 

SOLID-STATE CIRCUIT PROTECTION AND 
FUSES 

12V NEGATIVE GROUND ELECTRICAL SYSTEM 

DOME DOOR ACTIVATED LH AND RH, DUAL 
READING LIGHTS, FORWARD CAB ROOF 

CAB DOOR LATCHES WITH MANUAL DOOR 
LOCKS 

(1) 12 VOLT POWER SUPPLY IN DASH 

SEATS INC 911 UNIVERSAL SERIES HIGH BACK 
AIR SUSPENSION DRIVER SEAT WITH NFPA 
1901-2009 COMPLIANT SEAT SENSOR 

SEATS INC 911 UNIVERSAL SERIES HIGH BACK 
NON SUSPENSION PASSENGER SEATWITH 
UNDERSEAT STORAGE AND NFPA 1901-2009 
COMPLIANT SEAT SENSOR 

LH AND RH INTEGRAL DOOR PANEL ARMRESTS 

GRAY VINYL DRIVER SEAT COVER WITH GRAY 
CORDURA CLOTH BOLSTER AND HEADREST 

GRAY VINYL FRONT PASSENGER SEAT COVER 
WITH GRAY CORDURA CLOTH BOLSTER AND 
HEADREST 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Weight 
Front 

50 

25 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

I-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

10 

03/19/2015 9:47 AM 

Page 11 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

h ru ents 

Application Version 8.7.111 

Description 

3 POINT HIGH VISIBILITY ORANGE RETRACTOR 
DRIVER AND RH FRONT PASSENGER SEAT 
BELTS WITH NFPA 1901-2009 COMPLIANT 
SENSOR AND DASH HARNESS 

ADJUSTABLE TILT AND TELESCOPING 
STEERING COLUMN 

4-SPOKE 18 INCH (450MM) STEERING WHEEL 

DRIVER AND PASSENGER INTERIOR SUN 
VISORS 

WOODGRAIN DRIVER INSTRUMENT PANEL 

WOODGRAIN CENTER INSTRUMENT PANEL 

BLACK GAUGE BEZELS 

LOW AIR PRESSURE INDICATOR LIGHT AND 
AUDIBLE ALARM 

21NCH PRIMARY AND SECONDARY AIR 
PRESSURE GAUGES 

ENGINE COMPARTMENT MOUNTED AIR 
RESTRICTION INDICATOR WITH GRADUATIONS, 
WITH WARNING LIGHT IN DASH 

97 DB BACKUP ALARM 

ELECTRONIC CRUISE CONTROL WITH 
SWITCHES IN LH SWITCH PANEL 

IGNITION SWITCH WITH NON REMOVABLE KEY 

ICU3S, 132X48 DISPLAY WITH DIAGNOSTICS, 28 
LED WARNING LAMPS AND DATA LINKED 

DIAGNOSTIC INTERFACE CONNECTOR, 9 PIN , 
SAE J1939, LOCATED BELOW DASH 

2 INCH ELECTRIC FUEL GAUGE 

PROGRAMMABLE RPM CONTROL
ELECTRONIC ENGINE 

ELECTRICAL ENGINE COOLANT TEMPERATURE 
GAUGE 

2 INCH TRANSMISSION OIL TEMPERATURE 
GAUGE 

ENGINE AND TRIP HOUR METERS INTEGRAL 
WITHIN DRIVER DISPLAY 

CUSTOMER FURNISHED AND INSTALLED PTO 
CONTROLS 

ENHANCED STABILITY CONTROL 

ELECTRIC ENGINE OIL PRESSURE GAUGE 

AM/FMIWB RADIO WITH BLUETOOTH AND 
MICROPHONE, FRONT USB PORT, FRONT AND 
REAR AUXILIARY INPUTS AND J1939 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Weight 
Front 

10 

10 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

3 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 12 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

es1 n 

c l r 

Description 

DASH MOUNTED RADIO 

(2) RADIO SPEAKERS IN CAB 

AM/FM ANTENNA MOUNTED ON FORWARD LH 
ROOF 

ELECTRONIC MPH SPEEDOMETER WITH 
SECONDARY KPH SCALE, WITHOUT 
ODOMETER 

STANDARD VEHICLE SPEED SENSOR 

ELECTRONIC 3000 RPM TACHOMETER 

IDLE LIMITER, ELECTRONIC ENGINE 

(1) RH FOOT SWITCH WITH DASH SWITCH FOR 
HORN BUTTON TO CONTROL AIR HORN, 
DEFAULT TO ELECTRIC <85 PSI 

DIGITAL VOLTAGE DISPLAY INTEGRAL WITH 
DRIVER DISPLAY 

SINGLE ELECTRIC WINDSHIELD WIPER MOTOR 
WITH DELAY 

MARKER LIGHT SWITCH INTEGRAL WITH 
HEADLIGHT SWITCH 

ALTERNATING FLASHING LOW BEAM 
HEADLAMPS WITH DASH SWITCH, WITH PARK 
BRAKE RELEASED 

ONE VALVE PARKING BRAKE SYSTEM WITH 
DASH VALVE CONTROL AUTONEUTRAL AND 
WARNING INDICATOR 

SELF CANCELING TURN SIGNAL SWITCH WITH 
DIMMER , WASHER/WIPER AND HAZARD IN 
HANDLE 

INTEGRAL ELECTRONIC TURN SIGNAL 
FLASHER WITH HAZARD LAMPS OVERRIDING 
STOP LAMPS 

PAINT: ONE SOLID COLOR 

CAB COLOR A: L0762EB MED RED ELITE BC 

BLACK, HIGH SOLIDS POLYURETHANE CHASSIS 
PAINT 

POWDER WHITE (N0006EA) REAR 
WHEELS/RIMS (PKWHT21 , TKWHT21 , W, TW) 

C i 1cati n I Con.u., . .,.,,. .• -= 

Application Version 8. 7.111 

U.S. FMVSS CERTIFICATION, EXCEPT SALES 
CABS AND GLIDER KITS 

Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Weight 
Front 

2 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Weight 
Rear 

03/1 9/2015 9:47 AM 

Page 13 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

ht \Jmmary 

Factory Weight+ 

Total Weight 

., 0 T 

(+)Weights shown are estimates only. 

E 1-J I (' I E: s (J f I 

Weight Weight 

Front Rear 

74051bs 7461 lbs 

74051bs 7461 lbs 

If weight is critical, contact Customer Application Engineering . 

Application Version 8.7.111 
Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 
OPTIONS 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

1-ISTATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Total 

Weight 

148661bs 

148661bs 

03/19/2015 9:47AM 

Page 14 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone: 507-283-9141 

0 

~mm~oa~~~~·~ 
44.58 in 

-J,. 

'f----------- 372 in-----------7' 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

l-IST ATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SO 57107 

Model ............ .. ......... ..... ... ........ .......... ....... ....... ..... ........ ..... .... .... ....... ...... ........... ................ .. ........ ...................... ... ...... ..... .... ... ....... .... M21 06 

Wheelbase (545) .. ........ .. ...... .. ..... .. .... .... .. ................ ..................... ........... .. .. ...... .. .... ..... .. ....... ......... .... 5750MM (226 INCH) WHEELBASE 

Rear Frame Overhang (552) ...... .. .. .. .. .... .... .. ..... ...... ..... ....... ...... .......... ....... ... .. ..... ..... .. 2675MM (1051NCH) REAR FRAME OVERHANG 

Fifth Wheel (578) .... .... ..... ... .. .... .... ... .. ... ....... ... .............. ..... ....... ... ......................... ... ............ ........ ............. ....... ....... ... ... . NO FIFTH WHEEL 

Mounting Location (577) ... ............. ... .. .. ... .... ... .. ..... .. .... .... ... ...... ... .. .. .... .. ... ....... ... ... .. .... ...... .. .. .. .. ... .... .. NO FIFTH WHEEL LOCATION 

Maximum Forward Position (in) ......... ...... .... .... .... ......... .............. ............................. .. ............... .......... ............... ...... ....... ... ............. .. ... 0 

Maximum Rearward Position (in) .... .... ... .... ... ...... .. ......... ................ ... .... ... ..... ... ..... .. .. ....... .... .... .... .. ..... .... .... .. ...... .. .. .... .... .. ........ ....... .. .. 0 

Amount of Slide Travel (in) .................. ... ....... .. .............. .. .. ..... ...... .. ... .. .... ........ .......... ... .... .... .. ... ........ ..... .. ... .. .. .......... .......... ............. .... 0 

Slide Increment (in) .... .......... ........ .... ........ ... .......... ... ..... ...... .... ... ............. ........... .... .. .... ... .. ....... ..................................................... ..... .. 0 

Desired Slide Position (in) .. .. ..... ...... .... ... ... .. .... .......... .. .. .. ..... .. ..... .... ...... ... .. .. ....... .... .. .. .. ......... .... .. .... .. ... .... ...... .. ................... .......... ... 0.0 

Cab Size (829) ............... ........... .. ....... .... .. .... .. ..... .... ... .. ....... .. .. .. ..... ..... 1061NCH BBC FLAT ROOF ALUMINUM CONVENTIONAL CAB 

Sleeper (682) .. ......... ..... ......... .. .... ...... .. .. ......................... ... ... ............... .. ...... .... .. ... .... ... .. .. ....... .. ... ....... NO SLEEPER BOX/SLEEPERCAB 
Exhaust System (016) ... ... ... RH OUTBOARD UNDER STEP MOUNTED HORIZONTAL AFTERTREATMENT SYSTEM ASSEMBLY 
WITH RH HORIZONTAL TAILPIPE EXITING FORWARD OF REAR TIRES 

Application Version 8.7.111 
Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 

03/19/2015 9:47 AM 

Page 15 of 16 



Prepared for: 
Kraig Scholten 
Midwest Fire 
901 Commerce Road 
Luverne, MN 56156 
Phone : 507-283-9141 

Prepared by: 
Chris Schrum 

l-IST ATE TRUCK CENTER 
2901 WEST 60TH STREET N. 

SIOUX FALLS, SD 57107 

~ c 
1 j' .:. 

F ~ ~ 

Performance calculations are estimates only. If performance calculations are critical, please contact Customer Application 
Engineering. 

Application Version 8.7.111 
Data Version PRL-09M.005 
TANDEM TANKER WITH CUSTOM 

03/19/2015 9:47 AM 

Page 16 of 16 



Craven County Mail - Fwd: Please share with high school students interested in serving a... Page 1 of 2 

'Craven 
r- :M.ai£ Gwendolyn Bryan <gbryan@cravencountync.gov> 

Fwd: Please share with high school students interested in serving as a NC House Page 

Mark Best <bestm@cravencc.edu> Wed, Nov 16, 2016 at 10:47 AM 

FYI! 

'Think Green" before printing this e-mail. 

E-mail correspondence to and from this sender may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records law and may be 
disclosed to third parties. 

>>>"Rep. George Graham" <George.Graham@ncleg.net> 11/16/2016 10:36 AM>>> 

Qualifications 

From the Office of 

Representative George W. Graham, Jr. 

NC House of Representatives 

District 12 

(Craven, Greene, Lenoir Counties) 

16 W. Jones Street, Room 1321 

Raleigh, NC 27601-1096 

919-733-5995 

North Carolina House Page Program 
"Youth Learning through Serving" 

In order to be a House Page, you must: 

• Be between the ages of 15 and 18 years old (or 14 and currently in the 9th grade. Currently enrolled in 

the 9th grade is defined as actively attending school in that grade at the time of application) 

• Have not served as a House Page previously 

Obtain permission from parent or guardian to participate in the Program. 

• Each House Page must be in good academic standing, so that if he or she serves during the school year their absence will not 
serve as a hindrance on education. 

1 1 /1 t: /') (\ 1 r:. 



Craven County Mail - Fwd: Please share with high school students interested in serving a... Page 2 of 2 

• Be sponsored by a Member of the North Carolina House of Representatives 

When to Apply 

• Applications for the 2017legislative session are available via the web page. (http://ncleg. netlhouse/housepagesite/) 
• Applications are accepted on a rolling basis until all positions for the session are full. 
• The Home page will reflect when applications are no longer being accepted. The 2017 House Page Schedule shows which 

weeks are still available. 

How to Apply 

• Contact Your Representative and request his or her sponsorship. It is preferred that you contact the Representative for the 
district in which you live. 

• Download the 2017 House Page Application 0fVord I pdf), complete and return it to your Representative for his or her 
consideration. 

• The selection process is quite competitive and not all who apply will be appointed. Each Representative has his or her own 
criteria which they use to select pages for appointment by the Speaker of the House. 

Notification of Appointment 

If appointed, the student will receive an official letter of appointment from the Speaker of the House along with a packet including 
all necessary information and materials. Read it immediately and respond as directed. 

Page Work Schedule 

Pages report to the House Page Office on Monday of the week they are to serve at 1:00 p.m. They will be on duty Monday evening, 
Tuesday, and Wednesday from 8:00 a.m. until 5:00p.m., and on Thursday from 8:00 a.m. until 3:00p.m. During weeks with 
holidays, Pages will be notified the week prior to serving if there is a change in the regular schedule. 

Dress Code 

Appropriate business attire is required of all House Pages. Young men are required to wear dress slacks, coats, ties, socks, and 
dress shoes at all times they are on duty. Young women must wear dresses, pantsuits, dress slacks, or skirts with blouses. Flat, 
comfortable shoes are preferred. Pages are sent a detailed description of appropriate dress when they are appointed to serve. Any 
Page who does not comply with the dress code will not be allowed to participate and may be sent home. 

Accommodations 

It is the responsibility of the Page's parent or guardian to make lodging arrangements prior to coming to Raleigh. Pages may stay 
with family, friends, or host families. Host families provide lodging, breakfast, dinner, and transportation from Monday evening 
until 8:00 am Thursday morning at a cost of $100 per week. A complete list of host families and contact information will be 
included in the appointment packet. 

Compensation 

Pages are paid a stipend of $150 per week to help pay expenses or, in lieu of payment, receive 30 hours of community service in 
accordance with their school community service policy. 

QUESTIONS? 

If you have any questions about the House Page Program, please contact the House Page Supervisor, Mistlj Greene, at (919) 733-5701 or 
hps@ncleg.net. 

~ ~ I~ r /"'\ f\ 1 £ 



Craven County Mail - Counties Impacted by Revenue Limitations and Unfunded Mandates Page 1 of 2 

Cra·ven 
!Mai{ 

Gwendolyn Bryan <gbryan@cravencountync.gov> 

Counties Impacted by Revenue Limitations and Unfunded Mandates 

NACo <naco@naco.org> Wed, Nov 16, 2016 at 11:22 AM 
To: jsampson@cravencountync.gov 

Having trouble viewing this email? Click Here 

Doing More with Less: State Revenue Limitations and Mandates 
on County Finances 

New research from the National Association of Counties 

(NACo), Doing More with Less: State Revenue 
Limitations and Mandates on County 
Finances, examines county funding sources, state revenue 

limits, federal and state mandates on counties, new fiscal 

challenges and county fiscal solutions. It finds that: 

• States are limiting counties' revenue authority to fund 

essential services. 

• Counties are struggling with more state and federal 

mandates, not fully covered by state and federal aid. 

• Counties are adjusting to new fiscal challenges 

spurred by economic and technological shifts. 

-1 -1 1-1 /" /r'\f"\1 F" 



Craven County Mail - Counties Impacted by Revenue Limitations and Unfunded Mandates Page 2 of 2 

• Counties are pursuing various solutions to ensure 

quality service delivery despite the fiscal constraints. 

Overall, this report sheds light on the factors behind the 

slow fiscal recovery of county governments and increasing 

pressures on local governments. 

For the full report, state profiles and more information, visit www.NACo.org/Statelimits 

REGISTER TODAVI 
FEBRUARY 25-MARCH 1 • WASHINGTON. D.C 
www.NACo.org/LegislativeConference 

Stronger Counties. 
The National Association of Counties (NACo) unites America's 3,069 county governments. Founded in 1935, NACo 

brings county officials together to advocate with a collective voice on national policy, exchange ideas and build new 

leadership skills, pursue transformational county solutions, enrich the public's understanding of county 

government and exercise exemplary leadership in public service. 

Click here to unsubscribe. 



To: Craven County Board of Commissioners 
From: Rusty Cotton, Solid Waste Director 
Date: November 10, 2016 
Re: Expiration of Craven County Solid Waste Franchise Agreement 

Solid Waste 
Rusty Cotton 

Director 

In June 2012, Craven County entered into a 5-year Solid Waste Franchise Agreement with Republic 
Services of North Carolina, LLC to provide curbside collection of household solid waste and to offer 
subscription services in the areas of Craven County not serviced by a municipality. The contract is 
based on the reimbursement that is given to Republic per each trash sticker that is submitted to the 
Solid Waste Department. At the time of award, the reimbursement to Republic was $1.90 per sticker. 
This is comprised of $0.95 per sticker for tipping fees at the landfill and $0.95 per sticker for 
collection. The amount for the tipping fee is adjusted if there are changes in that charge from the 
landfill and the collection fee is adjusted by the changed in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for 
transportation capped at 7°/o. Currently our trash sticker is sold to the public at $2.25 per sticker. 

For 2016, Republic Services receives $1.89 per each sticker they submit to Solid Waste. The $1.89 
is comprised of $1.00 for the cost of disposal based on the landfill tipping fees of $40.00 per ton and 
$0.89 for collection. Sticker outlets are paid $0.10 per sticker sold and each sticker costs the county 
$0.04 to have printed. The total costs reclaimed per sticker are $2.03. This does not include Fed Ex 
costs associated with shipping stickers to our sticker outlets. 

County staff met with Republic Services on September 30, 2016 to discuss if Republic was interested 
in renewing the Franchise Agreement for an additional 5 year term which is part of the agreement. 
Republic notified us that the current $1.89 was not profitable for them and they were barely breaking 
even at this current price. They mentioned that they had underbid the agreement originally and were 
unable to renew at the current price. In further discussions with Republic, they gave a price of $2.97 
which is the price at which this program would be profitable. This would break down as follows: 

$1.00 for the cost of disposal based on the landfill tipping fees of $40.00 per ton. 
$1.97 for collection= $2.97 
$2.97 + $0.10 + $0.04 = $3.11 total costs per sticker. 

252-636-6659 Phone 406 Craven Street 
New Bern, NC 28560 



If this price is accepted, it will be necessary to increase the cost of the sticker in order to fund this 
program. Using the increased cost per sticker and applying that directly to the existing sticker price, 
the new sticker price would be $3.33. There is no room in this price to absorb any increases in the 
CPI index. At $3.50 per sticker, we should be able to absorb a 7% increase in the CPI for each year 
of the five year term if that happens. What we cannot plan for is any increase in the landfill tipping 
fees. Any increase in the sticker price would be effective with the execution of a new contract that 
would begin July 1, 2017. 

At this time, we are seeking direction from the Board regarding how to proceed. We can work to 
negotiate and renew the contract for a new 5-year term with Republic Services or we can issue a 
request for proposals to solicit a new service provider. As an additional note, when this contract was 
last bid in 2012, Waste Industries, our vendor for curbside recycling, put in a bid of $2.05 for the 
collection amount versus Republic's bid of $0.89. 

252-636-6659 Phone 406 Craven Street 
New Bern, NC 28560 



STATE OF NOI~TH CAROLINA 
COUNl'Y O.F CRAVEN 

THIS AGREEMENT n1ade and entered into this j_f?J day of _;J_f.~,_,z__ ___ , 2012, 
and effective as of July 1. 2012, by and between CRAVEN COUNTY, a body politic and 
corporate of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter referred to as "County"), and Republic 
Services of North Carolina, LLC d/b/a GDS - New Bern, a North Carolina lin1ited liability 
con1pany with its principal office and place of business in Craven County, North Carolina 
(hereinafter referred to as "Contractor''); 

ARTICLE 1 
AUTHORITY 

Without lin1itation, the following portions of the Constitution and General Statutes of 
North Carolina are recited herein as authority for this Agreen1ent: 

1. 

North Carolina Constitution, Article V §2(7) - Contracts 

"The General Assen1bly n1ay enact laws whereby the State, any county, city or town, and 
any other public corporation tnay contract with and appropriate money to any person, 
association, or corporation for the accotnplishn1ent of public purposes only." 

2. 

N.C. G. S. §I53A-ll- Corporate Powers 

"The inhabitants of each county are a body politic and corporate under the nan1e specified in 
the act creating the county. Under that nmne they ... tnay contract and be contracted with ... 
and have and n1ay exercise in confonnity with the law of this State county powers, 
rights, duties, functions, privileges, and i1n1nunities of every nmne and nature." 

3. 

N.C.G.S. § 153A-449- Contracts with private entities 

"A county n1ay contract with and appropriate tnoney to any person, association, or corporation, 
in order to cany out any public purpose that the county is authorized by law to engage in." 



4. 

N.C.G.S. §130A-309.03- Findings, Purposes 

H(a) 'The General Assembly finds that: 
(I) Inefficient and ilnproper n1ethods of n1anaging solid waste create hazards to 

public health, cause pollution of air and water resources, constitute a waste of natural 
resources, have an adverse effect on land values, and create public nuisances ... 

(3) The continuing technological progress and ilnproven1ents in n1ethods of 
manufacture, packaging, and n1arketing of consmner products have resulted in an ever
mounting increase of the tnass of n1aterial discarded by the purchasers of the products ... 

(4) The econon1ic growth and population growth of our State have required 
increased industrial production together with related con1n1ercial and agricultural operations to 
1neet our needs, which have resulted in a rising tide of unwanted and discarded 1naterials. 

(5) The failure or inability to econon1ically recover n1aterial and energy resources 
fron1 solid waste results in the unnecessary waste and depletion of our natural resources; such 
that, n1axinn1n1 resource recovery fron1 solid waste and maxin1lun recycling and reuse of the 
resources tnust be considered goals of the State. 

(6) Certain solid waste, due to its quantity, concentration, or physical, chen1ical, 
biological or infectious characteristics is exceptionally hazardous to hun1an health, safety and to 
the enviromnent, such that exceptional attention to the transportation, disposal, storage and 
treattnent of the waste is necessary to protect hun1an health, safety, and welfare and to protect 
the environ1nent. .. 

(b) It is the purpose of this Part t.o: 

( 1) Regulate in the n1ost econotnically feasible, cost-effective and environmentally 
safe tnanner the storage, collection, transport, separation, processing, recycling and disposal of 
solid waste in order to protect the public health, safety and welfare, enhance the environn1ent 
for the people of this State and recover resources which have the potential for further 
usefulness ... 

(3) Require counties and n1unicipalities to adequately plan and provide efficient, 
environ1nentally acceptable solid waste n1anagen1ent progrmns and require counties to plan 
for proper hazardous waste n1anagen1ent. .. 

(7) Pron1ote the reduction, recycling, reuse, or treatn1ent of solid waste, specifically 
including hazardous waste, in lieu of disposal of the waste ... 

(9) Encourage counties and 1nunicipalities to utilize all n1eans reasonably available 

2 



to prmnote efficient and proper n1ethods of n1anaging solid waste and to prmnote the 
econon1ical recovery of nutterial and energy resources from solid wastet including contracting 
with persons to provide or operate resource recovery services or facilities on behalf of the county 
or tnunicipality ... 

( 1 0) Pr01note the education of the general public and the trammg of solid waste 
professionals to reduce the production of solid waste, to ensure proper disposal of solid waste 
and to encourage recycling ... 

( 14) Require counties to develop and implen1ent recycling prognuns so that valuable 
n1aterials 1nay be returned to productive use, energy and natural resources conserved and the 
useful life of solid waste rnanagen1ent facilities extended ... 

(16) Require counties, municipalities and State agencies to detern1ine the full cost of 
providing storage, collection, transportt separation, processing, recycling, and disposal of solid 
waste in an environn1entally safe tnanner, and to encourage counties, n1unicipalities, and State 
agencies to contact with private persons for any or all the services in order to assure that the 
services are provided in the n1ost cost-effective n1anner.tt 

5. 
N.C.G.S. § 153A-136- Regulation of Solid Wastes 

"(a) A county n1ay by ordinance regulate the storage, collection, transportation, use, disposal, 
and other disposition of solid wastes. Such an ordinance n1ay: 

(1) Regulate the activities of persons, firms, and corporations, both public and 
private ... 

(3) Grant a franchise to one or tnore persons for the exclusive right to con1111ercially 
collect or dispose of solid wastes within all or a defined portion of the county and prohibit any 
other person f!·on1 con1111ercially collecting or disposing of solid wastes in that area. The Board 
of COintnissioners tnay set the tern1s of any franchise, except that no franchise 1nay be granted 
for a period exceeding 30 years, nor may any franchise by its tenns i1npair the authority of the 
Board of Con11nissioners to regulate fees as authorized by this section. 

(4) Regulate the fees, if any, that 111ay be charged by licensed or franchised persons for 
collecting or disposing of solid wastes. 

(5) Require the source separation of n1aterials fron1 solid waste prior to collection of 
the solid waste for disposal. 

(6) Require participation in a recycling progratn which has been approved by the 
Board of Cotntnissioners. 

(6a) Regulate the illegal disposal of solid waste, including littering on public and 

3 



private property, provide for enforcen1ent by civil penalties as well as other ren1edies, and 
provide that. such regulations tnay be enforced by county en1ployees specially appointed as 
enviromnent.al enforcen1ent officers. 

(7) Include any other proper 1natter. 

(b) Any ordinance adopted pursuant to this section shall be consistent with and 
supplen1entary to any rules adopted by the Comn1ission for Public Health or the Departn1ent of 
Environtnent and Natural Resources. . .. 

(d) As used in this section, 11Solid wastell n1eans nonhazardous solid waste, that is, solid 
waste as defined in G.S. 130A-290 but not including hazardous waste." 

6. 
N.C.G.S. 153A-122- Territorial jurisdiction of county ordinances 

"Except as otherwise provided in this Article, the board of cOintnissioners tnay znake any 
ordinance adopted pursuant to this Article applicable to any part of the county not within a 
city. 1n addition, the govcn1ing board of a city may by resolution pcn11it a county ordinance 
adopted pursuant t.o this Article to be applicable within the city. The city tnay by resolution 
withdraw its pcnnission to such an ordinance. If it does so, the city shall give written notice 
to the county of its withdrawal of pennission; 30 days after the day the county receives notice 
the county ordinance ceases to be applicable within the city." 

ARTICLE2 
RECITALS 

The following recitals are herewith set forth as statetnents of existing facts and are hereby 
incorporated as substantive parts of this Agreement: 

1. 
The Craven County Board of Con1n1issioners (hereinafter "The BoardH) has detcrn1ined 

that it is in the best interests of the citizens of Craven County to institute a county-wide solid 
waste collection progran1. 

2. 
Ce1tain Municipalities within Craven County have expressed their agreetnent in 

pennitting this agreetnent to be applicable within their boundaries in accordance with North 
Carolina General Statute § 153A-122 by approving and executing Interlocal Solid Waste 
Agreetnents. 

3. 
The parties have reached an agi·eement with respect to the furnishing of solid waste 

collection services for Craven County. 

4 



4. 
The board has approved fee schedules as subn1itted by each franchised hauler. 

5. 
The board has passed an ordinance allowing it to enter into exclusive franchise agreen1ents for 

the collection of solid waste in Craven County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the n1utual covenants and prmnises herein 
contained, the legal existence and sufficiency of which the parties adtnit., the County and the 
Contractor enter into this franchise agreement: 

ARTICLE3 
Definitions 

The following tenns used in this Agreement have the tneanings indicated in this section 
unless the context of the Agrcen1ent clearly requires otherwise: 

1. "Agrce1nent"- n1eans this Solid Waste Franchise Agreetnent. 

2. "Uoard"- n1eans the Board of COin missioners of Craven County. 

3. "CRSWMA"- means the Coastal Regional Solid Waste Managernent Authority. 

4. "Cart/Container"- tneans a receptacle for the storage and collection of Solid Waste 
pursuant to this ordinance. Additionally, the container tnay be used to store Solid Waste 
Collection Bags and tnay hold 33, 64 and 90 gallons by volmne or 50, 100 and 150 pounds by 
weight respectively. 

5. "Collection" - 1neans the act of removing Solid Waste or Recyclable Solid Waste 
Materials frotn a point of generation to a central storage point or to a disposal site and fr01n a 
central storage point to a disposal site. 

6. "Contractor"- tneans and refers to Republic Services of North Carolina, LLC. 

7. "Convenience Centers"- tneans an area designated by Craven County and staffed by 
etnployees for receipt of Solid Waste and specified Recyclable Solid Waste Materials. 

8. "County" - n1eans and refers to Craven County, Nortl1 Carolina, a body politic 
and corporate of the State of North Carolina. 

9. "Curbside" - tneans the location adjacent to but no n1ore than I 0 feet frotn the edge of 
a roadway providing access to a residence or hand cotntnercial establislnnent. 

10. ''Customer" - tneans the beneficiary of curbside collection services provided by a 

5 



franchisee including, but not litnited to, residences and hand con1n1ercial establislunents. 

1 1. ''Director"- tneans the County's Solid Waste Director or other person designated by 
the Board. 

12. "J)uJnpstet·"- n1eans stationary Solid Waste containers which require n1echanical pick
up by cust.mnized loading vehicles, including roll-off containers, which involve the collection 
of industrial and/or construction debris. 

13. "Effective Date" - n1eans and refers to July I, 20 1.2. 

14. "li.:xcluded Waste"- tneans waste tnaterials that are excluded fron1 collection services 
under this Agreetnent, including hazardous, radioactive, volatile, corrosive, highly flan1n1able, 
explosive, bion1edical, infectious, biohazardous, toxic or characteristic .Hazardous Waste as 
defined by federal, state, provincial or local law or any otherwise regulated waste. 

15. "Extra Services" - n1eans Solid Waste collection services rendered in addition to 
once-per-week curbside collection. l'hese services n1ay include any service relating to the 
collection of Solid Waste, but not Recyclable Solid Waste Material which 1nay be agreed upon 
between the Franchisee and any Custon1er authorized to receive such Solid Waste collection 
services fro111 the Franchisee pursuant to this Franchise agreetnent. 

16. "l?lat Fee Custo1ner'' - n1eans any Craven County resident who wishes to contract 
Solid Waste services, rather than using Solid Waste Collection Stickers, with his or her 
designated Franchisee for a fee. 

17. "l?ranchise Area" ·- n1eans specified areas of the County granted to Franchisees for 
the collection of Solid Waste or Recyclable Solid Waste Materials pursuant to Article 4 of the 
Ordinance. 

18. "Franchisee" - means a person who has been granted a franchise for the collection of 
Solid Waste or Recyclable Solid Waste Materials pursuant to Article 4 of the Ordinance. 

19. "Hand Coininercial Establislunent"- n1eans any coinnlercial entity disposing of less 
than three (3) cubic yards of Solid Waste per week or receiving Solid Waste collection service 
under this franchise, but not chunpster service, or any 1nultifamil y residential building not receiving 
dun1pster service. 

20. "IIazardous Waste" - includes, but is not lin1ited to, any atnount of waste listed or 
characterized as hazardous by the United States Environn1ental Protection Agency or any 
state agency pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as mnended, 
and including any future mnendtnents thereto, and any other applicable law, and any solid 
waste, or cotnbination of solid wastes~ which because of its quantity, concentration, or 
physical, che1nical or infectious characteristics 1nay: 

a. Cause or significantly contribute to an increase in 1nortality or an increase in 

6 



serious in·eversible, or incapacitating reversible illness; or 

b. Pose a substantial present or potential hazard to hun1an health or the 
environtnent when in1properly treated, stored, transported, or disposed of, or othetwise numaged. 

21. "Industrial Solid Waste'' - tneans Solid Waste generated by n1anufacturing or 
industrial processes that is not Hazardous Waste. 

22. "Landfill" - n1eans the Coastal Regional Solid Waste Landfill, located at Tuscarora, 
Craven County, North Carolina. 

23. "Ordinance" - 1neans Chapter 32 of the Craven County Code of Ordinances 
("Solid Waste,), as tnay be mnended fron1 tin1e to time. 

24. "I>erson"- tneans an individuat corporation, con1pany, association, partnership, LLC, 
unit of local governn1ent, state agency, federal agency or other legal entity. 

25. "I>rivate Drive"- n1eans a vehicular access serving one single fmnily residence. 

26. "Recyclable Solid Wast.e Material" - tneans those n1aterials which are capable of 
being recycled and which would otherwise be processed or disposed of as Solid Waste. These 
iten1s include, but are not necessarily lhnited to, newspaper (with inserts), alutninun1 cans and 
alun1inun1 foil products, PETE and HDPE (#1 & #2) plastic containers including natural and 
pigtnented containers such as blue, white and red colored plastics, clear, green and brown 
glass containers, corrugated cardboard (OCC) steel food cans, steel aerosol cans and steel 
paint cans. 

27. "l{ecycling" - n1eans any process by which Solid Waste or n1aterials which would 
otherwise becon1e Solid Waste are collected, separated or processed, and reused or returned to use 
in the fonn of raw tnaterials or products. 

28. "l{ecycling Container" -· 1neans a container provided by Craven County or its 
designee for collection of specified Recyclable Solid Waste Materials or any container used 
by a residence or hand con1Inercial establishtnent and clearly designated to contain such 
specified Recyclable Solid Waste Materials. 

29. "Residence" - n1eans any single fmnily dwelling, household or unit. 

30. "U.oadway" - 1neans a con1n1on vehicular tneans of access to three (3) or n1ore 
Custo1ners connected to a state or tnunicipal road and which is reasonably accessible by Solid 
Waste collection vehicles, taking into consideration roadway surface conditions and 
turnaround space for the vehicles. 

31. "Solid Waste"- tneans any nonhazardous solid waste generated in the Franchise Area 
that is not excluded by the provisions of this Agree1nent. Solid Waste shall not include any 
Excluded Waste. 

7 



32. "Solid Waste Collection Bag"- rneans a bag designated for collection of Solid Waste 
pursuant to this ordinance with a capacity not to exceed 33 gallons by volmne and 50 pounds 
by weight. 

33. "Solid Waste Collection Sticker" - 111eans a perforated adhesive sticker authorized 
for use by Craven County to be placed on Solid Waste Collection Bags or containers indicating 
that it is pern1issible for such bag or container, with a sticker attached, to be collected by a 
Franchisee or received at a staffed convenience center for disposal. One ( 1 ), two (2) e:md three (3) 
stickers are required f{)r 33, 64 and 90 gallons by volun1e and up to 50, 100 and 150 pounds by 
weight respectively. 

34. "Solid Waste Franchise Area Mat>" - n1eans a 1nap 1naintained by Craven 
County and indicating specified areas within Craven County for collection of Solid Waste or 
Recyclable Solid Waste Materials by Franchisees. 

ARTICLE4 
EFirECT 

By the power vested in the County to grant exclusive franchises, this agrcetnent hereby 
grants the exclusive right to the collection of Solid Waste n1aterials (other than recyclable nmterials) 
at all residences and hand comn1ercial establislunents (herein "Custon1ers") in the designated 
areas of Craven Cotmty hereinafter refened to as Area .1 (Jmnes City and Brices Creek area), Area 2 
(East Craven County (except City of Havelock),Riverdale and parts of Old Cherry Point Road, 
Area 3 (Fort Barnwell, Cove City and surrounding area and Town of Bridgeton), Area 4 
(Fairfield liarbour, Broad Creek Road, Sandy Point, Hwy 55 East), Area 5 (Trentwoods, 
Riverbend, North West Craven County), excluding the areas serviced by New Bern, Havelock, 
Bridgeton, Vanceboro and Dover as shown on the Craven County Solid Waste Franchise 
Area Map which is by reference incorporated herein. Contractor has exclusive rights within 
Franchise Areas for subscription service. 

ARTICLES 
TERMS OF THE FRANCHISE 

The franchise granted under the provisions of this Agree1nent shall exist for an initial 
period frotn July 1, 2012 until June 30, 2017 unless the f"'ranchisee sooner voluntarily 
surrenders the grant of the franchise, or unless the franchise is suspended, revoked, tenninated, or 
otherwise altered for cause, or renewed as set forth herein. Upon the conclusion of the fourth year 
of this franchise, the board will conduct a review of the franchisee's perfonnance to detennine 
the desirability of renewal for a five (5) year period beyond the original five (5) years. 
Provided, however, in no event is a franchise period to exceed ten (10) years. 

Just cause for the tennination of this Agree1nent shall be a 1naterial breach of the tenns 
of the ordinance or of the franchise as set out herein. 

8 



AR11CLE6 
INSURANCE 

The Contractor shall carry and keep current workmen's con1pensation and unen1ployn1ent 
insurance as required by the State of North Carolina. General liability and autotnobile liability 
coverage will be maintained with not less than the following lin1it~: 

Workers Con1pensation 
Bodily Injury Liability 

Property Datnage Liability 
General Liability 

Statutory Li1nits 
$100,000 each person 
$300,000 each occurrence 

$50,000 each occurrence 
$1,000,000 each occurrence 

Contractor agrees to furnish proof of existence of such coverage to County at least ten 
(10) days prior to the effective date of this franchise and fr01n titne to titne thereafter as 
County reasonably 1nay request. County shall be designated as an additional insured on all 
insurance policies (except Workers' Coxnpensation) providing the required coverages for 
purposes of this Agreen1ent. Each such policy shall contain a clause that the insurer will not 
cancel the insurance coverage without first giving County a rninin1un1 of ten (10) days advance 
written notice. 

ARTICLE7 
J>EU.FORMANCE 

The Contractor shall perforrn its obligations in a fair and efficient n1anner. If the County 
reasonably deetns that the Contractor is not perfonning as required under the tenns of this 
franchise or the Ordinance, then the County shall notify the Contractor in writing of the 
deficiencies. In the event that the Contractor fails to retnedy the deficiencies within thirty (30) 
days after receipt of such notice of deficiencies, then the County tnay tenninate this 
Agreement. The Contractor shall be responsible for datnages as provided by law to 
include reasonable attorneys fees incurred in enforcing this agree1nent. 

Deficient perfonnance by the Contractor shall not be dee1ned to constitute grounds for 
tennination when it is the result of conditions not reasonably within the control of the 
Contractor including, but not lin1ited to, civil disorder, natural disasters, or inclen1ent weather 
so severe that safe travel is not reasonably possible. 

Contractor shall collect Solid Waste according to the n1ethod prescribed by the Director 
and the Ordinance. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreetnent, title to and 
liability for Excluded Waste shall at no tilne pass to Contractor but shall retnain with the 
generator of such waste. 

9 



ARTICLES 
COLLECTI()N, TRANSPORTATION ANI) 

RECORD .. KEEPING DUTIES OF 
THE CONTRACTOR 

1. Collection -The Contractor shall provide collection of Solid Waste for all residential 
and hand cotntnercial establishtnents on a weekly basis in accordance with the Ordinance. 
Collection shall not begin prior to 7:00 a.n1. 

2. Transportation - All materials hauled by the Contractor shall be so contained that 
leaking, spilling or blowing contents fro1n the vehicle or container is prevented. In the 
event of any spiBage, the Contractor shall im1nediately clean up the litter. 

3. Record-Keeping -- The Contractor shall tnaintain records on the nun1ber of Solid 
Waste Collection Stickers collected fron1 Custmners within the Franchise Area. Those records 
shall be furnished to the County by the 15th of each 1nonth for the preceding n1onth. Monthly 
and year-to-date information shall also be included on each report. 

ARTICLE9 
CONJ)ITIONS Oli' Ji.,RANCHISE 

This franchise is subject to the following terms and conditions: 

I. All vehicles used for collection shall be cleaned regularly in accordance with all local, 
state, and federal laws and regulations. 

2. In the event of equipn1ent breakdown the Contractor must have an alternate 1nethod of 
pickup arranged in order that the service shall not be interrupted. 

3. The Contractor shall work with the Director and shall detennine and establish 
schedules and routes within each Franchised Area based on need and econon1ic 
factors. Each Custmner shall receive one pickup per week on a regularly scheduled basis, 
unless otherwise approved by the Director. The franchised collector shall base his 
collection upon the 1nethod established by the Director. 

4. Contractor shall provide back door collection services to any Custon1er who is 
physically incapacitated, and who is approved for such service by the County. Physically 
incapacitated persons wishing to qualify and participate in the weekly county-wide Solid 
Waste collection progrmn hereunder shall apply to the Director, including submission of 
a certification fron1 a duly licensed physician, requesting that said individual receive this 
collection service. The County shall review, 111aintain, approve and provide Contractor 
with a list of the addresses qualified for this special collection service. These Custorners 
are required to re-qualify by January 1st of each year. The Contractor 1nay request the 
County to re-evaluate the request for any specific address where evidence of abuse of this 
special collection service tnay exist. 

10 



5. Contractor shall furnish to the Director such records direct} y related to the operation of its 
franchise with accurate and current infonnat.ion as requested. Contractor shall not be required 
to furnish records of a proprietary nature, i.e., profit and loss or balance sheet financial 
inforn1ation. 

6. Within two weeks following the granting of this franchise the Contractor shall execute 
the Franchise Agreement in duplicate~ one copy to be retained by the franchised collector and 
an original to be returned to the Director. Unless said Agreetnent is returned within two weeks 
after the grant of this franchise, such franchise 1nay be tern1inated by the Board, unless such 
thne is extended for cause. 

7. Solid Waste shall be transported in the collection vehicle directly to the CRSWMA 
landfill or to a disposal area de..l)ignated by the Director or the County. Further, Contractor shall 
titnely satisfy any and all obligations to CRSWMA or other designated disposal areas, and n1ust at 
all tilnes 111aintain privileges to transport solid waste to the CRWSMA landfill or any other 
designated disposal area. 

8. The Contractor shall place the annual permit as required by CRSWMA pursuant to 
the ordinance for the satisfactory passage of inspection in a proper place on the vehicle to be 
detennined by CRSWMA. 

9. In the event the Director finds that the Contractor has failed to cotnply with the tenns 
and conditions of this franchise, the Director shall attetnpt an inforn1al resolution of this 
probletn with the Contractor. If the problen1 is not resolved the Director will advise the 
Contractor and tnay also advise the Board in writing as to his findings. The Director n1ay 
then tnake recon1n1endations as to what action he feels should be taken by the Board. 

10. In the event the Contractor is aggrieved by the findings or recotntnendations of the 
Director, the Contractor, upon request, shall be given a hearing by a conunittee of three (3) 
n1en1bers having the following con1position: One representative of Craven County, as appointed 
by the Director, one 1nen1ber appointed by the Contractor and a third n1en1ber agreed to by the 
other two designees. At the hearing the Contractor shall have the opportunity to show cause 
as to why the findings of the Director are incorrect, or why the action recon11nended by the 
Director should not be taken by the Board. The Board n1ust give consideration to the 
reco1ntnendation of the cotntnittee but is not bound by it. 

11. The Contractor shall assign, and solely shall be responsible for the supervision of, 
qualified personnel to n1anage and operate the collection syste1n within the Franchise Area. 
Each etnployee shall carry a valid operator's license for the type of vehicle which he or she 
is required to operate. The Contractor shall provide operation and safety training for all 
operational personnel. The County shall have no responsibility whatsoever for the acts or 
otnissions of the Contractor's personnel. 

12. The Contractor agrees that in the perfonnance of this Agreernent the Contractor 

11 



will not discri1ninate against any en1ployee or applicant because of race, color, creed, 
national origin, sex, age, ancestry or sexual preference. 

13. The Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all federal, st.at.e and local pen11its or 
licenses required for the operation of its business in the County and i11 the State of North 
Carolina including, but not lin1ited to, pennits or licenses required under any federal~ state or 
local law, regulation, standard, ordinance or decree concerning the collection, transport, 
manifesting, storage, treatn1ent, recycling and/or disposal of Solid Waste as and to the extent 
applicable to the business and activities of the Contractor. The Contractor shall obtain all such 
pern1its and licenses prior to the cmnn1encen1ent of the initial tern1 hereof. 

14. The Contractor shall abide by the terms and conditions of the Ordinance. 

15. The Contractor shall affix to each vehicle used by it hereunder appropriate and legible 
signage, indicating the nan1e of the Contractor and a business telephone nun1ber in service 
during regular business hours. 

16. The County reserves the right to inspect any vehicle utilized by Contractor hereunder 
for purposes of verifying any requirctnent contained in this Agreernent. 

17. The Contractor shall have any private subscription service run on the contracts current 
calendar year. i.e. July 1, 2012 thru June 30, 2013. 

AU.TICLE 10 
COMPENSATION IrOI{ SEU.VICES 

Solid Waste Collection Stickers - For each bag or cart of Solid Waste collected by the 
Franchisee, the appropriate nun1ber of stickers shall be attached by the Custo1ner before 
collection. Franchisee shall retnove the perforated portion of said sticker fro1n each bag 
Franchisee collects and shall turn each perforated portion of each sticker in to the 
Director. For each pe1forated portion of sticker returned to the County, the County shall pay 
said Franchisee, within seven (7) business days of receipt of the sticker, funds in an1ounts as 
detern1ined by the schedule of rates, fees, etc. as established by the Board of Conunissioners of 
Craven County. It is understood and agreed that the initial fee paid shall be $1.90 per 
sticker, which is based on the current disposal fee of $38.00 per ton at the CRSWMA 
landfill. This shall represent the full and total con1pensation for these services, with the 
exception of any pay1nent received fron1 Custon1ers for extra services rendered. 

Of the $1.90 atnount per sticker, $0.95 is paid to the Franchisee for the disposal of up to 
50 pounds of solid waste at the CRSWMA landfill at a current rate of $38.00 per ton. 

In the event of an increase or decrease in the CRSWMA landfill disposal fee, the 
appropriate adjustn1ent to the con1pensation hereunder will be tnade within 30 days of 
the increase or decrease in the rate. Provided, however, if the CRSWMA landfill 

12 



disposal fee decreases below $34.00 per ton, then $34.00 per ton will be used as the 
basis for rein1burse1nent for disposal hereunder. 

For purposes of illustration only, based on the initial fee set out above, the forn1ula for this 
calculation is as follows: 

Disposal Rate divided by 2,000 pounds ti1nes 50 pounds 

Exan1ple: $38.00 = $0.019/pouncl x 50 pounds= $0.95. 
2,000 lbs/ton 

The addit.iQnaJ $.95 mnount. per sticker is for collection. This mnount shall be adjusted 
annually (beginning on the first anniversary of the Effective Date) by one hundred percent 
( 1 OO<?'o) of the change in the Constnner Price Index (CPI) using the transportation index as 
n1easured by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, Southeast Regional Office (All Urban 
Constnners - 50,000 - 450,000 population), United States Departn1ent of Labor. Provided, 
however, the percentage increase or decrease per annun1 shall not exceed seven percent 
(7°/o ). 

In addition to the cotnpensation hereinabove mentioned, the Franchisee shall be entitled to 
such sun1s as he tnay receive fron1 Custon1ers from the lease or purchase of a cart. for the 
storage of Solid Waste Collection Bags. 

AR110l~ll 

INDEMNII?ICATION 

Contractor shall indetnnify and hold harn1less the County and its officers, agents, 
servants and en1ployees fron1 and against any and all loss, cost, datnage and expense of any 
kind, including attorney fees and disbursen1ents, incurred by or threatened against Contractor 
arising out of, in connection with or attributable to (a) the willful misconduct or negligent acts 
or omissions of Contractor or any of its agents, en1ployees, servants, independent 
contractors or subcontractors except to the extent any such act or on1ission shall be the 
result of willful malfeasance or negligence on the part of the County, or (b) the failure of 
Contractor to perfonn its duties and obligations under this Agreen1ent or otherwise to co1nply 
with the terms hereof. 

Al~TICLE12 
MISCELLANEOUS PR()VISIONS 

1.. This Agreen1ent shall be binding upon the successors, assigns, agents, officials and 
etnployees of the parties and constitute the entire understanding of the parties. This 
Agreen1ent n1ay be assigned in accordance with the provisions of the Ordinance. 

13 



2. Without in any way lin1iting or diminishing the specific duties and responsibilities of 
the Contractor set forth above. Contractor at all tin1es during the initial and any extension tenn of 
this Agree111ent shall fully con1ply with all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations, 
orders and requiren1ents relating to health, safety and the environn1ent, including without 
lilnilation those relating to atnbient air, surface and ground water, surface and sub-surface soils 
and other natural resources and those relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, 
treat1nent, storage, handling, transportation, release, disposal or itnporting and exporting of 
Solid Waste. 

3. The Contractor will take all safety, preventative and ren1edial1neasures required by any 
and all directives fron1 the North Carolina Departn1ent of Environn1ent., Health and Natural 
Resources, t.hc United States Environn1ental Protection Agency, the Occupational Safety and 
HeahJ1 Administration, and any other federal, state or local agency having jurisdiction over 
Contractor or its activities. 

4. This Agreetnent shall be modified, an1ended or changed only pursuant to a writing signed 
by each of the parties hereto. 

5. The authority for the granting of this franchise is provided in the Craven County 
Ordinance Relating to the Franchising of Private Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials 
Collectors and the Collection and Disposal of Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials within 
Craven County, and its terms and conditions are hereby incorporated by reference herein. 

6. The Contractor expressly acknowledges that under certain circurnstances outside the 
control of the County, such as annexation by a n1tmicipality of a portion of the Franchise Area or 
revocation of an lnterlocal Agree1nent between the County and a nRmicipality related to any 
portion of a Franchise Area, the Franchisee's Franchise Area shall be tnodified and an1ended 
accordingly, without any further action or consent by the .Franchisees, or other 1nodification to this 
Agree1nent. 

ARTICLE 13 
INTEGU.ATI()N 

This Agreen1ent contains the entire agree1nent of the parties and no representation, 
inducen1ents, or other covenant between the parties not included herein shall be of any force 
and effect. 

ARTICLE 14 
CH()ICE OJ? LAW; VENUE 

This Agree1nent shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. V cnue for 
any action, whether at law or in equity, shall be Craven County, North Carolina. 

14 



ARTICLE 15 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

The parties hereto expressly acknowledge and agree that Contractor is an independent 
contractor and that nothing contained herein is intended or shall be construed as creating 
between Contractor and County an employer/employee, joint venture or principal/agent 
relationship, or a partnership. Under no circun1stances shall the County be required to withhold 
on behalf of any en1p loyee of Contractor any sums for income tax, unen1ploy1nent insurance, 
social security or any other withholding pursuant to any law or the requirement of any 
governmenta l body, or make available to any employee of Contractor any of the benefits 
afforded to employees of the CoLmty. All of such foregoing payments, withholclings and 
benefits nre the sole and absolute responsibility of the Contractor. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF said parties have hereunto set their hands and seals 
the clay and year first above written. 

ATTEST: 

GWENDOLYN M. BRY A 
-SEAL-

BY: 

Franchisee: Rep tblic Services of North Carolina, LLC 

By: 
N mne: -----'""---=----~~,:--:-L.:.6_wt_' _ ___ _ 
Title: ---------\~L-..:. ______ _ 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

~Lr4-£ d~--
LEE KYLE ALLEN, Chairn1an 

THIS INSTRUMENT has been pre-audited in the tnam1er required by the Local Govermnent 
Budget and Fiscal Control Act as mnended. 

Date: _G----+-"-J --f'l /--'--) ·_2--
, I 

15 



APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM AND ADEQUACY: 

(/--
Ji"intn' B. Hicks, Jr., Craven County Attorney 

16 



CRAVEN COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
Board of Health & Board of Commissioners Fee Approval 

Recommendation 

Date of Request: November 14,2016 

New Fee Recommended Effective Date: July 1, 2016 

Line Item & Section: 101-3101-357-55-00 

Description of Service: Engineered Option Permit (EOP). This permit came about from a bill that became a 
Temporary Rule on July 1, 2016 and becomes a Permanent Rule January 1 2017. (N.C.G.S. 130A-336.1. 
Alternative process for wastewater system approvals.) 

Justification: 
The local health departments may charge a fee for the EOP that is up to 30% of the cumulative total of the fees 
the department has established for an IP, CA, and OP. The exact wording in the law is as follows: 

G.S. 130A-336.1(n) "Fees.- The local health department may assess a fee for the engineered option permit of 
up to thirty percent (30%) of the cumulative total of the fees the department has established to obtain an 
improvement permit, an authorization to construct, and an operations permit for wastewater systems under its 
jurisdiction. The fee shall only be used by the department in support of its work pursuant to this section to 
conduct site inspections; support the department's staff participation at post-construction conference meetings; 
and archive the engineered permit with the county register of deeds or other recordation of the wastewater 
system as required." 
IP =Improvements Permit (First permit required in order be able to install a septic system) 
CA = Construction Authorization (Second permit issued by Health Department that gives authorization to 

install a septic system and also start construction on the home) 
OP =Final permit issued by Health Department stating that everything has been installed properly 

Current Fee: None 

Current Fee: None 

Approvals: 

Administrative Officer/Date 

Board of Healtll Cllairperson/Date 

Proposed Fee: $82.50 = 4 Bedroom septic system or less 
(IP = $150, CA = $125, 

$150 +$125 = $275 * 0.3 = $82.50) 
Proposed Fee: $180 = > 4 bedroom septic system or a place of 

business/public assembly/commercial property 
(IP = $300, CA = $300, 
$300 + $300 = $600 * 0.3 = $180) 

H ealtll Director/Date 

Board of Commissioner's Approval/Date 

Page I o I 



CRAVEN COUNTY 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING 
THE OP~RATION AND MAINTENANCE OF 

_SOLAR ENERGY FACILITIES 

WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance regulating the operation and maintenance of solar 

energy facilities ("Ordinance") will: (i) establish a uniform method of regulating solar energy 

facilities; (ii) establish the rights, duties and obligations of developers and operators of solar 

energy facilities; (iii) balance the interests of the general public with the development rights of 

individual property owners; and (iv) promote the health, safety and general welfare of the public; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance is consistent with the County's Land Use Plan's 

goals and objectives, and with the County's overall land use regulations and ordinances; and, 

WHEREAS, the proposed Ordinance will further the purposes of the Code of 

Ordinances as to other ordinances and actions designed to implement the County's Land Use 

Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Staff recommends approval of the proposed amendments; and, 

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2016, the County's Planning Board voted 5 to 0 to 

recommend that the Board of Commissioners approve the proposed Ordinance set forth herein; 

and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners held a duly-noticed public hearing on 

November 7, 2016 to consider adopting the Ordinance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS as follows: 

SECTION I 

The proposed Ordinance is found to be consistent with the County's Land Use Plan, and 

other land use regulations, ordinances and policies; and otherwise promotes the public health, 

safety and general welfare. Therefore, the Ordinance is hereby adopted as set forth here. 

Page 1 



SECTIONll 

1. That a new Appendix I ('An Ordinance Regulating the Operation and 

Maintenance of Solar Energy Farms'} of the Craven County Code of Ordinances be adopted as 

follows: 

I-1.1 Title. 

This Ordinance may be known and may be cited as "Ordinance Regulating the Operation 
and Maintenance of Solar Energy Facilities." 

1 .. 1.2 Purposes and objectives. 

The purposes and objectives for which this Ordinance is passed are as follows: 

(1) To preserve the dignity and aesthetic quality of the environment in Craven County. 

(2) To preserve the physical integrity of land in close proximity to residential areas. 

(3) To protect and enhance the economic viability and interests of the citizens and residents 
of Craven County who have made substantial financial investments in homes, 
businesses, and industry in Craven County. 

I-1.3 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this Ordinance, certain terms and words are hereby defined; words used 
in the present tense shall include the future~ words used in the singular number shall include the 
plural number; and the plural the singular; and the word "shall" is mandatory and not 
discretionary. 

Building: Any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls, and designated or 
intended for the shelter, support, enclosure or protection of persons, animals or chattels. 

Fence: A continuous barrier extending from the surface of the ground to a uniform height of 
not less than six feet from the ground at any given point, constructed of dirt, wood, stone, steeL 
or other metal, or any substance of a similar nature and strength. 

Gate: A door or other device attached to a fence which, when opened, provides a means of 
ingress and egress of persons and things for which it was intended, and which, when closed, 
forms a continuous barrier as a part of the fence to which it is attached. 

Improved area: Area containing solar panels, electrical inverters, storage buildings and 
access roads. 

Page2 



Opaque fence: A continuous opaque (non-transparent), unperforated barrier extending from 
the surface of the ground to a uniform height of not less than six feet from the ground at any 
given point, constructed of dirt, wood, stone, steel, or other metal, or any substance of a similar 
nature and strength which will hide the solar energy facility. 

Photovoltaic: A material or device in which electricity is generated as a result of exposure 
to light 

Public road: Any road or highway which is now or hereafter designated and maintained by 
the North Carolina Department of Transportation as part of the State Highway System, whether 
primary or secondary, hard-surfaced or other dependable roads. Setbacks for improved areas 
shall be measured from the road right of way. 

Residence: A building used as a dwelling for one or more families or persons. 

Solar energy facility (also "SEF"): An energy facility or area of land principally used to 
convert solar energy to electricity, which includes, but is not limited to, the use of one or more 
solar energy systems. This definition shall exclude those facilities that are installed on the roof of 
a building, the primary purpose of such building not being for the commercial production of 
solar energy. 

I -1.4 Prohibitions. 

It shall be unlawful after the effective date of this Ordinance for any person, firm, or 
corporation, or other legal entity to operate, maintain or establish in any unincorporated area of 
Craven County a solar energy facility which the site plan has not been approved by the Craven 
County Planning Board. Modifications to an existing solar energy facility that increases the area 
by more than 20 percent of the original footprint or changes the solar panel type shall be subject 
to this Ordinance. 

I -1.5 Location. 

(a) Improved areas shall not be located in a federally designated Special Flood Ha,zard Area -
AE. 

(b) All solar energy facilities located in areas covered by the most recent AICUZ report or 
subsequent reports must be sent to the MCAS Cherry Point base commander or designated 
official for comment. The base -commander must be given 21 days for a response. 

(c) All improved areas shall be at least 100 feet from a public road and 25 feet from the fence 
line. 

(d) Improved areas shall be at least 100 feet from a primary residential, commercial, church, or 
institutional structure upon property not associated with a Solar Energy Facility. 

Page3 



(e) All access roads and storage areas shall be established on a 30-foot minimum easement to a 
public right-of-way. 

(f) All solar energy facilities shall have a minimum landscape buffer of 50 feet. The buffer shall 
contain one (1) row of evergreen trees or bushes planted no more than eight feet apart and at 
least four feet tall at time of planting. The buffer shall obtain a height of ten feet within three 
growing seasons. The trees or bushes may be trimmed but no lower than a height of ten feet. 

I-1.6 Fencing; Security. 

Solar energy facilities shall be fenced completely as defined in section I-1.3 above. The 
perimeter fence shall be designed to restrict unauthorized access. 

I-1. 7 Supplemental regulations. 

(a) The manufacturers or installer•s identification and appropriate warning sign shall be posted 
on or near the panels in a clearly visible manner. 

(b) On site power lines between solar panels and inverters shall be placed underground. 

(c) The design of solar energy facilities buffers shall use materials, colors, textures, screening 
and landscaping, that will blend the facility into the natural setting and existing environment. 

(d) If the solar energy facility consists of batteries or storage of batteries, adequate design must 
be provided to ensure all local, state and federal requirements regulating outdoor battery 
storage have been met. 

(e) The applicant must obtain from NC Department of Transportation a driveway permit. 

(f) The design and construction of solar energy facilities shall not produce light emissions, 
either direct or indirect (reflective), that would interfere with pilot vision and/or traffic 
control operations as stated in the most recent AICUZ report, as well as low level military 
training routes as then utilized by any branch of the US Department of Defense. 

(g) The design and construction of solar energy facilities shall not produce electrical emissions 
that would interfere with aircraft communications systems or navigation equipment as stated 
in the most recent AICUZ report, as well as low level military training routes as then utilized 
by any branch of the US Department of Defense. 

(h) A copy of the application to the utility company that will be purchasing electricity from the 
proposed site shall be provided to the county. 

(i) A fully executed copy of an agreement between the lot owner and the facility's owner or 
operator confirming the owner or operator has permission of the property owner to apply for 
the necessary permits for construction and operation of the solar energy facility. 

(j) Any other relevant studies, reports, certificates and approval as may be reasonably required 
by Craven County. 

Page4 



(k) A description of the proposed technology to include type of solar panel and system, fixed 
mounted verses solar tracking, number of panels, and angles of orientation. 

(1) An information sign shall be posted and maintained at the entrance(s) which lists the name 
and phone number of the operator. 

(m) It is the responsibility of the parcel owner to remove all obsolete or unused systems within 
12 months of cessation of operations. Reusable components are to be recycled whenever 
possible. 

(n) A copy of all permits and/or approvals issued by the North Carolina Utilities Commission. 

( o) Each owner, operator or maintainer of a solar energy facility to which this Ordinance applies 
shall utilize good husbandry techniques with respect to said landscaping buffer, including 
but not limited to, proper pruning, proper fertilizer, and proper mulching, so that the 
vegetation will reach maturity as soon as practical and will have maximum density in 
foliage. Dead or diseased. vegetation shall be removed and must be replanted at the next 
appropriate planting time. Plants or grasses not part of the landscaping buffer shall be 
maintained by the facility operator not to exceed 12 inches in height. 

(p) The owner or operator shall submit a current Phase 1 environmental assessment report at the 
time of application, dated not more than 90 days prior to submittal hereunder. When 
circumstances warrant, the County may require a Phase 2 environmental assessment. 

( q) The operator shall submit a current Phase 1 environmental assessment report at the time of 
decommissioning or upon an event of abandonment, within 90 days of either event. When 
circumstances warrant, the County may require a Phase 2 environmental assessment. 

I-1.8 Site plan required. 

(a) Owners or operators of solar energy facilities established after the effective date of the 
Ordinance from which this Ordinance derives shall present three copies of a site plan which 
conform to the standards of this Ordinance to the Planning Board, as well as payment in full 
of all fees that may be required by the Craven County Schedule of Fees, if any. The site plan 
shall include setbacks, panel sizes, and location of property lines, buildings and road rights
of-way. 

(b) The Planning Board shall review the site plan to insure conformity with the requirements of 
this Ordinance, and make recommendations to the Board of Commissioners to either 
approve, reject, or approve with conditions. No new solar energy facility shall be operated 
until the site plan has been approved by the Board of Commissioners; provided, however, 
that if the Board of Commissioners has not taken action within 90 days after the first 
Planning Board meeting after the submission of the site plan, said site plan will be deemed 
to be approved. 

(c) The Board of Commissioners may grant a variance of the design standard requirements of 
this Ordinance, in accordance with the standards set forth in Section A-206 of the Craven 
County Code of Ordinances. Applications for such variance shall be made to the Planning 
Director. 

Pages 



(d) Prior to final inspection, proof that a permit issued by the state in accordance with applicable 
provisions of the General Statutes has been issued. 

(e) Appeals of all matters under this Ordinance shall be to Craven County Superior Court. 

I-1. 9 Abandonment and decommissioning plan 

(a) Abandonment: 

A SEF that ceases to produce energy on a continuous basis for 12 months will be 
considered abandoned unless the current responsible party (or parties) with ownership interest in 
the SEF provides substantial evidence (updated every 6 months after 12 months of no energy 
production) to the Planning Director or his designee of the intent to maintain and reinstate the 
operation of that facility. It is the responsibility of the responsible party (or parties) to remove all 
equipment and facilities and restore the parcel to its condition prior to development of the SEF. 
Further, it is the responsibility of the operator of the SEF to notify the Planning Director in 
writing of any cessation ofthe production of energy, within ten (10) days ofthe same. 

1. Upon determination of abandonment, the Planning Director shall notify the party (or 
parties) responsible they must r~move the SEF and restore the site to its condition prior to 
development of the SEF within three hundred and sixty (360) days of notice by the Planning 
Director or his designee. 

2. If the responsible party (or parties) fails to comply, the Planning Director or his 
designee may remove the SEF, sell any removed materials, and initiate judicial proceedings or 
take any other steps legally authorized against the responsible parties to recover the costs 
required to remove the SEF and restore the site to a non-hazardous pre-development condition. 

(b) Decommissioning: 

a. A decommissioning plan signed by the party responsible for decommissioning and 
the landowner (if different) addressing the following shall be submitted prior to the issuance of 
the development permit. 

1. Defmed conditions upon which decommissioning will be initiated (i.e. end of 
land lease, no power production for 12 months, abandonment etc.) 

ii. Removal of all non-utility owned equipment, conduit, structures, fencing, roads, 
solar panels and foundations. 

iii. Restoration of property to condition prior to development of the SEF. 

iv. The timeframe for completion of decommissioning activities. 

Page6 



v. Description of any agreement (e.g. lease) with landowner regarding 
decommissioning. 

vi. The party currently responsible for decommissioning. 

vii. Plans for updating this decommissioning plan. 

viii. A form of surety equal to 125% of the entire cost of decommission under the 
plan, as estimated by a North Carolina licensed engineer under seal, and approved 
by the County Planning Director and County Attorney, either through cash, a 
surety performance bond, irrevocable letter of credit or other instrument readily 
convertible into cash at face value, either with the County or in escrow with a 
financial institution designated as an official depository of the County. This surety 
shall be retained by the County to cover the .cost of the decommissioning 
requirements herein. Following initial submittal of the surety, the cost calculation 
shall be reviewed annually, and adjusted accordingly based upon an updated 
estimate of a North Carolina licensed engineer under seal, of the estimated 
decommissioning costs; provided however, any such periodic adjustment must be 
approved by the Director of the Craven County Planning Department. Failure to 
comply with any requirement of this Section shall result in the immediate 
termination and revocation of all prior approvals and permits; further, County 
shall be entitled to make immediate demand upon, and/or retain any proceeds of, 
the surety, which shall be used for decommissioning and/or removal of the Solar 
Energy Facility, even if still operational. 

I-1.1 0 Aviation Notification 

(a) For consideration of potential impacts to Cherry Point MCAS and Seymore Johnson AFB 
flying operations, notification of intent to construct an SEF shall be sent to the respective Base 
Commanders or designated officials 30 days before the regularly scheduled Planning Board 
meeting. Notification shall include location ofSEF (i.e. map, coordinates, address, or parcel ID), 
technology (i.e. roof-mounted PV, ground-mounted fixed PV, tracked PV, solar thermal, etc.), 
and the area of system (e.g. 5 acres). Proof of delivery of notification and date of delivery shall 
be submitted with permit application. 

(b) For consideration of potential impacts to civilian flight paths for airport operations 
located within five ( 5) nautical miles from an airport listed in the National Plan of Integrated 
Airport Systems, notification of intent to construct an SEF shall be sent to the airport manager or 
designated official and the Federal Aviation Administration's (FAA) Airport District office 
(ADO) with oversight of North Carolina. Notification shall include location of SEF (i.e. map, 
coordinates, address, or parcel ID), technology (i.e. roof-mounted PV, ground-mounted fixed 
PV, tracked PV, solar thermal, etc.), and the area of system (e.g. 5 acres). Proof of delivery of 

Page7 



notification and date of delivery shall be submitted with permit application. The airport must be 
given 30 days for review. 

(c) For consideration of potential impacts to civilian flight paths for airport operations 

located within five (5) nautical miles from an airport not listed in the National Plan of Integrated 
Airport Systems, except military airports, notification of intent to construct an SEF shall be sent 

to the airport manager or designated official. Notification shall include location of SEF (i.e. map, 
coordinates, address, or parcel ID), technology (i.e. roof-mounted PV, ground-mounted fixed 

PV, tracked PV, solar thermal, etc.), and the area of system (e.g. S acres). Proof of delivery of 
notification and date of delivery shall be submitted with permit application. The airport must be 
given 30 days for review. 

(d) After receiving notification of intent to construct an SEF as described in Section I-1.1 0, B 

and C; if requested, the proponent of the SEF shall use the latest version of the Solar Glare 
Hazard Analysis Tool (SGHAT), per its user•s manual to evaluate the solar glare aviation hazard, 
as indicated in D (i) and D (ii). The full report for each flight path and observation point, as well 
as the contact information for the zoning administrator, shall be sent to the authority indicated 
below at least 30 days prior to site plan approval Proof of delivery of notification and date of 
delivery shall be submitted with permit application. 

i. Airport operations at an airport in the National Plan of Integrated Airport Systems 
(NPIAS) within 5 nautical miles of the center of a proposed SEF: provide 
required SGHAT analysis information to the airport manager or designated 
official and the Federal Aviation Administration's (FAA) Airport District office 
(ADO) with oversight ofNorth Carolina. 

11. Airport operations at airport not in the NPIAS, except military airports, as defined 
in Section Ten, subsection C, within 5 nautical miles of the center of proposed 
SEF~ provide required SGHAT analysis information to the management of the 
airport for non-military airports. 

(e) Proposed SEFs within the Cherry Point MCAS Airspace Control Surfaces Area as 
defined in the most recent Air Installation Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) or subsequent 
AICUZ reports will be evaluated for potential impacts to Cherry Point MCAS and Seymore 
Johnson AFB flying operations as described below. 

i. After receiving notification of intent to construct the SEF (to include all SGHAT 
PV parameters), the Cherry Point MCAS Base Commander or designated official 
will notify the designated Craven County official if the SGHAT needs to be 
utilized by the SEF proponent or not. 

ii. If the SGHAT does not need to be utilized, the Cherry Point MCAS Commander 
or designated official will respond to the designated Craven County official. 

PageS 



iii. If the SGHAT does need to be utilized, the SEF proponent shall contact the 
Cherry Point Base Commander or designated official to receive the 
military data needed for the SGHAT (e.g., locations, increments, and 
elevations of observation points, as well as air traffic control tower information). 
The SGHAT shall be used per its user manual and reports must be run over the 
entire calendar year (each time zone). Upon receiving the SGHAT reports, the 
Cherry Point Base Commander or designated official will respond to the 
designated Craven County official. 

(f) Any applicable SEF design changes (e.g. module tilt, module reflectivity, etc.) after 
initial submittal shall be rerun in the SGHAT tool and the new full report shall be sent without 
undue delay to the contact specified in sections I -1.1 0( d)(i and ii) and I-1.1 0( e) above for 
accurate records of the as-built system. 

I-1.11 Violation shall be a misdemeanor. 

(a)Any person, firm, corporation, or other entity who maintains or operates or who controls 
the maintenance of a solar energy facility in violation of this Ordinance shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and subject to prosecution, and if convicted, shall be punished by a fme not to 
exceed $500.00 or by imprisonment not to exceed 30 days, or both, in the discretion of the court._ 
Each day that said solar energy facility shall be maintained or operated in violation of this 
Ordinance shall constitute a separate and distinct offense. 

(b )Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to comply 
with any of its requirements shall subject the offender to a civil penalty of $500.00. If the 
offender fails to remedy the violation and pay any civil penalty within thirty (30) days after being 
cited for said violation (or within the time prescribed by a citation if it provides for a longer 
period of time than thirty days), the civil penalty may be recovered in a civil action in the nature 
of a debt. Civil penalties begin to accrue from the date of the first notice of violation. Such civil 
penalties shall be in addition to any abatement costs. 

(c)Each day that any violation continues, regardless of the date of notice, shall be considered 
a separate offense for purposes of the penalties and remedies specified in this section. In such an 
event, civil penalties begin to accrue from the date of the first notice of violation. For continuing 
violations, the initial citation and requirement that the civil penalty be paid within the time 
prescribed therein shall be the only notice required to be given; and shall be deemed to be an on
going citation and notice for continuing violations after the date of the 

I-1.12 Enforcement. 

(a) The enforcement officer shall be the Planning Director or his designee. The enforcement 
officer shall review site plans submitted under section I -1.7 and make appropriate 
recommendations to the planning board. The enforcement officer shall also visit the 
facilities regulated by this Ordinance as needed in the Planning Director; s discretion, and if 

Page9 



the facility does not conform to said Ordinance shall discuss with the owner and/or operator 
the steps needed to bring the facility into compliance. If these steps are not taken, the 
enforcement officer shall notify the owner in writing of the steps that must be taken to bring 
the facility into compliance. If the owner or operator still fails to bring the facility into 
compliance with this Ordinance, the enforcement officer, after consultation with the county 
manager, shall institute the necessary steps to enforce this Ordinance in accordance with the 
provisions of subsection (b) of this section. The enforcement officer shall also assist owners 
or operators of any solar energy facility in making plans to comply with this Ordinance. 

(b) This Ordinance may be enforced by an appropriate equitable remedy issuing from a court of 
competent jurisdiction. It may be enforced by injunction and order of abatement The 
County may apply for a mandatory or prohibitory injunction and order of abatement 
commanding the violator to correct any unlawful condition upon or cease the unlawful use 
of property. The County may request an order of abatement as part of a judgment in the 
cause any may request the court to close, demolish or remove buildings or other stn;tctures 
or take any other action that is necessary to bring the solar energy facility into compliance 
with this Ordinance. 

(c) This Ordinance may be enforced by any one or more of the remedies authorized herein. 

2. That this Ordinance is effective upon adoption. 

Adopted and effective this __ day of _______ 2016. 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

(County Seal) 

GEORGE LINER, Chair 
Attest: 

GWEN BRYAN, Clerk 

9\\\SERVER04\lssdocs\00000038\00069305.003.DOCX 

Page 10 



Craven GIS 
Craven County does NOT warrant the information shown on this map and should be used ONLY for tax assessment purposes . 



Craven GIS 
Craven County does NOT warrant the information shown on this map and should be used ONLY for ta x assessment purposes . 



A-4-J.,..I .• 4cJI..11 

RESOLUTION 
DESIGNATION OF APPLICANT'S AGENT 

North Carolina Division of Emergency Management 
Organization Name (hereafter named Organization) Disaster Number: 

C-'Jo.-v e,"' f:.o{A,n hi · fEmA - LJ·z...-zs- 0;1. .,. tV c. 
Applicant's State Cognizant Agency for'Single Audit purposes (If Cognizant Agency is not assigned, please indicate): 

Applicant's Fiscal Year (FY) Start 
'Jl.-\'-f Day: l Month: 

Applicant's Federal Employer's Identification Number 
-

5b- b0001--1D 
Applicant's Federal Information Processing Standards (FIPS) Number 

- -
'3 7·- 0'1_ q 

PRIMARY AGENT SECONDARY AGENT 

Agent~s Name C .. 
{ p.)~rre{\ 

Agent's Name 
':JA-v( Ve.:,c\-rc;..-\''1 

Organization 
~ 

Organization 
C I <Ave."' Co v."'+vl Crc..vtvr... c 0""-1"\. {-."' 

Official Position Official Position C l 

P"'v..,.,~ 'Dir-~r 0 !.A Y\ ·~_..., l~l""'l~"'ler 
Mailing Address ~l Mailing Address lf D ~ ' "-J 

Db Cn:-:vl-V'\ d--ru.·f- Gt'C..vl,tl'"\ ~+ 
City ,State, Zip 

New (3e.!V1 Nc 1-1660 
City ,State, Zip 

JVew 73erl'\ Ale 1-Z->60 
Daytime Telephone b ~ 

6 '1-5-7.,,. 3-6- t 0 3 
Daytime Telephone 

~52' b 3,(- bbCJO 
Facsimile Number 

6".3.6- ~63'8 
Facsimile Number 

-1.-5~- 6 '37 -O!rz..b ?,S ?..--

Pager or Cellular Number Pager or Cellular Number 

BE IT RESOLVED BY the governing body of the Organization (a public entity duly organized under the laws of the State of North Carolina) 
that the above-named Primary and Secondary Agents are hereby authorized to execute and file applications for federal and/or state assistance on 
behalf of the Organization for the purpose of obtaining certain state and federal financial assistance under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief 
& Emergency Assistance Act. (Public Law 93-288 as amended) or as otherwise available. BElT FURTHER RESOLVED that the above-named 
agents are authorized to represent and act for the Organization in all dealings with the State of North Carolina and the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency for all matters pertaining to such disaster assistance required by the grant agreements and tl1e assurances printed on the 
reverse side hereof. BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED THAT the above-named agents are authorized to act severally. PASSED AND 
APPROVED this davof 20 

GOVERNING BODY CERTIFYING OFFICIAL 

Name and Title Name 

Name and Title Official Position 

Name and Title Daytime Telephone 

CERTIFICATION 

I, ~(Name) duly .appointed and (Title) 
of the Governing Body, do hereby certifY that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution passed and 
approved by the Governing Body of (Organization) on the day of 

,20_. 

Date: Signature: 
Rev. 06/02 



.A~ 

RECREATION AND PARKS ADVISORY BOARD 

Name Attendance Record 

District 1 Daniel Miller 2/4 (approximate) 

Chad Braxton 2/4 (approximate) 

District 2 Forrestine Riggs 0/4 

Kristen McCoy 2/4 (approximate) 

Dickie Fairburn 0/4 

Jennings Allen 214 (approximate) 

District 3 N/A 

District 4 Matt Webb 2/4 

Jim Bernthal 2/4 (approximate) 

Eugene Bauer 2/4 (approximate) 

District 5 Cathy Frazier 1/4 

District 6 Abel Sandoval {Resigned) 

District 7 Bill Taylor 4/4 

• Attendance labeled as approximate denotes patchy attendance; there is no exact 
record since there has not been a quorum and, therefore, no official minutes. 



\ 

(For Internal Use Only) 
Date Received: q ... J. (:;.-/(, 

Date Appointed :Reappointed 

Volunteer Board Information and Interest Sheet 
Craven County, North Carolina 

Names of board1 committee, authority~ etc., In which you are interested. Please fist in order of priority: 
Recreation Advisory Committee, Region~! Ubrary Board 

Name: Paul Whitakec., ---------------------------
Home Address; 306 Panther Trail City Limits: _x __ Yes 

City: Havelock Zip Code: 28532 

Township: Home Phone: 

No 

Occupation: Production Controlfer Business Phone:.~---------

Place of Employment: Fleet Readiness Center East Cell Phone: (760) 547-4344 

E-Mail Address: paul.whitakeri986@gmail.com. Fax Number: 

(Please indicate your preferred contact number.) 

Education 
Sports & Recreation Management, BA 2016 

Master of Public Administration, 2018 

Business and Civic Experience 

I am currently developing and installing a famHy business called rrWhit's Photography" based on photo-shooting and 

picture taking. 

Areas of Expertise, Interest, SkHis 

Logistics, inventory and management. Non~profitl charity, and community assistance in the public sector. Promoting 

involvement within the community, recreational activities, and giving back to those who have served this country. 

Why do you want to serve? 

I want to learn and gain experience to contribute to my educational background in Public Administration. I also want to 

contribute aJ)d assist the community as much as possible. There is a great deal of potential within the county. 

Please Ust Other Local, Regional and Statewjde Boards, Committees or Commissions on Which You Serve 
I am a member of Victory Chapel Christian Fellowship Ministries and serve as a minister with1n the church. 

(A resume may be attached to this form, but will not be accepted rn lieu of the form.) 

Date: 09/26/2016 Signature: -~ =? 
Please be advised that this form is a public record. and must be made available to the pubfic upon request. 
The Craven County Board of Commissioners sincerely appreciates the interest of all citizens in serving their county. For 
more information on the responsibilities of various boards, you may view the on-line board descriptions or contact the 
County Clerk's Office at (252} 636-6601. RETURN FORM TO; CRAVEN COUNTY CLERK, 406 GRAVEN STREET, 
NEW BERN, NC 28560. The form may also be sent via e~mail (gbryan@cravencountync.gov) or fax: (252) 637-0526. 

This form will remain active until two years after date received. 



I 

(: 

(For Internal Use Only) 
Date Received: 

Date Appointed ;Reappointed 

Volunteer Board Information and Interest Sheet 
Craven County, North Carolina 

Names of board, committee, authority, etc., in which you are interested. Please list in order of priority: 
Craven County Recreation Advisory Committee 

Name; StacAy Lewis 
----------------~~----------

Home Address: 128 Webster Ln City Limits: Ye6 

City: Vanceboro, NC Zip Code: 28586 

Township: One Home Phone~ (252) 514-3617 

Occupation: Firefighter Business Phone; 

Place of Employment New Bern Fire & Rescue Cefl Phone: (252) 514w3617 

E~Mail Address: v.anceboro6@yahoo.cam Fax Number; 

(Please indicate your preferred <::on tact number.) 

Egycation 
West Craven High School Graduate, Associates Degree from Craven Community College 

Business and Civic Experience 

Firefighter with the City of New BernT Volunteer firefighter with Vanceboro Fire Department 

Areas of Expertise, Interest. Skills 

Involved in coaching Little League Baseball and a travel bali team in the county 

Why do you want to serve? 

To help the kids of Craven County have recreational activities and equipment available to them 

X No 

Please List Qther LocaL Regional and Statewide Boards, Committees or Commissions on Which You Serve 
I currently serve as Chief of Vanceboro Fire Department where I setve on several boards with the department 

(A resume may be attached to this foffi1, but will not be accepted in lieu of the form.) // 

Date: 7-7-2016 Signature:,.~ d_, ~--._...., 
Please be advised that this form is a public record, and must be made available to the public upon request. 

'1e Craven County Board of Commissioners sincerely appreciates the interest of all citizens in serving their county. For 
nore Information on the responsibilities of V$rlous boards, you may view the on-line board descriptions or contact the 

County Clerk's Office at (252) 636-6601. RETURN FORM TO~ CRAVEN COUNTY CLERK, 406 CRAVEN STREET, 
NEW BERN, NC 28560. The form may also be sent via e .. maii (gbryan@cra'<~ncountvnc.gov) or fax; (252) 637-0526. 

This form will remain active until two years after date received. 



• I 

( 

Volunteer Board Information and Interest Sheet 
Crav~n County, North Carolina 

Names of board~ committee, authority, etc., in which you are interested. Please list in rder of priority: 

Any available open board or committee positions. Jlt{) . . y R-e.~re-cv-h· ~ .J.. r ~($ 
Name: Ryan Purtle Home Phone: 9105148146 ----------------------
Home Address: 2409 Educational Drive 

City: New Bern Zip Code: _2_8_56_2 _______ _ 

Township: New Bern City Limits: X Yes No 
County Planner Business Phone: 91°5148146 Occupation: --------------------

· Place of Employment: Onslow County Fax Number: 

E-Mail Address: ryanpurtle@gmail.com 

(Please indicate your preferred contact number.) 

Education 
B.S. from East Carolina University in Industrial Distribution and Logistics 

Business and Civic Experience 

Former ECU Athletic Operations Management Team Member 

Former Project Engineer for PPS Engineering 

Current County Planner for Onslow County 

Areas of Expertise. Interest Skills 

Planning and Development; Project Management; Parks and Recreation; Supply Chain Management; 

Community and Professional Networking 

Why do you want to serve? 

I believe that I can be of service to the county I live in. I want to ensure that Craven county continues to grow and 

thrive. I moved here right after graduating and instantly fell in love with the area and would love to see it grow. 

Please List Other LocaL Regional and Statewide Boards, Committees or Commissions on Which You Serve 

(A resume may be attached to this form, but will not be accepted in lieu of the form.) 

Date: ____ 1_2_1D_7_12_0_15 ___ _ Signature: ________________________ _ 

Please be advised that this form is a public record, and must be made available to the public upon request. 
The Craven County Board of Commissioners sincerely appreciates the interest of ali citizens in serving their cou'nty. For 
more information on the responsibiliti~s of various boards, you may view the on-line board descriptions or contact the 
County Clerk's Office at (252) 636-6601. RETURN FORM TO: CRAVEN COUNTY CLERK, 406 CRAVEN STREET, 
NEW BERN, N C 28560. The form may also be sent via e-mail (gbrvan@cravencountync.gov) or fax: (252-637 -0526. 

Thjs form wifl remain active until two years after date received. 



Dt;f~L\ NflV {) 3]015 
v-eiUfll:eet··Board Information and Interest Sheet 

Craven· County, North Carolina 
Names of board, committees authority, etc., in which you are interested. Please list in order of priority: 
Highway 70 Corridor Committee] Craven County Planning Board, Craven Community College Board of TrusteesJ 

Recreation and Parks Advisory Board, Coastal Carolina Airport Authority 

Name: Todd W. Frankson Home Phone: (252)649-1294 ---------------------
Home Address: 11 0 Wadsworth Lane 

City: NewBern Zip Code: 28562 

Township: _T_ow_ns_h_ip_9 ___________ _ City Limits: Yes X No 
Business Phone: (252)649-1294 Occupation: _s_e_If_E_m_p_Io_y_e_d __________ _ -----------------

Place of Employment _1_1_o_w_a_d_sw_ort_h_La_n_e _________ _ FaxNumber: 

E-Mail Address: ToddFrankson@Gmaii.com 

(Please indicate your preferred contact number.) 

Education 
Craven County Community College- (no degree) 

State University of New York Old Westbury-Business Administration (no degree) 

'Cker Collegiate Institute-High School Diploma) Arizona State University- Aerospace Engineering (no degree) 

Business and Civic Experience 

Havelock Chamber of Commerce Ambassador-2014-2015- received New Business Member of the Year award for 

2014, Member of Havelock and New Bern Chambers of Commerce for 2013,2014 and 2015. Co-founder and 

Co-Coordinator of the Spring Acres Community Watch. 

Areas of Expertise, Interest. Skills 

Almost 20 years of computer programming experience, ranging from project management to clinical trials data. 

Why do you want to serve? 

I believe it is important to give back to the community I live in to the best of my ability. 

Please List Other Local, Regional and Statewide Boards. Committees or Commissions on Which You Serve 

None. 

Date: _____ 1_1_10_3_12_0_1_5 ___ _ 

-;ase be advised that this fonn is a public record, and must be made available to the public upon request. 
he Craven County Board of Commissioners sincerely appreciates the interest of aU citizens in serving their county. For 

~- .iore information on the responsibilities of various boards, you may view the on-line board descriptions or contact the 
County Clerk's Office at (252) 636-6601. RETURN FORM TO: CRAVEN COUNTY CLERKJ 406 CRAVEN STREET, 
NEW BERN, NC 28560. The form may also be sent via e-mail (gbrvan@cravencountync.gov) or fax: (252-637 -0526. 

This form will remain active until two years after date received. 



c 
("-. 
)i 
~· 

E:MPLOYMENT HISTORY: 

Nov .. 2011-Present 

Todd W. Frankson 
110 Wadsworth Lane 

New Bern., NC 28562 
(252) 649-1294 

President 
Compnnet Resources, L.L.C., New Bern NC 

• Creator/Owner of CravenCount;yWebsites.oom 
• Received. New Business ofth.e Year Award for our work with. the Havelock Chamber of Commerce. 
• W m:k. -with other small businesses regarding co11lll1Ullity concerns via the Ravelock Ambassadors program.. 

Feb.2011-~ar.2014 LM.S. Supervisor 
Walmart, NewBemNC 

• ~pervised a team of 4-14 unloading all trucks to Walmart 
• Ensured on time delivery of freight to 3m shift at the appropriate hour. 
• Constantly adapt and change staff assignments to meet business needs. 

Nov .. 2010-Feb.2011 Lawn and Garden Associate 
WaJmart, New Bern NC 

• Provided assistance to customers. 
• Monitored stock and replenished shelves as needed. 
• Monitored and ensured work area was neat and organized. 

Oct 2008 to Sept 2010 Independent Consmtant 
Media,PA 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Provided independent consulting to several local firms and individuals . 
Monitored Department of Transportation paperwork for a large towing company . 
Monitored and Report all International Fuel Tax Association Mileage (I.F.T .A) and reported all fuel mileages to the state . 
Resolved all computer IJ.etwork,. software, and hardware issue for my clients . 
Created a custom interface and database for the dispatcher of the towing company . 
Created SDLC Documentation for several clients located in the US and abroad. 

Jan. 2006 to Aug 2008- Delphi Programmer/Analyst 
MedTrials, M~ PA 

• Provided Delphi 7 support to a Cli:cical Trials database applications group. 
• Maintafued a Code base of ov-er 2,000,000 lines of code. 
• Malnta:ined consistency within mnltiple databases, 2 copies of each with records tomling over 2,000,000. 
• Supported th.e System. Architect, aiJ.d the Data management group forreporting IJ.eeds. The system was a 3-partN-tier system. 
• Wrote custom ad-hoc SQL on a regular basis for management Exported data to several formats. Imported data. from several 

formats. Wrote stored procedures and triggers for the RDBMS. 
• In.teracted with other Deparfment:s an.dmanagers. 
• I wrote many small utilities to help my group, as well as other groups, perform their tasks. 

Feb. 2004 to Dec. 2005- Consultant 
Modis IT, Conshohocke~ P A. 

A.LG. 
• Coded Insurance Policy Forms utilizing DocuCreate. 
• Supported users ofDocuview Software with both :installation and end user help as needed. 
• Coded.AlP.S.O. forms of Policies as Endorsements to Policies. 
• Interacted with th.e Compliance Department regarding acom:acy aiJ.d to solicit sign off on forms. 
• Managed over700 fonns, and sta±usllocation of the fonns between 4 Departments, :iii. eluding fanning out some of th.e document 

load to aiJ. AI G. division located in India. 
Woik:ed with AIG. India on a daily basis via Phone as support for their issues regarding DmmCreate :installation, setup and 
ongo:ing support. 

• Analyzed documents and provided worldoad estimates. 

GLAXO SMITH KLINE 
• utilized Delphi 6.0 for bug fixes and enhancements in a client server application provided to 4000 users worldwide~ as well as 

provided end user support to th.e user base via. phone and emaiL 
Worked with end users worldwide in testing bug fixes and new bug reports. 

• Utilized PL/SQL to debug aiJ.d enhance Oracle Packages/Stored Procedures. 
• Utilized In.stallShield and Wininstall for deployment in 3 different standard configurations for company wide rollouts. 
• 2 Version releases :iii. less than 6 months time compan.ywide. 

Documented system for tum.overto a 3rd party for future support. 



.A 
\o 
ij\ 
\ 

Sept. 2000 to Mar. 2003~ Systems Administrator ll I Delphi Programmer 
Pharmaceutical Research Associates, Inc.~ Charlottesville VA 

.. 
• 
• 

• 
• 
e 

• .. 

Provided end user support for a project management application. 
Supported over 900 users at sta:rl;, system ended with over 2000 users . 
The system. projected .financial data for the company . 
The system was a 3-partN-tier system. A web :interface for project data, a stand alone application for users~ and an. Oracle 
database. I re-wrote the client application in Delphi 5-6 to enmn:e the company could expand at the rate it did. 
I troubleshot the Web interface and coded in B.'IML, CSS and ASP to resolve bugs . 
I wrote PL/SQL to help retire the system.. Assisted in. Implementing Lawson and Data-basics to replace the system 
Interacted with. other Departments and managers. 
I wrote many small utilities to help my group, as well as other groups, perform their tasks. . 
I was promoted From System Adn:rinistrator I to System Administrator II during my time at P R.A 

Dec. 1999 to Sept. 2000- Programmer I Analyst ill 
First Virginia Banks~ Inc.7 Falls Churc~ VA 

• I maintained a client I server GUI application using Delphl3.0 named the Automated Collateral Management System. 
• The system contained all collateral documentation for all loans with the bank 
• There were 70 client workstations connected to an Oracle Database containing 1 00+ GB of scanned documents and 

corresponding data. 
• I was also responsible for a Sendero Asset Liabilicy' Management Oracle database on a lvficrosoft N. T. server 
• I worked closely with the acting Oracle DBA regarding both. the ACM database and the Sendero database. 

Nov. 1998 to Nov 1999- Gill Programmer I Analyst 
Alta Systems, Inc., Alexan~ VA 

• I developed client/server GUI applications using Delphi 3 .04.0. The database utilized was SYBASE. 
• I completed the project I was hired for a month ahead of soh.edule. 
• The project was a prototype of data analysis software for the detection of welfare .fraud by retailers. 
• The software was used by Food and Nutritional Services agents to detect discrepancies in sales within these stores by running 

algorithms against their transaction data. 
• Upon completion, I merged this prototype :into a distributed software package, pr~uc:ing an upgrade. The so:ft:Wcjre is called 

AL.E.R. T. (Anti-fraud Locator using EBT Retailer Transactions). 
• Merging the products was completed on schedule. 

Dec. 1997 to Nov. 1998- Applications Developer I Analyst 
Telco Communications/Excel, Chantilly, VA 

• My fUnction was to develop in-house and vendor bouud software. 
• The in-house development ranged from converting Clipper IF oxPro database applications, utilizing over 50 tables, to 

client/server applications with SYBASE database. 
• I was a member of a team of developers primarily using Delphi 2.0 and Delphi 3.0 client/server to complete the task. 
• I used and wrote stored procedures and queries. I also wrote new utilities almost daily to process data :in the legacy system 

(dBase I Clipper). 
• I wrote several stand-alone applications for :individuals witbin Telco, as needed and to their specifications, utilizing Install Shield 

Express for:installation. 
• I also created a custom PC :invento:ry program to invento:ry specific directories of machines, and silently connect and logon to a 

secured server and w.rite the information to the specified drive. 
• The vendor bound software :involved several different teams, and several different applications. I was required to write a utilil:y 

that could extract data v.ia query, and create several output .files. It also read the "'return."' files from outside agencies, and 
updated the database as needed. 

• I was involved in the life cycle of the project from specifications to delivery and worked hand-in-hand with Quality Assurance 
personnel to be proactive :inidenticying issues and correcting them. 

Jul1997 to Dec 1997- Technical Consultant 
Financial Dynamics~ Inc., McLean, VA 

• My duties were to answer questions and address technical issues for end users of American Express P.O.S Software. 
• I was also responsible for assisting the development teams, in beta testing software, and assisting :in development as needed. 
• I wrote several Delphi components at tbis time. I wrote several freeware programs that were available on the Internet 
• I alsG started learning C-H-, J++ and VJSU.al Basic at this time to enhance JJrj skills and productivity as a developer. I taught 

myselfHrML and bull:tmy own Web site. 

Mar 1997 to Jul1997- Technical Support Specialist 
C.A. Consulting for ICF Kaiser, Fairfax, VA 

• My duties as a Technical Support Specialist were to provide end user support to over 1200 users. 
• I provided telephone as well as on site support for users nation wide. 
• I installed most major s-oftware packages of fue time, as well as used these applications on a daily basis. 
• I wrote several small utilities to assist the technical support team. :in maintaining the end-user, s PCs. 



.(\ 

\. 
I 
\ 

}(., 
~ 

6'-
\. 

EDUCATION: 

Certifications 
ClinPius 

e ClinPlus Data Management 
• ClinPlus Reports· 

DataCeutics 

• G.C.P. Computer Systems Validation 

• S.D.L.C. User Training 
ElementK 

• Active Server Pages: Levell, Part One 
• Active Server Pages: Levell,. Part Two 
• IITML 4.01 Web Authoring: Levell 

• HJ1v.IL 4.01 Web Authoring: Leve12 

• BTML 4.01 Web Authoring: Levell (Accessible) 
• IIT1v.1L 4.01 Web Authoring: Level21 (Accessible) 
• A+ Certification: Core Hardware Part One 

• Object-Oriented Programming Principles 
• Windows 2000 for W:indows NT Administrators:> Part One 
• Windows 2000: Installation and Administration, Part One 

• I-Net+ Certificatio~ Second Editiofl; Part One 
• I-Net+ Certificatiofl; Second Edition, Part Two 
• E-Business: Fundamentals ofE-Commerce 
• Server+ Certification 
• A+ Certification: Operating Systems, Part'One 

• I-Net+ Certification (Third Edition) 

• Gathering and Analyzing Business Requirements 
• Project Management Fundamentals, Part One 
• Project Management Fundamentals_, Part Two 

• A+ Certification: Operating Systems, Part Two 
Learning Tree 

• Oracle PUSQL Programming: Hands-On 
Brainbench 

• MS Wmdows 95 Navigation 
• WWW Concepts 

• SQL(ANSI) 
• MS Windows 95 Administration 

• Web Server Administration 

• Delphl3.0 

• Programmer/ Analyst Aptitude 
• MS Windows 98 Navigation 

HighSchool Diploma, 1988-The Packer Collegiate Institute,. Brooklyn, NY 
College Aerospace engineering, no degree, 1988-1991-Arizona State University, Tempe Az 

Business Administratio~ no degree~ 1991-State University ofNew York, Old Westbury 
Liberal Arts, continuing, Craven County Community College 

SOF1W ARE I HAIIDW ARE: 
Delphll-Delphi XE7., Microsoft Visual Basic 4.0, Microsoft Visual C++., Visual J++., Oracle SQL., Sybase 
SQL, Clipper, FoxPro, IITML, Lotus 1-2-3, Microsoft Windows (3.1,. 3.11, 95, 98, NT 4.0, 2000, 2000 
Advanced Server ar1d XP), :M:icrosoft Office (Professional and Standard versions 4.3, 95, 97, 2000 and 
2003), W ord.Perfect version 6.1, WordPerfect Office Suite, Lotus Notes, Remote Mail (RAS), Microsoft 
MaR :Microsoft Messaging, Microsoft Internet Explorer, Netsaape Navigator, Peoplesoft, Lawson, Data
basics,. DoauCreate, IBExpert. 15+ years experience with :full life-cycle development. 

NETWORK: 
Administrator on a 1200+ user Token Ring LAN/WAN; setup and configuration of Windows 95 peer-to
peer network; built, configured and installed Windows NT 4. 0 servers; troubleshoot network technical 
difficulties, install and configure printer drivers for HP 5SI, HP 4MP, HP III_ test and troubleshoot 
memory, software, hardware and end user PC issues; repair and maintain laptop and desktop PCs. 



. · 

.· 

:V~Iu~t~er= ~a()~rii t:ntormatittt1' an:d lnt~r.est Sheet· 
t:r~v~n. :C~·JJ:r.tty ~- -~l)rth ~~wol-na: 

·N~ . 
H~me..~~~= 

·:!' 

Huma P.t:iooe: 



CRAVEN COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

Member Name Address Twp. Commissioner District Term Expires 

1. Robert Bell 4502 Haywood Farm Rd. 8 4 2019 

2. Robert Carnes 100 Emmen Rd. 7 7 2018 (Resigned) 

3. Tom Lelli 5008 Plymouth Ct. 2 1 2018 

4. Richard Maher 132 Hilda Dr. 7 7 2020 

5. David Rink 103 Marie Ct., Havelock 5 5 2017 

6. Michael Scoggins 106 Lugano Road 7 7 2017 (Resigned) 

7. Drew Willis 201 Hillcrest Road, Trentwoods 8 4 2019 

8. Patrick Wood 1530 Asbury Rd., Cove City 9 2 2019 



Volunteer Board Information and Interest Sheet 
Craven County, North Carolina 

Names of board, committee, authority, etc., in which you are interested. Please list in order of priority: 
Craven County Planning Board 

Name: Daniel T. Hill Jr Home Phone: 252-636-1552 ---------------------
Home Address: 1606 Green Springs Rd 

City: 

Township: 

New Bern Zip Code: 28560 

L J Yes JZLNo 7 City Limits: 

Occupation: Fire Marshal Business Phone: 252-639-2931 ---------------------
Place of Employment: City of New Bern Fax Number: 252-636-1084 ---------------------
E-Mail Address: hilld@newbern-nc.org 

(Please indicate your preferred contact number.) 

Education 
Graduation from Craven Community College 

Business and Civic Experience 

24 years of Fire Service experience, serving for the past 13 years in the Coast Guard Reserves. 

Areas of Expertise, Interest, Skills 

Emergency Services, Development Planning 

Why do you want to serve? 

Represent the City of New Bern on the LEPC 

(A resume may be attached to this form, but will not be accepted in lieu of the form.) 

Date: ___ 1_1_/1_4_/2_0_1_6 __ Daniel T.Hill jr 
Digitally signed by Daniel T.Hill jr 
ON: cn=Daniel T.Hill jr, o=New BernFire-Rescue, ou=City 
ofNew Bern, email=hilld@newbern-nc.org, c=US 
Date: 2012.08.1616:15:03 -04'00' 

Signature 

The Craven County Board of Commissioners sincerely appreciates the interest of all citizens in serving their county. For 
more information on the responsibilities of various boards, you may view the on-line board descriptions or contact the 
County Clerk's Office at (252) 636-6601. RETURN FORM TO: CRAVEN COUNTY CLERK, 406 CRAVEN STREET, 
NEW BERN, NC 28560. The form may also be sent via e-mail (gbrvan@cravencountync.gov) or fax: (252) 637-0526. 

This form will remain active until two years after date received. 



Craven County Mail- Fwd: Delivery Status Notification 

Gwendolyn Bryan <gbryan@cravencountync.gov> 

Fwd: Delivery Status Notification (Failure) 

billy joiner <brj4847@gmail.com> 
To: gbryan@cravencountync.gov 
Cc: sdacey@cravencountync.gov 

d 
13 

Commissioner Dasey, Per our conversation I would like to tender my 
resignation from the position mentioned above. I have talked to the chief 

Wed, Nov 2, 2016 at 11:48 AM 

of the department, Justin Sawyer, and he has recommended Mr. Troy Cleland as 
my replacement. Mr. Cleland has been contacted and has agreed to serve. 
Your attention to this matter will be greatly appreciated. 

Thanks 
Billy R. Joiner 

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/O/?ui=2&ik=5cb21c4177&view=pt&search=inbox&msg=1... 11/2/2016 



RESOLUTION 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County has received an offer to purchase a parcel of property 

owned by it identified as 1103 Elm Street, New Bern, NC, Tax Parcel Number 8-012-262, and 

more particularly described in Deed Book 3071 at Page 184 in the Craven County Registry 

(hereinafter the "Real Property"), a copy of said offer is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to sell the County's interest in the 
property pursuant to the provisions ofNorth Carolina General Statute §160A-269. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

1. That the Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the initiation of the upset bid 

process for the Real Property by advertising notice of the offer to purchase in accordance with 

the provisions ofNorth Carolina General Statue § l60A-269. 

2. That the County Manager, Clerk and/or Attorney are authorized to take all actions 
necessary to accomplish the purposes of this Resolution. 

ADOPTED THIS 21st DAY~OF November, 2016. 

(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

GEORGE LINER, Chainnan 



NORTH CAROLINA 

CRAVEN COUNTY 
OFFER TO PURCHASE AND CONTRACT 

Dolores Best Charles , as Buyer, hereby offers to purchase and CRAVEN COUNTY and the 
CITY OF NEW BERN, collectively as Seller, upon acceptance of said offer, agrees to sell and convey, all of that plot, piece or parcel 
of land described below (hereafter referred to as the ''Property"), upon the following terms and conditions: 

1. REAL PROPERTY: Located in or near the City of New Bern, Craven County, North Carolina, being known as and more 
particularly described as: 
Street Address: 1103 Elm Street 
Subdivision Name: (Lot 30 West End) 
Tax Parcel ID No.: ..._;8"'--~0'""'"12..._-...... 2""'62 _______ _ 
Plat Reference:----------:---~-------:-===----....,...,.....,.... 
Being all of that property more particularly described in Deed Book 3071 • Page 184 in the Craven County Registry. 
2. PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price is$ 1.000.00 and shall be paid as follows: 
(a) $50.00 , EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT with this offer by :(1 cash D bBllk cheek 0 certified check to be 

held by Seller until the sale is closed, at which time it will be credited to Buyer, or until this contract is otherwise properly 
terminated. In the event this offer is not accepted, then all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer. In the event of breach of 
this contract by Seller, all earnest monies shall be refunded to Buyer upon Buyer's request In the event <>fbreaoh of this contract 
by Buyer, then all earnest monies shall be forfeited to Seller upon Seller's request, but such foifeiture shall not affect any other 
remedies available to Seller for such breach. 

(b) $ 950.00 , BALANCE ofthe purchase price in cash or readily available funds at Closing. 
3. CONDITIONS: 
(a) This contract is not subject to Buyer obtaining .financing. 
(b) The Property must be in substantially the same or better condition at Closing as on the date of this offer, reas<>nable wear and tear 

excepted. 
(c) The Property is being sold subject to all liens and encumbrances of record, if any. 
(d) Other than as provided herein# the Property is being conveyed "as is". 
(e) This contract is subject to the provisions of G.S. §160A-269. Buyer acknowledges that this contmct is subject to certain notice 

provisions and the rights in ot.hms to submit upset bids in accordance therewith. 
(f) Title shall be delivered at Closing by QtiTI'CLAIM DEED 
4. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS: Seller makes no warranty or representation as to any pending or confirmed governmental special 
assessments for sidewalk, paving, water, sewer" or other improvements on or adjoining the Property, or pending or confirmed owners' 
association special assessments. Buyer shall1ake title subject to all pending assessments, if any. 
5. PAYMENT OF TAXES: Any ad valorem taxes to which the Property is subject shall be paid in their entirety by Buyer. 
6. EXPENSES: Buyer shall be responsible for all costs with respect to any title search, title insw-ance, recording of the deed, its 
legal fees, and for preparation and recording of all instruments required to secure the balance of the purchase price unpaid at Closing. 
Seller shall pay for preparation of a deed and all other documents necessary to perform Seller's obligations under this agreement, and 
for any excise tax (revenue stamps) required by law. 
7. EVIDENCE OF TITLE: Not Applicable. 
8. CLOSING: Closing shall be defined as the date and time of recording of the deed. All parties agree to execute any and all 
documents and papers necessary in connection with Closing and transfer of title within thirty (30) days of the granting of final 
approval of the sale by Craven County's Board of Commissioners and the City of New Bernts Board of Aldermen pursuant to G.S. 
§160AM269. The deed is to be made to Dolores Best Charles . 
9. POSSESSION: Unless otherwise provided herein, possession shall be delivered at Closing. 
10. PROPERTY INSPECTION, APPRAISAL, INVESTIGATION: 
(a) This contract is not subject to inspection, appraisal or investigation, as the Property is being bought "as is.', Seller makes no 
representation as to water, sewer, conditions! title, access, or fitness for any intended use. 
(b) CLOSING SHALL CONSTIJ'UTE ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROPERTY IN ITS THEN EXISTING CONDITIQN. 
11. RIGHT OF ENTRY, RESTORATION AND INDEMNITY: Buyer and Buyer's agents and contractors shall not have the right to 
enter upon the Property for any purpose without advance written permission of the Seller. If such permission is given, Buyer will 
indemnify and hold Seller h.armlcss ftom all loss, damage, claims, suits or costs, which shall arise out of any CQntract, agreement, or injury 
to any person or property as a result of any activities ofBuyer and Buyer's agents and contractors relating to the Property. This indemnity 

shall survive this contnact and any termination tu.;ea:tl?r 
Buyer Initi~'.::: Seller Initials __ _ 

Page 1 of2 



12. OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS: (ITEMIZE ALL ADDENDA TO THIS CONTRACT AND A'ITACH 
HERETO.): None. 
13. RISK OF LOSS: The risk of loss or damage by fire or other casualty prior to Closing shall be upon Seller. 
14. ASSIGNMENTS: This contract may not be assigned without the written consent of all parties, but if assigned by agreement, then 
this contract shall be binding on the assignee and the assignee's he~ successors or assigns (as the case may be). 
15. PARTIES: This contract shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties, i.e., Buyer and Seller and their heirs, 
successors and assigns. As used herein, words in the singular include the plural and the masculine includes the feminine and n~uter 
genders, as appropriate. 
16. SURVIVAL: If any provision herein contained which by its nature and effect is required to be observed, kept or performed after 
1he Closing, it shall survive the Closing and remain binding upon and for the benefit of the parties hereto until fully observed, kept or 
performed. 
17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This contract contains the entire agreement of the parties and there are no representations, 
inducements or other provisions other than those expressed herein. All changes, additions or deletions hereto must be in writing and 
signed by all parties. 
18. NOTICE AND EXECUTION: Any notice or communication to be given to a party herein may be given to the party or to such 
party's agent. This offer shall become a binding corrtract (the "Effective Date") when signed by both Buyer and Seller and such 
signing is communicated to the offering party. This contract is executed under seal in signed multiple originals, all of which together 
constitute one and the same instrument, with a signed original being retained by each party, and the parties adopt the word "SEAL" 
beside their signatures below. · 

BUYER: 

(If an individual) 

c2Ji~~) 
Date: 10/31/16 

Address: 3410 DeReimerAve, Apt 13G 

BrotlL NY 10475 

Phone: 718~379-1295 (Son; Ralph Best 252-638-1674) 

(If a business entity) 

By: ----------------------~~) 
Its: 

Date: 

Address:~------------

Phone: 

SELLER 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: ______________________ (~) 
Its: 

Date: 

CITY OF NEW BERN 

By: ____________ (SEAL) 

Its: 

Date: 

Seller Initials+-'--~~--.--~ ~ 

Page2of2 



Craven County Geographic Information System 
Craven County does NOT warrant the Jnformatlon shown on th!s page and should be used ONLY for tax assessment purposes. 

This report was created by Cra\len county GIS reporting servk:e.!l on 10/31/2016 11:40:09 AM 

ParceiiD: 

Owner: 

Mailing Address : 

Property Address : 

Description : 

Lot Description : 

8·012 ·262 

CRAVEN COUNTY & NEW BERN..CilY OF 

PO BOX 1128 NEW BERN NC 28563 

1103 ELM ST 

1103 ELM STREET; LOT 30 WEST END 

Assessed Acreage : 0.113 Calculated Acreage : 0.110 

Deed Reference : 3071-0184 Recorded Data : 3 9 2012 

Recorded Survey : 

Estate Number : 

Land Value: $4,000 Tax Exempt: Yes 

Improvement Value : $0 #of Improvements : 0 

Total Value : $4,000 

City Name: NEWBERN Fire tax District : 

Drainage District : Special District : 

Land use: SERV-GOVERNMENT OWNED, EXEMPT 

Recent Sales Information 

SALE DATE Sellers Name Buyers Name 

3/9/2012 BRANCH, BEATRJCE CRAVEN COUNTY & NEW 
HRS BERN-CITY OF 

1/1/1982 BRANCH, BEATRICE H BRANCH, BEATRICE HRS 

1/1/1982 BRANCH, BEATRICE H BRANCH, BEATRICE HRS 

List of Improvements to SHe 

No improve!l'lents listed for this parcel 

Sale Type 

STRAIGHT 
TRANSFER 
STRAIGHT 
TRANSFER 
STRAIGHT 
TRANSFER 

Sale Price 

$9,000 

$0 

$0 



.... .,.. ___ ........ _____ ... ~ ... -- ..... ·- -
TAX ASSESSOR PARCEL BILLING 

*************************** ACCOUNT TO BE BILLED ***************************** 
ACCT# 1560850 .TAXPAYER NAME 1 CRAVEN COUNTY & NEW BERN-CITY OF 
TWP# 8 TAXPAYER NAME 2 ---------~---~-
CITY N 
FIRE -
SSD -
DRN -_. 
BUS ~ 
LIST X 
BILL -
SAN 

LEGAL 1103 ELM STREET; LOT 30 WEST END 
SITUS 1103 ELM ST ACRES .113 
MAP/LOT 012 ---z6=-2-----:P;:::-::;I=N;-11'#---~-- PARCEL REF# 0021520 
LAND/BLD 4000 BUILDINGS 0 LAND 4000 USE 0 
BOOK 3071 PAGE 0184 REC 03 09 2012 EST#_______ MA/US M 
LATE AMT 0 EXMPT X -MOBILE AMT SCE 0 -

************************* CURRENT OWNER OF PARCEL **************************** 
ACCT# 1560850 TAXPAYER NAME 1 CRAVEN COUNTY & NEW BERN-CITY OF 
TWP# 8 TAXPAYER NAME 2 
CITY N --------------------------------
FIRE 
SSD -
DRN -
EXMP X 
MOBH 
SAN 

LEGAL 1103 ELM STREET; LOT 30 WEST END 
SITUS 1103 mEM ACRES .113 
MAP/LOT 012 ~6·-=2-.------.P..-..I.-.;-;;N'"#---~- PARCEL REF# 0021520 
LAND/BLD 4000 BUILDINGS 0 LAND 4000 USE 0 
BOOK 3071 PAGE 0184 REC 03 09 2012 EST4f--~- MA/US M 

PRESS ENTER TO CONTINUE 



8-007 -042 

Craven GIS 

H12 ·189 
~8J 

Craven County dDIIs NOT warllln! 111& information shownottlhl• map and should be us&d ONLY for tax assessmentpurpoaea. 

14~49 
.044 

>045 

b. 
<D 
i.SJ 
0) 

~ 

~ 
C) 

(.,) 

~7f!S 

.!.l. 

tt 
Cod ......, 

8.008 -304 

1 inch = 90 feet t 



RESOLUTION 
1801 McKinley Avenue, New Bern, North Carolina 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County and the City of New Bern have received an offer to 

purchase a parcel of property owned by the County and City identified as 1801 McKinley 

A venue, and being more particularly described herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to sell the County~ s interest in the 

property pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269; and 

and 

WHEREAS, the offer to purchase was advertised as required by said statute; and 

WHEREAS, the final offer to purchase was in the sum of $1,250.00 by Melba Curmen; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners deems it advisable and in the best interest of 

the County to sell its interest in the subject property to the successful bidder and to convey its 

interest in said property by quitclaim deed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

Section 1. That the last and highest bid of Melba Curmen in the sum of $1,250.00 for 

said parcel identified as 18 01 McKinley A venue, and being more particularly described herein, 

be and the same is hereby accepted as to the County's interest in said property, and the 

Chairman, County Manager and/or Clerk be and they are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute a quitclaim deed to the purchasers for the County's interest in said property. 

Section 2. That a copy of said quitclaim deed is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference, and the original deed shall be delivered to said purchasers once the same has 

been executed on behalf of the County and City, upon payment of the purchase price. 

Section 3. That the subject property is more particularly described as follows: 

All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Eight (8) 
Township, Craven County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

All of that certain property more fully described in Deed Book 3351 at Page 777 in the 
Craven County Registry. This property is also commonly referred to by its tax parcel 
identification number which is 8-038-237. 

Page I of2 



ADOPTED THIS 21st DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2016. 

(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

\ \SER VER04\lssdocs\0000003 9\0007 3 64 2. 000 .DOCX 

GEORGE LINER, Chairman 

Page 2 of2 



Prepared by and return to: 

Michael Scott Davis 
DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGIIT PLLC 
209 Pollock Street 
NewBern, NC 28560 

Tax Parcel# 8-038-237 
Revenue Stamps $0.00 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN QUITCLAIM: DEED 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED, made this 8111 day of November, 2016, by and between the 

CITY OF NEW BERN~ a municipal cozporation ofthe State ofNorth Carolina, and CRAVEN 

COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the State ofNorth Carolina ("Grantors"); to MELBA 

CURMON, whose mailing address is-----------------~

("Grantee"); 

WITNESSETH: 

That said Grantors for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00) and 

other good and valuable consideration to Grantors paid by the Grantee, the receipt of which is 

hereby acknowledged, have remised and released, and by these presents do remise, release and 

forever quitclaim unto the Grantee, Grantee's heirs and assigns, the following described property, to 

wit 

SEE EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO AND 1NCORPORATED HEREIN BY 
REFERENCE. 

The property herein conveyed does not include the primary residence of a Grantor. 

DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGHTPLLC 
Attorneys at Law 
209 Pollock Street 

NewBern,NC 28560 



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described lot or parcel of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances theretmto belonging to the Grantees, Grantee's heirs and assigns, free and discharged 

from all right, title, claim or interest of the said Grantors or anyone claiming by, through or under 

the Grantors. 

IN TESTIM:ONY WHEREOF, the CITY OF NEW BERN has caused this instrument to 

be executed as its act and deed by its Mayor, attested by its City Clerk, and its seal to be hereunto 

affixed, all by the authority of its Board of Aldermen, and CRAVEN COUNTY has caused this 

instrument to be executed as its act and deed by the Chairman of its Board of Commissioners, 

attested by its Clerk, and its seal to be hereunto affixed, all by the authority of its Board of 

Commissioners, as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF NEW BERN 
(SEAL) 

By: -------------------------------
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

Page2of5 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

I, Notary Public 'in and for said County and State, do 
hereby certify that on the __ day of November, 2016, before me personally appeared DANA E. 
OUTLAW, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says that he is 
the Mayor and that BRENDA BLANCO is the City Clerk for the City ofNew Bern, the municipal 
corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows the common 
seal of said municipal COlJ'Oration; that the seal affixed to the foregoing ins1lument is said common 
seal; that the name of the municipal corporation was subscribed thereto by the said Mayor; that the 
said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Aldermen of said municipal corporation; 
and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said municipal co.tporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day ofNovember, 2016. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

Page3 of5 



(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Clerk, Craven County Board of 
Commissioners 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By. __________________________ __ 
Chairman, Craven County Board of 
Commissioners 

I, Notary Public in and for said County and State, do 
hereby certify that on the ___ day of 2016, before me personally appeared 
GEORGE S. LINER, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says 
that he is the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, and that 
GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN is the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, the 
body politic and corporate described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows 
the common seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument 
is said common seal; that the name of the body politic and corporate was subscribed thereto by the 
said Chairman; that the said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Commissioners 
of said body politic and corporate; and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said body 
politic and corporate, 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day of ___ --.7 2016. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

Page4of5 



EXHIBIT A 

All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Eight (8) Township, Craven 
County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Situated near New Bern, NC in a certain townsite which is plotted and lmown by the name 
Pembroke, the plot of which is the same which is recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of 
Craven County in Book 183, Page 290 to which reference is hereby made. The land herein 
conveyed being the certain lot which is designated on said plot by the number one hundred forty
three (143). 

This property is also commonly referred to by its tax parcel identification number which is 
8-038k237. 

Being also that same property conveyed to Craven County and the City of New Bern by 
Commissioner's Deed recorded April 29, 2015 in Book 3351 at Page 777 of the Craven County 
Registry. 

Subject to restrictive covenants and easements of record. 

Page5of5 



OWNER AFFIDAVIT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 
(NO RECENT IMPROVEMENTS AND NO EXECUTORY CONTRACTS FOR IMPROVEMENTS) 

PARTIES: All parties identified in this section must execute this Agreement. 

Owner: CRAVEN COUNTY, a body oolitic and coroorate 
(NOTE: A separate Agreement is required for each successive owner in the 120-Day Uen Period.) 

PROPERTY: See "EXHIBIT A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
(Insert street address or brief description and/or attach a description as Exhibit A. Include here any real estate that is a portion of a larger, prE 
unsegregated tract when thai area is reasonably necessal}' for the convenient use and occupation of Improvements on the larger tracL) 

DEFINITIONS: The following capitalized terms as used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings: 
• Improvement: All or any part of any building, structure, erection, alteration, demolition, excavation, clearing, grading, filling, or landscaping, including tr( 

shrubbefY, driveways, and private roadways on the Property as defined below. 
,. Labor Services or Materials: ALL labor, services, materials for which a lien can be claimed under NCGS Chapter 44A, Article 2, including but not lir 

. professional design services (including architectural, engineering, landscaping and surveying) and/or rental equipment 
• Contractor: Any person or entity who has performed or furnished or has contracted to perfonn or furnish labor, Services or Materials pursuant to a c 

either express or implied, with the Owner of real property for the making of an Improvement thereon. {Note that seiVices by architects, em 
landscapers, surveyors, furnishers of rental equipment and contracts for construction on Property of Improvements are often provided before there i~ 
evidence of construction.} 

• 120-Day lien PeliOd: The 120 days immediately preceding the date of recordation of the latter of the deed to purchaser or deed of trust to lender in !h1 
of the Register of Deeds of tne county in which the Property is located. 

• Owner. Any person or entity, as defined in NCGS Chapter 44A, Article 2, who has or has had any interest in the Property within the 120-Day Lien Perir 
the purposes of this Agreement, the tenn Owner includes: {i) a seller of !he Property or a borrower under a loan agreement secured by the Proper 
person with rights to purchase the Property under a contract and for whom an Improvement is made and who ordered the Improvement to be mat 
(iiQ the Owner's successors in interest and agents of the Owner acting within their authority. 

... Company: The title insurance company providing the title policy for the transaction contemplated by the parties herein. 
• ~: The real estate described above or on Exhibit A and any leaseholds, tenements, hereditaments, and improvements placed thereon. 
• All defmed tenns shall include the singular or plural as required by context 

AGRI:EMENT: For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which Is hereby acknowledged, and as an inducement to the purchas« 
Property by a purchaser and/or the making of a loan by a lender secured by a deed of trust encumbering the Property and the issuance of a title insurance p 
policies by Company insuring title to the Property without exception to liens for Labor, Services or Materials; Owner first being duly sworn, deposes, says and< 

1. Certifications: Owner certifies that at no time during the 120-Day Lien Period have any Labor, Sel\lices or Materials been furnished in connectlc 
contract, express or implied, for Improvements to the Property (including archHectural, engineering,landscaping or surveying sel\lices or materials or rental ec 
for which a lien can be claimed under NCGS Chapter 44A} nor have any tabor, Services or Matertals been furnished on the Property prior to the 120-Day Lie 
that will or may be completed after the date of this affidavit OR only minor repairs and/or alterations to pi'HXisUng Improvements have been made and Owner 
such repairs and/or alterations have been completed and those providing Labor, Services or Materials for !he repairs have been paid in full. The Owne 
certifies that no Mechanics Lien Agent has been appointed. 

2. Reliance and Indemnification: This Agreement may be relied upon by the purchaser In the purchase of the Property, a lender to make a foan sectJ 
deed of trust encumbering the Property and by Company in Issuance of a title insurance policy or policies Insuring Htle to the Property without exception tc 
certified in this Agreement. The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the disbursement of funds and closing of this transaction and shall be binding upo 
and anyone claiming by, through or under Owner. 
Owner agrees to indemnify and hold purchaser, lender, and Company harmless of and from any and all loss, cos~ damage and expense of eveiY kind, and att 
fees, costs and expenses, which the purchaser, lender or Company shall or may incur or become liable for, directly or indirectly, as a result of relfance 
certifications of Owner made herein or in enforcement of the Company's rights hereunder. 

3. NCL TA Copyright and Entire Agreement: This Agreement and any attachments hereto represent the entire agreement between the Owner and the C 
and no prior or contemporaneous agreement or understanding inconsistent herewith (whether oral or written) pertaining to such matters is effective. 
THIS IS A COPYRIGHT FORM and any variances in the fonn provisions hereof must be specifically stated in the blank below and agreed to in writing 
Company. __________________________________________________________________________ __ 

No modification of this Agreement, and no waiver of any of its tenns or conditions, shall be effective unless made In writing and approved by the Company. 

Slate of NORTH CAROLINA County of CRAVEN 
Signed and sworn to (or affinned) before me 1hls day by 

i By:. _____________________________ _ 

Printed or Typed Name/Title:'---------------
~--------------------------~o~f ~ Craven Countv. a body oolitic and corporate. a-

~ 

(Seal) ~=~----------~-------
j 

-----------------·Notary Public 

My COmmission Expires: 



EXHIBIT A 

All that certain lot or parcel ofland lying and being situate in Nmnber Eight (8) Township, Craven 
County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Situated near New Bern, NC in a certain townsite which is plotted and known by the name 
Pembroke, the plot of which is the same which is recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of 
Craven County in Book 183, Page 290 to which reference is hereby made. The land herein 
conveyed being the certain lot which is designated on said plot by the number one hundred forty
three (143). 

This property is also commonly referred to by its tax pru:cel identification number which is 
8"038-237. 

Being also that same property conveyed to Craven County and the City of New Bern by 
Commissioner's Deed recorded April 29, 2015 in Book 3351 at Page 777 of the Craven County 
Registry. 

Subject to restrictive covenants and easements of record. 



RESOLUTION 
2302 McKinley Avenue, New Bern, North Carolina 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County and the City of New Bern have received an offer to 

purchase a parcel of property owned by the County and City identified as 2302 McKinley 

A venue, and being more particularly described herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to sell the County's interest in the 

property pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269; and 

and 

WHEREAS, the offer to purchase was advertised as required by said statute; and 

WHEREAS, the final offer to purchase was in the sum of $2,000.00 by Victor J. Dove; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners deems it advisable and in the best interest of 

the County to sell its interest in the subject property to the successful bidder and to convey its 

interest in said property by quitclaim deed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

Section 1. That the last and highest bid of Victor J. Dove in the sum of $2,000.00 for 

said parcel identified as 2302 McKinley Avenue, and being more particularly described herein, 
'"'-

be and the same is hereby accepted as to the County's interest in said property, and the 

Chairman, County Manager and/or Clerk be and they are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute a quitclaim deed to the purchasers for the County's interest in said property. 

Section 2. That a copy of said quitclaim deed is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference, and the original deed shall be delivered to said purchasers once the same has 

been executed on behalf of the County and City, upon payment of the purchase price. 

Section 3. That the subject property is more particularly described as follows: 

All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Eight (8) 
Township, Craven County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

All of that certain property more fully described in Deed Book 3225 at Page 599 in the 
Craven County Registry. This property is also commonly referred to by its tax parcel 
identification number which is 8-038-064. 

Page 1 of2 



ADOPTED THIS 21st DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2016. 

(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

\\SERVER04\lssdocs\00000039\00073662.000.DOCX 

GEORGE LINER, Chairman 

Page 2 of2 



Prepared by and return to: 

Michael Scott Davis 
DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGHT PILC 
209 Pollock Street 
NewBern, NC 28560 

Tax Parcel # 8-03 8-064 
Revenue Stamps $0.00 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLJNA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN QUITCLAIM DEED 

THIS QUITCLAIM DEED, made this 22nd day of November, 2016, by and between the 

CITY OF NEW BERN, a municipal corporation of the State of North Carolina, and CRAVEN 

COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina ("Grantors"); to VICTOR 

J. DOVE and JULEON DOVE, whose mailing address is 

____________ ("Grantees"); 

WITNESSETH: 

That said Grantors for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00) and 

other good and valuable consideration to Grantors paid by the Grantees, the receipt of which is 

hereby acknowledged, have remised and released, and by these presents do remise, release and 

forever quitclaim unto the Grantees, Grantees' heirs and assigns, as tenants in common, the 

following described property, to wit: 

SEE EXHIBIT A ATIACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY 
REFERENCE. 

The properly heret"n conveyed does not include the primary residence of a Grantor. 

DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGHT PLLC 
Attorneys at Law 
209 Pollock Street 

New Bern, NC 28560 



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described lot or parcel of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to the Grantees, Grantees' heirs and assigns, free and discharged 

from all right, title, claim or interest of the said Grantors or anyone claiming by, through or under 

the Grantors. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the CITY OF NEW BERN has caused this instrument to 

be executed as its act and deed by its Mayor, attested by its City Clerk, and its seal to be hereunto 

affixed, all by the authority of its Board of Alderm~ and CRAVEN COUNTY has caused this 

instrument to be executed as its act and deed by the Chairman of its Board of Commissioners, 

attested by its Clerk, and its seal to be hereunto affixed, all by the authority of its Board of 

Commissioners, as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF NEW BERN 
(SEAL) 

By: ______________ _ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

Page2of5 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and State, do 
hereby certify that on the __ day ofNovember, 2016, before me personally appeared DANA E. 
OUTIA W, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says that he is 
the Mayor and that BRENDA BLANCO is the City Clerk for the City of New Bern, the municipal 
corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he !mows the common 
seal of said municipal corporation; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is said common 
seal; that the name of the municipal cotporation was subscribed thereto by the said Mayor; that the 
said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Aldennen of said municipal corporation; 
and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said municipal corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day ofNovember, 2016. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

Page3 of5 



(SEAL) 

A TrEST: 

Clerk, Craven County Board of 
Commissioners 

STATE OF NORTII CAROLlNA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: -----------------------------
Chairman, Craven County Board of 
Commissioners 

I~ Notary Ptibiic :1n and tor said ·county and State, do 
hereby certify that on the __ day of 2016, before me personally appeared 
GEORGE S. LINER, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says 
that he is the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, and that 
GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN is the Clerk ofthe Board of Commissioners for Craven County, the 
body politic and corporate described in and which executed the foregoing instnunent; that he knows 
the common seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument 
is said common seal; that the name of the body politic and corporate was subscribed thereto by the 
said Chair.man; that the said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Commissioners 
of said body politic and corporate; and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said body 
politic and corporate. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day of ___ ___. 2016. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

Page4of5 



EXHffiiTA 

All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Eight (8) Township, Craven 
Cmmty, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as follows: 

All that certain property more particularly described in Craven County Estate File 01-E-403 and 
described in Deed Book 493 at Page 121 in the Craven County Registry. This property is also 
commonly referred to by its tax parcel identification number which is 8-038-064. 

Being also that same property conveyed to Craven County and the City of New Bern by 
Commissioner's Deed recorded August 28, 2013 :in Book 3225 at Page 599 of the Craven County 
Registry. 

Subject to restrictive covenants and easements of record. 



RESOLUTION 
1707 Dillahunt Street, New Bern, North Carolina 

THAT WHEREAS, Craven County and the City of New Bern have received an offer to 

purchase a parcel of property owned by the County and City identified as 1707 Dillahunt Street, 

and being more particularly described herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners is authorized to sell the County's interest in the 

property pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 160A-269; and 

and 

WHEREAS, the offer to purchase was advertised as required by said statute; and 

WHEREAS, the final offer to purchase was in the sum of$1,350.00 by Merle J. Johnson; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners deems it advisable and in the best interest of 

the County to sell its interest in the subject property to the successful bidder and to convey its 

interest in said property by quitclaim deed. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF CRAVEN COUNTY: 

Section 1. That the last and highest bid of Merle J. Johnson in the sum of $1,350.00 

for said parcel identified as 1707 Dillahunt Street, and being more particularly described herein, 

be and the same is hereby accepted as to the County's interest in said property, and the 

Chairman, County Manager and/or Clerk be and they are hereby authorized and directed to 

execute a quitclaim deed to the purchasers for the County's interest in said property. 

Section 2. That a copy of said quitclaim deed is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference, and the original deed shall be delivered to said purchasers once the same has 

been executed on behalf of the County and City, upon payment of the purchase price. 

Section 3. That the subject property is more particularly described as follows: 

All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Eight (8) 
Township, Craven County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as 
follows: 

All of that certain property more fully described in Deed Book 2924 at Page 582 in the 
Craven County Registry. This property is also commonly referred to by its tax parcel 
identification number which is 8-020-102. 

Page 1 of2 



ADOPTED THIS 21st DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2016. 

(County Seal) 

GWENDOLYN BRYAN, 
Clerk to the Board 

\ISERVER04\Issdocs\00000039\00073644.000.DOCX 

GEORGE LINER, Chairman 

Page 2 of2 



Prepared by and return to: 

Michael Scott Davis 
DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGHf PILC 
209 Pollock Street 
New Bern, NC 28560 

Tax Parcel # 8-020" 102 
Revenue Stamps $0.00 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN QUITCLAIM: DEED 

THIS QUITCLAIM: DEED, made this 22nd day of November, 2016, by and between the 

CITY OF NEW BERN, a municipal corporation of the State ofNorth Carolina, and CRAVEN 

COUNTY, a body politic and corporate of the State of North Carolina ("Grantors"); to :MERLE J. 

JOHNSON and spouse, CHYNETTA L. JOHNSON, whose mailing address is 1605 Clark 

Avenue, New Bern, North Carolina 28560~ ("Grantees"); 

WITNESSETH: 

That said Grantors for and in consideration of the sum of TEN DOLLARS ($10.00) and 

other good and valuable consideration to Grantors paid by the Grantees, the receipt of which is 

hereby acknowledged, have remised and released, and by these presents do remise, release and 

forever quitclaim unto the Grantees, Grantees' heirs and assigns, the following described property, 

to wit: 

SEE EXHffiiT A ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN BY 
REFERENCE. 

The property herein conveyed does not include the primary residence of a Grantor. 

DAVIS HARTMAN WRIGHT PLLC 
Attorneys at Law 
209 Pollock Street 

New Bern, NC 28560 



TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the above described lot or parcel of land and all privileges and 

appurtenances thereunto belonging to the Grantees, Grantees' heirs and assigns, free and discharged 

from all right, title, claim or interest of the said Grantors or anyone claiming by, through or under 

the Grantors. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the CITY OF NEW BERN has caused this instrument to 

be executed as its act and deed by its Mayor, attested by its City Clerk, and its seal to be hereWltO 

affixed, all by the authority of its Board of Aldermen, and CRAVEN COUNTY has caused this 

instrument to be executed as its act and deed by the Chairman of its Board of Commissioners, 

attested by its Clerk, and its seal to be hereunto affixed, all by the authority of its Board of 

Commissioners, as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF NEW BERN 
(SEAL) 

By: -------------------------------
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 

Page2of5 



STATE OF NOR1H CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF CRAVEN 

I, , Notary Public in and for said County and State, do 
hereby certify that on the __ day of November, 2016, before me personally appeared DANA E. 
OUTLAw~ with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly sworn, says that he is 
the Mayor and that BRENDA BLANCO is the City Clerk for the City ofNew Bern, the municipal 
corporation described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows the common 
seal of said municipal corporation; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is said common 
seal; that the name of the municipal co:tporati.on was subscribed thereto by the said Mayor; that the 
said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Aldermen of said municipal corporation; 
and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said municipal corporation. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day ofNovember, 2016. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

Page3 of5 



(SEAL) 

ATTEST: 

Clerk, Craven County Board of 
Commissioners 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

~OUNTY OF CRAVEN 

CRAVEN COUNTY 

By: __________________________ __ 

Chairman, Craven County Board of 
~ornrrnissio11ers 

I, Notary Public in and for said County and State, do 
hereby certify that on the __ day of 2016, before me personally appeared 
GEORGE S. LINER, with whom I am personally acquainted, who, being by me duly swo~ says 
that he is the Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, and that 
GWENDOLYN M. BRYAN is the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners for Craven County, the 
body politic and corporate described in and which executed the foregoing instrument; that he knows 
the common seal of said body politic and corporate; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument 
is said common seal; that the name of the body politic and corporate was subscribed thereto by the 
said Chairman; that the said common seal was affixed, all by order of the Board of Commissioners 
of said body politic and corporate; and that the said instrument is the act and deed of said body 
politic and corporate. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal this the __ day of _______ 2016. 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 

Page4of5 



EXHIBIT A 

All that certain lot or parcel of land lying and being situate in Number Eight (8) Township, Craven 
County, North Carolina, and being more particularly described as follows: 

All that certain tract or parcel of land lying near the City of New Bern, County of Craven, State of 
North Carolina, known as Lot 73, as shown on a Plat of Jackson Terrace made by Albert R. Bell, 
Engineer, July 1947, and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Craven County Plat 
Book 3, Page 7. This being the same tract of land conveyed toR. W. Holly by J. S. Miller and wife, 
Mattie S. Miller on a deed dated July 17, 1947, and recorded in the Register of Deeds Office for 
Craven County Book 411, Page 262. 

Being also that same property conveyed to Craven County and the City of New Bern by 
Commissioner's Deed recorded July 6, 2010 in Book 2924 at Page 582 of the Craven County 
Registry. 

Subject to restrictive covenants and easements of record. 

PageS ofS 



OWNER AFFIDAVIT AND INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 
(NO RECENT IMPROVEMENTS AND NO EXECUTORY CONTRACTS FOR IMPROVEMENTS) 

PARTIES: Alf parties idenlffied in this section must execute this Agreement. 

Owner. CRAVEN COUNTY, a body politic and corporate 
(NOTE: A separate Agreement is required for each successive owner in the 120-Day Lien Period.) 

PROPERTY: See MEXHJBIT A'' attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
(Insert street address or brief description and/or attach a description as Exhibit A. Include here any real estate that is a portion of a larger, prE 

unsegregated tract when that area is reasonably necessary for the convenient use and occupation of Improvements 011 the larger tract.) 

DEFINITIONS~ The folloWing capitalized tenns as used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings: 
• Improvement: Art or any part of any building, slruclure, erection, alleratlon, demolition, excavation, clearing, grading, fflling, or landscaping, including in 

shrubbery, dnveways, and private roadways on the Property as defined below. 
• Labor. Services or Materials: ALL labor, seJVices, materials for which a lien can be claimed under NCGS Chapter 44A, Article 2, including but not lir 

professional design services (including architectural, engineering, landscaping and suJVeying) and/or rental equipmenl 
!<!,· Contractor: Any person or entity who has performed or furnished or has contracted to perfOllll or furnish Labor, Services or Materials pursuant to a c 

either express or Jmplied, with the Owner of real property for the making of an Improvement !hereon. {Note that seJVices by architects, ern. 
landscapers, surveyors, furnishers of rental equipment and contracts for construction on Property of Improvements are often provided before there I! 
evidence of construction.) 

• 120-Day Lien Period: The 120 days immediately preceding the dale of recordation of the latter of the deed to purchaser or deed of trust to lender in th' 
of the Register of Deeds of !he county in which the Property is located . 

. • Owner: Any person or entity, as defined in NCGS Chapter 44A, Article 2, who has or has had any interest in the Property within the 120-Day Lien Peri• 
the purposes of !his Agreement, the teJm Owner includes; (Q a seller of the Property or a borrower under a loan agreement secured by the Proper 
person with rights to purchase the Property under a contract and for whom an Improvement is made and who ordered the Improvement to be mar 
QiQ the Owne~s successors in interest and agents of the Owner acting within their authorffy. 

• Company: The tiUe insurance company providing the ti«e policy for the transaction contemplated by the parties herein. 
• ~: The real estate described above or on Exhibit A and any leaseholds, tenements, hereditaments, and Improvements placed thereon. 
• All defined terms shall include the singular or plural as required by context. 

AGREEMENT: For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and as an inducement to the purchas1 
Property by a purchaser and/or the making of a loan by a lender secured by a deed of trust encumbering the Property and the issuance of a title insurance p 
policies by Company insuring title to the Property without exception to Hens for Labor, Services or Materials; Owner first being duly swom, deposes, says and i 

1. Certifications: Owner certifies that at no time during the 120-Day Uen Period have any Labor, Services or Materials been furnished in connectic 
contract, express or implied, for Improvements to the Property Qncluding architectural, engineering, landscaping or surveyin,g services or materials or rental e< 
for which a lien can be claimed under NCGS Chapter 44A) nor have any Labor, Services or Materials been furnished on the Property prior to the 120-Day Ue 
!hal will or may be completed ailer U1e date of this affidavit OR only minor repairs and/or alterations to pre-existing Improvements have been made and Owne1 
such repairs and/or aMerafions have been completed and those providing Labor, Services or Materials for the repairs have been paid fn fuU. The Own( 
certifies that no Mechanics Lien Agent has been appointed. 

2. Reliance and lndemnfficatlon: This Agreement may be relied upon by the purchaser in the purchase of the Property, a lender to make a loan sect. 
deed of trust enctJmbertng the Property and by Company in issuance of a tiHe insurance policy or policies insuring title to the Property Without exception tc 
certified in this Agreement The provisions of this Agreement shall suJVIve the disbursement of funds and closing of this transaction and shall be binding upo 
and anyone claiming by, through or under Owner. 

Owner agrees to indemnify and hold purchaser, lender, and Company harmless of and from any and all loss, cos~ damage and expense of every kind, and au 
fees, costs and expenses, which the purchaser, lender or Company shall or may incur or become liable for, directly or indirectly, as a result of renance 
certifications of Owner made herein or in enforcement of tile Company's rights hereunder. 

3. NCL TA Copyright and Entire Agreement: This Agreement and any attachments hereto represent the entire agreement between the Owner and the C 
and no prior or contemporaneous agreement or understanding Inconsistent herewith (whether oraf or written) pertaining to such matters is effective. 
THIS IS A COPYRIGHT FORM and any variances In the fonn provisions hereof must be specifically stated in the blank below and agreed to ln writing 
CompMY·------~------------------------------------------------------------------------

No modification of thts Agreement, and no waiver of any of its terms or conditions, shall be effective unless made in writing and approved by the Company. 

CRAVEN COUNTY, a body politic and corporate 

~:·--------------------~ 
Printed or Typed NamelllUe:. __________ _ 

(Sool} 

Sla!a of NORTH CAROLINA County of CRAVEN 
Signed and swom k> (or affirmed} before me this day by 

~ 
M~--~--~--~--------------~of : 
prawn Coootv a oodv ooljlic aoo corpornte. J 

I 
~re:·----~--------------- i 

---------------'.Nptary Public 

My Commission Expims: 


	Agenda20161121
	Attachment #1.B
	Attachment #1.C
	Attachment #3
	Attachment #4
	Attachment #5
	Attachment #6
	Attachment #7
	Attachment #8
	Attachment #9.A.0
	Attachment #9.A.1
	Attachment #9.B
	Attachment #10.A
	Attachment #10.B
	Attachment #10.C
	Attachment #10.D

